
  

 
 

 

NOTTINGHAM CITY COUNCIL 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 
Date: Wednesday, 22 July 2015 
 
Time:  2.30 pm 
 
Place: Ground Floor Committee Room - Loxley House, Station Street, Nottingham, 

NG2 3NG 
 
 
Councillors are requested to attend the above meeting to transact the following 
business 
 

 
 
Acting Corporate Director for Resources 
 
Governance Officer: Noel McMenamin   Direct Dial: 0115 8764304 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

 Pages 

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS  
 

 

3  MINUTES  
Last meeting held on 17 June 2015 (for confirmation) 
 

3 - 10 

4  PLANNING APPLICATIONS: REPORTS OF THE HEAD OF 
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT AND REGENERATION  
 

 

a   Blenheim Gardens Allotments Blenheim Lane  
 

11 - 84 

b   95 Talbot Street  
 

85 - 98 

c   Western Section Of Former Coach Station, Park Lane  
 

99 - 116 

d   Site Of Colwick Service Station Daleside Road East  
 

117 - 136 

IF YOU NEED ANY ADVICE ON DECLARING AN INTEREST IN ANY ITEM ON THE 
AGENDA, PLEASE CONTACT THE GOVERNANCE OFFICER SHOWN ABOVE, IF 
POSSIBLE BEFORE THE DAY OF THE MEETING  
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

CITIZENS ATTENDING MEETINGS ARE ASKED TO ARRIVE AT LEAST 15 MINUTES 
BEFORE THE START OF THE MEETING TO BE ISSUED WITH VISITOR BADGES 

 

CITIZENS ARE ADVISED THAT THIS MEETING MAY BE RECORDED BY MEMBERS 
OF THE PUBLIC.  ANY RECORDING OR REPORTING ON THIS MEETING SHOULD 
TAKE PLACE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE COUNCIL’S POLICY ON RECORDING AND 
REPORTING ON PUBLIC MEETINGS, WHICH IS AVAILABLE AT 
WWW.NOTTINGHAMCITY.GOV.UK.  INDIVIDUALS INTENDING TO RECORD THE 
MEETING ARE ASKED TO NOTIFY THE GOVERNANCE OFFICER SHOWN ABOVE IN 
ADVANCE. 

http://www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/


1 

NOTTINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  
 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
MINUTES of the meeting held at LB31-32 - Loxley House, Station Street, 
Nottingham, NG2 3NG on 17 June 2015 from 14.00 - 15.50 
 
Membership  
Present Absent 
Councillor Chris Gibson (Chair) 
Councillor Cat Arnold 
Councillor Azad Choudhry 
Councillor Alan Clark 
Councillor Michael Edwards 
Councillor Rosemary Healy 
Councillor Toby Neal 
(minutes 6-10) 
Councillor Sally Longford 
Councillor Brian Parbutt 
Councillor Wendy Smith 
Councillor Malcolm Wood 
(minutes 6-9, 11) 
Councillor Steve Young 
 

Councillor Graham Chapman 
Councillor Gul Nawaz Khan 
Councillor Linda Woodings 
 

  
6 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
Councillor Graham Chapman – Other Council business 
Councillor Linda Woodings – work commitments 
 
7 DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS 

 
Councillor Malcolm Wood declared an Other Interest in agenda item 4(b) ‘Unit 2, the 
Picture Works’, as a Nottingham City Council-appointed Director of Nottingham 
Racecourse Ltd. The applicant, DG Private Hire Ltd, is a sponsor at Nottingham race 
course. Councillor Wood withdrew from the meeting during consideration of this item. 
 
Councillors Alan Clark and Michael Edwards declared an Other Interest in agenda 
item 4(a) ‘Broadmarsh Centre, Lister Gate’ as Nottingham City Council-appointed 
directors of Enviro-Energy Ltd, which did not prevent them from speaking or voting. 
 
Councillor Chris Gibson declared an Other Interest in agenda items 4(a) ‘Broadmarsh 
Centre, Lister Gate’ and  4 (b) Unit 2 The Picture Works, as a Nottingham City 
Council-appointed member of the Nottingham Express Transit Project Board, which 
did not prevent him from speaking or voting. 
 
8 MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 27 May 2015 were agreed as a true record and 
they were signed by the Chair. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Planning Committee - 17.06.15 

2 

9 BROAD MARSH CENTRE, LISTER GATE 
 

Rob Percival, Area Planning Manager, introduced a report of the Head of 
Development Management and Regeneration on application 15/00950/PFUL3, 
submitted by Nathaniel Litchfield and Partners on behalf of Broadmarsh Retail 
Limited Partnership for: 
 

 Part demolition, alteration and extension of Intu Broadmarsh shopping centre, 
including change of use and erection of new buildings to provide for uses within 
A1-A5 (shops, financial & professional services, restaurants & cafes, drinking 
establishments and hot food take-away), and D2 (assembly and leisure).  

 Demolition of western pedestrian bridge and refurbishment of eastern bridge 
across Collin Street.  

 Alterations to existing entrances on Collin Street, Lister Gate and Drury Walk.  

 Creation of new entrance on Middle Hill and other ancillary works and 
operations.  

 
The Committee also considered additional information contained in the update sheet 
noting the additional and amended indicative conditions, which had also been 
published subsequent to the agenda publication. 
 
During discussion, the Committee made the following points: 
 
(a) there was strong support for the proposals, with the Committee recognising the 

efforts of City Council colleagues in negotiating amendments and improvements 
to the scheme. It was recognised that much time had passed since outline 
planning permission was originally granted in November 2000 and there was a 
strong desire for the Broadmarsh Centre to be redeveloped; 

 
(b) the look of the new proposed southern entrance was praised, as was the 

creation of the new Drury Walk and its mix of traditional and modern 
architectural styles; 

 
(c) the arch entry at Lister Gate was praised, but it was suggested that the 

proposed bronze colour needed further consideration; 
 

(d) several councillors were disappointed that the proposals did not include 
improvements to Severns House; 

 
(e) a councillor suggested that the retained footbridge should be made as attractive 

as possible; 
 

(f) a councillor questioned the suitability of proposed seating on Drury Walk for 
elderly citizens, and indeed elsewhere in the Centre; 

 
(g) councillors suggested including reference to the area’s historical heritage within 

design details. Suggestions included the literary work of Abigail Gawthorn and 
referencing that there was at one time a monastery on the site; 

 
(h) several councillors also highlighted the importance of promoting the City Caves 

within the scheme; 

Page 4



Planning Committee - 17.06.15 

3 

 
(i) Councillor Edwards expressed concern about the width of the proposed 

north/south route through the Centre, and proposed the following motion ‘To 
explore further the widening of the street between Lister Gate Square and Collin 
Street in recognition of the significance of the route for pedestrians and others 
travelling north and south’. When put to the vote, the motion was defeated by 12 
votes to 1. 

 
RESOLVED to 
 
(1) grant planning permission for the reasons set out in the report and update 

sheet, subject to the indicative conditions substantially in the form of 
those listed in the draft decision notice at the end of the report and update 
sheet; 

 
(2) delegate power to determine the final details of the conditions of planning 

permission to the Head of Development Management and Regeneration. 
 
10 UNIT 2, THE PICTURE WORKS 

 
The Chair agreed to a request from a member of the public to record consideration of 
this item, in line with Nottingham City Council’s Guidance on Responding to 
Requests to film, Record and/or Photograph Public Meetings.  
 
Councillor Malcolm Wood declared an Other Interest in this item as a Nottingham 
City Council-appointed Director of Nottingham Racecourse Ltd. The applicant, DG 
Private Hire Ltd, is a sponsor at Nottingham race course. Councillor Wood withdrew 
from the meeting during consideration of this item. 
 
Rob Percival, Area Planning Manager, introduced a report of the Head of 
Development Management and Regeneration on application 15/00925/PVAR3, 
submitted by Mr Kevin Rowland on behalf of DG Private Hire Ltd for variation of 
condition 1 of planning permission 13/01945/PFUL3 for continued use as a taxi office 
until December 2016. 
 
The Committee also considered additional information contained in the update sheet, 
which had also been published subsequent to the agenda publication. 
 
During discussion, a councillor highlighted the importance of retaining free flow of 
traffic on Queen’s Road.He noted that approval of the application would allow for 
continuing assessment of the impact of the use as a taxi office, importantly once NET 
trams were operational in the area, on vehicular traffic flow. 
 
RESOLVED to 
 
(1) grant planning permission for the reasons set out in the report, subject to 

the indicative conditions substantially in the form of those listed in the 
draft decision notice at the end of the report; 

 

Page 5



Planning Committee - 17.06.15 

4 

(2) delegate power to determine the final details of both the terms of the 
Planning Obligation and conditions of planning permission to the Head of 
Development Management and Regeneration. 

 
Legal/Governance Officer Note: Following the meeting, it was established that 
the report recommendation was incorrect, in that there was no Planning 
Obligation within the report. It is proposed to amend resolution 10(2) to remove 
reference to the Planning Obligation when the Committee confirms the minutes 
of the June 2015 meeting.’ 
 
 
11 SITE OF SOCIETY LINEN AND ELECTRICITY SUB-STATION, DALESIDE 

ROAD 
 

Martin Poole, Area Planning Manager, introduced a report of the Head of 
Development Management and Regeneration on applications 15/01104/PFUL3, 
15/01105/PFUL3, 15/01039/PVAR3 and 15/01042/PVAR3, submitted by Signet 
Planning Ltd on behalf of Cedar House Investments, for a new drive-through café 
and associated works, a retail unit with mezzanine floor (revision to hybrid planning 
permission reference 14/01140/POUT), variation of conditions 16 and 17 of outline 
planning permission 14/01140/POUT (relating to combined size and number of retail 
units) and variation of condition S1 of outline planning permission reference 
14/01140/POUT (reduced size of retail terrace and raised elevations). 
 
 
The Committee also considered additional information contained in the update sheet, 
noting the amended recommendation which had been published subsequent to the 
agenda publication. 
 
Mr Poole explained that the new planning applications were for a drive-through café, 
intended for occupation by Costa, with additional car parking, a revised unit within the 
retail terrace, to meet the needs of the intended occupier (Smyths Toys), and 
variations to the existing permission to allow for reconfigured floor space to meet 
market demand for larger units. 
 
During discussion, the Committee made the following points: 
 
(a) It was important to ensure that the robust planting scheme intended for the site 

was maintained on an ongoing basis. It was noted this was being secured 
through appropriate condition and High quality planting was being utilised on 
the scheme; 

 
(b) Economic viability remained a key consideration. It was noted that although the 

scheme was being established before the arrival of residential demand at the 
Waterfront site, the scheme was not expected to have an adverse effect on the 
City Centre shopping offer and had been subject to a thorough viability 
assessment. 

 

RESOLVED 
 
(1) In respect of Application Number 15/01104/PFUL3: 

Page 6



Planning Committee - 17.06.15 

5 

 
(a) subject to prior completion of a Section 106 planning obligation which 

shall include a financial contribution towards environmental 
improvements to the Greenway public right of way to improve pedestrian 
and cycle connections to the site: 

 
grant planning permission for subject to the indicative conditions 
substantially in the form of those listed in the draft decision notice at 
Appendix 1 to this report; 

 
(b) delegate power to determine the final details of both the terms of the 

planning obligation and conditions of the planning permission to the Head 
of Development Management and Regeneration; 

 
(c) that councillors are satisfied that Regulation 122(2) Community 
 Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 is complied with, in that the planning 

obligation sought is:  
 

(i) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms, 
(ii) directly related to the development and  

 
(iii) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. 

 
(d) that Councillors are satisfied that the section 106 obligation(s) sought 

would not exceed the permissible number of obligations according to the 
Regulation 123 (3) Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010. 

 
(2) In respect of Application Number 15/01105/PFUL3 
 
(a) subject to prior completion of a Section 106 planning obligation which 

shall include a financial contribution towards environmental 
improvements to the Greenway public right of way to improve pedestrian 
and cycle connections to the site: 

 
grant planning permission for subject to the indicative conditions 
substantially in the form of those listed in the draft decision notice at 
Appendix 2 to this report; 

 
(b) delegate power to determine the final details of both the terms of the 

planning obligation and conditions of the planning permission to the Head 
of Development Management and Regeneration; 

 
(c) that councillors are satisfied that Regulation 122(2) Community 
 Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 is complied with, in that the planning 

obligation sought is:  
 

(i) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms, 
(ii) directly related to the development and  
(iii)fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. 
 

Page 7



Planning Committee - 17.06.15 

6 

(d) that Councillors are satisfied that the section 106 obligation(s) sought 
would not exceed the permissible number of obligations according to the 
Regulation 123 (3) Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010. 

 
(3) In respect of Application Number 15/01039/PVAR3: 
 
(a) subject to prior completion of a Section 106 planning obligation which 

shall include a financial contribution towards environmental 
improvements to the Greenway public right of way to improve pedestrian 
and cycle connections to the site: 

 
grant planning permission subject to the conditions imposed on planning 
permission 14/01140/POUT, subject to modified conditions 16 and 17 as 
set out in the report; 

 
(b) delegate power to determine the final details of both the terms of the 

planning obligation and conditions of the planning permission to the Head 
of Development Management and Regeneration; 

 
(c) that councillors are satisfied that Regulation 122(2) Community 
 Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 is complied with, in that the planning 

obligation sought is:  
 

(i) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms, 
(ii) directly related to the development and  
(iii) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. 
 

(d) that Councillors are satisfied that the section 106 obligation(s) sought 
would not exceed the permissible number of obligations according to the 
Regulation 123 (3) Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010. 

 
(4) In respect of Application Number 15/01042/PVAR3: 
 
(a) subject to prior completion of a Section 106 planning obligation which 

shall include a financial contribution towards environmental 
improvements to the Greenway public right of way to improve pedestrian 
and cycle connections to the site: 

 
grant planning permission subject to the conditions imposed on planning 
permission 14/01140/POUT, subject to modified condition S1 as set out in 
the report; 

 
(b) delegate power to determine the final details of both the terms of the 

planning obligation and conditions of the planning permission to the Head 
of Development Management and Regeneration; 

 
(c) that councillors are satisfied that Regulation 122(2) Community 
 Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 is complied with, in that the planning 

obligation sought is:  
 

(i) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms, 

Page 8



Planning Committee - 17.06.15 

7 

(ii) directly related to the development and  
(iii)fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. 
 

(d) that Councillors are satisfied that the section 106 obligation(s) sought 
would not exceed the permissible number of obligations according to the 
Regulation 123 (3) Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010; 

 
(5) having granted planning permission in respect of applications 

15/01039/PVAR3 and 15/01042/PVAR3, to  
 
(a) delegate power to the Head of Development Management and 

Regeneration to issue a combined planning permission, subject to: 
 

(i) the indicative conditions substantially in the form of those referred to 
in resolutions 3 and 4 above; 

 
(ii) prior completion of a section 106 planning obligation which shall 

include a financial contribution of £60,000 towards environmental 
improvements to the Greenway public right of way to improve 
pedestrian and cycle connection to the site; 

 
(b) delegate power to determine the final details of both the terms of the 

planning obligation and conditions of the planning permission to the Head 
of Development Management and Regeneration; 

 
(c) that councillors are satisfied that Regulation 122(2) Community 
 Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 is complied with, in that the planning 

obligation sought is:  
 

(i) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms, 
(ii) directly related to the development and  
) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. 
 

(d) that Councillors are satisfied that the section 106 obligation(s) sought 
would not exceed the permissible number of obligations according to the 
Regulation 123 (3) Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010. 

 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
WARDS AFFECTED: Bulwell  Item No:  
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
22nd July 2015 

 
REPORT OF HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT AND REGENERATION 
 
Blenheim Gardens Allotments, Blenheim Lane 
 
1 SUMMARY 
 
Application No: 15/00893/PVAR3 

 
Application by: Amberley Consulting Ltd on behalf of Chinook Sciences Ltd 

 
Proposal: Energy from waste facility (160,000 tonnes of waste per annum 

capacity), manufacturing, research and development facility and 
associated offices. (Revised design S73 application to vary 
condition S1 of planning permission reference 13/03051/PMFUL3).

 
The application is brought to Committee because it involves revisions to a major 
development of strategic importance and local interest. 
 
To meet the Council's Performance Targets this application should be determined by 31st 
July 2015 
 
2 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

The Committee resolves: 
 
1) That the requirements of Part 2 of Schedule 4 of the Town and Country Planning 
(Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2011 are satisfied by reason of the 
Environmental Statement submitted in support of the application including at least 
the following information: 
 
(a) a description of the development comprising information on the site, design and 
size of the development; 
(b) a description of the measures envisaged in order to avoid, reduce and, if 
possible remedy significant adverse effects; 
(c) the data required to identify and assess the main effects the scheme is likely to 
have on the environment; 
(d) an outline of the main alternatives studied by the applicant and an indication of 
the main reasons for rejecting these, taking into account the environmental effects; 
(e) a non-technical summary of the information provided under (a) to (d) above. 
 
2) That the implications of the development addressed in the Environmental 
Statement subject to the mitigation measures proposed do not amount to major 
adverse effects or main effects or other adverse impacts that would justify the 
refusal of the application. 
 
3) That in making the decision on this application, the environmental information 
being the Environmental Statement and the representations received on it have 
been taken into account. The Environmental Statement meets the minimum 
requirements of Part 2 of Schedule 4 to the Environmental Impact Assessment 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4a



 

Regulations 2011 and is sufficient having regard to Part 1 of Schedule 4 to those 
Regulations. 
 
4) That Regulation 24(1) of the Environment Impact Assessment Regulations 2011 
be complied with as soon as reasonably practical and the Head of Development 
Management and Regeneration be delegated to undertake the necessary 
requirements, namely to notify the decision in writing to the Secretary of State, 
inform the public of the decision by newspaper advertisement and to place on 
deposit for public inspection a statement containing the content of the decision and 
the conditions attached to it, the main reasons and consideration on which the 
decision is based and a description, where necessary, of the main measures to 
avoid, reduce and, if possible offset any major adverse effects of the development, 
and also to contain information on the ability to and procedures for the challenge of 
the decision. 
 
5) To GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION for the reasons set out in this report, 
subject to the conditions substantially in the form of those listed in the draft decision 
notice at the end of this report. 
 
Power to determine the final details of the conditions to be delegated to Head of 
Development Management and Regeneration. 
 

3 BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The site extends to 6.9 hectares and is located at the northern edge of the City in 

the Bulwell Ward. 
 
3.2  The site was previously used as allotments. This use ceased approximately ten 

years ago when the allotments were relocated to land to the immediate west of the 
application site. Vegetation was cleared in 2012, and the site was levelled and 
fenced in preparation for development. The site is designated as employment land 
for the expansion of the Blenheim Industrial Estate in policy 2 of the adopted 
Nottingham Local Plan and remains so under the Aligned Core Strategy. 

 
3.3  The site is bounded by Blenheim Lane to the south, Firth Way to the east, the 

Blenheim allotments to the west and a golf course operated by Nottingham City 
Golf Club to the north, which sits within Bulwell Hall Park. Bulwell Hall Park is 
designated as Green Belt within the Nottingham Local Plan and forms part of the 
Open Space Network, Mature Landscape area and a Biological Site of Importance 
to Nature Conservation (SINC). 

 
3.4  The site is situated at the edge of the Blenheim Business Estate. The wider area 

contains a range of industrial, warehousing and distributional units including an 
ASDA distribution centre. 

 
3.5  Hucknall Airfield and the adjacent Rolls Royce Factory are located within Ashfield 

District Council’s administrative area to the north west of the site, beyond the 
adjacent allotments and golf course. Planning permission was granted by Ashfield 
District in March 2014 for a hybrid application for the redevelopment of the Rolls 
Royce site (planning ref: V/2013/0123). That consent permits a 27.8 ha Business 
Park, 31.2ha residential development, local retail facilities, pub/restaurant, care 
home and community facilities, open space, pedestrian and cycle links and Green 
Belt enhancements. 

 

Page 12



 

3.6  The nearest existing residential properties are the Winter Showman’s Quarters, 
which are located approximately 100m to the west. Houses on Langdown Close are 
located 150m away from the site entrance, with Norwich Gardens 350m to the east. 
The Seller’s Wood Drive estate is located beyond the Industrial Estate, 400m away. 
3.7 While the site has been secured by fencing, the existing hedgerows which 
enclose the site have been retained, with the most notable being to its southern 
boundary along Blenheim Lane and is identified as a Site of Importance to Nature 
Conservation (SINC) in the Local Plan. 

 
Relevant Planning History 
 

3.7  In 2000, the site was the subject of two applications (00/01382/NOUT and 
01/00596/PFUL3), for the comprehensive redevelopment of the site for employment 
purposes (classes B1, B2 and B8). The first sought outline planning permission and 
the second was a full application, both submitted on behalf of Raleigh Industries. 
Both applications were subsequently withdrawn as the applicant made a 
commercial decision to expand their business abroad. 

 
3.8 In 2008, a three year temporary permission (08/01786/PFUL3) was granted to use 

the north eastern part of the site as a haul route to provide HGV access to 
Nottingham City Golf Course. This was to allow material to be transported as part of 
the golf course re-modelling works, which included perimeter mounding to the side 
(just outside) of the application site, along the course’s fairways. The HGV haul 
route crosses the north-east corner of the site from the existing roundabout on Firth 
Way. A further application was subsequently granted planning permission in 2011 to 
extend the timeframe for the use of the access road (11/0401/PVAR3). The access 
has been constructed and the re-modelling works on the golf course have reached 
an advanced stage. The temporary permission for the access road expired on 31 
August 2013. 

 
3.9 In February 2013, Chinook Sciences Ltd submitted a request for an Environmental 

Impact Assessment Screening Opinion to establish whether an Environmental 
Statement (ES) would be required as part of a planning application to develop the 
site as a manufacturing and energy demonstrator facility (ref. 13/00432/EASCR). As 
part of that process, following consultation with internal and external bodies, the 
applicant decided that they would submit an ES with their planning application prior 
to formal determination. As a result, Chinook withdrew their EIA screening request in 
April 2013. 

 
3.10 In June 2013 planning permission (planning ref: 13/00757/PMFUL3) was granted to 

develop the site as a manufacturing, research and development and ‘energy from 
waste’ demonstrator facility. The waste processing facility comprised a 30,000 
tonnes per year ‘energy from waste’ demonstrator which would have been capable 
of producing up to 6 MW-hr of power. The facility was intended to demonstrate the 
technology in operation to potential investors. The energy would have been used to 
provide power to the development with potential for surplus power to be exported to 
the National Grid. The development would have created 16,330 m2 industrial floor 
space and created 250 jobs. 

 
3.11 Planning Committee at its June 2014 meeting resolved to grant planning 

permission (planning ref:13/03051/PMFUL3) to develop the site as an Energy from 
Waste facility (EfW) processing 160,000 tonnes of waste per year, with 
manufacturing, research and development facility and associated offices. The 

Page 13



 

development proposed to create 12,657 m2 of industrial floor space and created 
225 jobs. 

 
4 DETAILS OF THE PROPOSAL 
 
4.1 A copy of the committee report for the above planning application 

13/03051/PMFUL3 is attached and sets out a detailed description of the proposed 
development approved in June 2014, together with details of the EfW facilities 
RODECS system and gasification technology used to produce electricity.  

 
4.2 Planning permission is now sought for minor material amendments to the June 

2014 approved scheme, to modify the condition listing the approved drawings. The 
need for changes to the approved site layout has resulted from detailed design 
development as preparation of the application to the Environment Agency for an 
Environmental Permit for the EfW facility has progressed. 

 
4.3 The proposed amendments principally relate to the installation of two new pieces of 

process equipment serving the EfW facility, both of which would have significant 
operational benefits and associated reduced operational costs. The deployment of 
the new equipment results in the need to amend the site layout and also has a 
small impact on some of the existing equipment as set out below. 

 
 a) New equipment: 
 

- An air separation unit (ASU) is proposed to be installed in a dedicated 
building in the centre of the site (21.1m length, 18.1m wide and 10.2m 
height), to enable onsite oxygen generation for burners and which will enable 
significant operational cost savings.  

 
- Two buildings containing syngas cleaning equipment are proposed to be 

installed adjacent to the syngas boilers, located between the generator hall 
and the RODECs building (19m length, 17m wide and 6m height). The 
inclusion of this equipment would enable additional significant cost savings to 
be achieved through the removal of particulates and metals from the ‘syngas’ 
prior to being scrubbed.  

 
- Additional control room and equipment associated with the 2 new electricity 

sub stations, water tanks and pumps and gas governor are now proposed to 
be located along the eastern boundary of the site. 

 
b) Existing equipment and buildings: 

 
- The water treatment building has reduced in size (from 534m2 to 192 m2) 

and moved from the centre of the site to the western side immediately south 
of the stack (16.1m length, 12.1m wide and 12.4m height) 

 
- The generator hall building has reduced in size (from 1479 m2 to 1269 m2) 

and has changed shape from a long thin building to a shorter, squarer 
building. 

 
- The number of spherical gas accumulators has been reduced from three to 

two accumulators measuring 25m in height. These have subsequently been 
reduced in size to 22.5m in height. 

 

Page 14



 

- The plant control room, offices, staff room and storage (split over two floors),  
which is part of the EfW facility, has now been increased in height to 18.9m 
from 14m to reflect the height of the adjoining RODECS processing building. 

 
- The number of power islands has been reduced from two to one large one 

power island (53.8m in length, 13.75m wide and 23.6m in height). 
 

c) Landscaping, Parking and Levels 
 

- As a result of the proposed changes to the site layout to accommodate 
additional equipment n a reduction in overall landscaping is proposed from 
16,300 m2 to 13,250 m2, a reduction of 19%. The key landscaping features 
of the bund in the north west of the site and a landscaped buffer around the 
entire site perimeter will remain.  

 
- The surface area of the attenuation pond is proposed to be reduced (volume 

remains the same by an increase in its depth), to improve the turning area for 
incoming HGVs through an increase in the amount of hardstanding to the 
south of pond.  

 
- Rearrangement of on site parking provision to reflect layout changes.  
 
- The levels on the site are proposed to remain largely as existing with limited 

‘cut and fill’ to improve drainage and minimise the risks of water ponding on 
the site. The site slopes from its western boundary with the allotment to its 
eastern boundary with Firth Way and from its north west corner down to its 
southern boundary with the golf course. The June 2104 planning consent 
proposed to ‘cut’ the development into the slope with the north west corner of 
the site being approximately 5m lower than existing levels. 

 
4.4 The development falls within Schedule 1 of the Town and Country Planning 

(Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2011 and is therefore 
accompanied by an Environmental Statement (ES). The purpose of the ES is to 
identify key environmental impacts that would arise from the development and the 
proposed changes to its site layout, appraise these impacts and, if necessary and 
possible, identify measures that will be implemented to remedy or mitigate 
significant adverse effects. 

 
5 CONSULTATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS OF OTHER OFFICERS 
 

Adjoining occupiers consulted: 
 

5.1 72 residents, commercial occupiers and residents groups were notified of the 
application as follows: 
 
Blenheim (New Site) Allotment Association 
Snape Wood Residents’ Association 
Blenheim Lane Management Committee 
Bulwell Hall Tenants’ and Residents’ Association 
Showman’s Winter Quarters 1 Blenheim Lane 
Nottingham Friends of the Earth 
Blenheim Farm Blenheim Lane 
Rufford Tenants’ and Residents’ Association 
Wingbourne, Riseborough and Gardens Tenants’ and Residents’ Association 

Page 15



 

Bulwell Community Toy Library 
CRESTA Tenants’ and Residents’ Association 
10 Firth Way Nottingham 
Units 1-13 Vision Business Park 
Cash And Carry Warehouse Firth Way 
Blenheim House 6 Martin Close 
Units 1-11 Martin Court 
23 To 25 Blenheim Lane 
Units 1 to 17 Bennerley Court 
Nottingham City Golf Club 
Nottingham Golf Centre, Bulwell Hall Park 
Merlin Flying Club, Hucknall Airfield 
Rolls Royce 
Hucknall Reach Out Residents Group, 4 Astrall Grove 
Woodhall Farm, Blenheim Lane, Hucknall 
82 Lime Street 
 

5.2 Two letters of objection have been received from Bulwell residents. The first 
resident is concerned that the EfW facility will produce unpleasant smells and odour 
from stored waste waiting to be processed.  The second letter is from a resident of 
Langdown Close which is located to the south of the site. They raise concerns over 
noise from traffic, particularly at night and increased flooding from surface water 
drainage. They already have problems with flooding from the existing surface water 
drains in the area. 

 
5.3 One email has also been received from an allotment holder on the adjacent 

Blenheim allotment site who thought that the proposal involved the redevelopment 
of the new allotment site and not the former. 
 
Additional consultation letters sent to: 
 
Pollution Control: The design layout changes have no additional implications for 
ground contamination, ground gas, air quality or noise.  Therefore the existing 
conditions on 13/03051/PMFUL3 & the Environment Agencies A Environmental 
Permit controls are considered to be sufficient to control activities & environmental 
impacts from the facility. 
 
Highways: No objection, subject to the conditions imposed on the 2014 planning 
consent relating to a construction management plan, details of the proposed two 
new access points onto Firth Way, access gates to open inwards, travel plan , 
parking provided and provision made for 10 disabled parking spaces, 44 secure 
and sheltered cycle space and 12 PTW spaces. 
 
Planning Policy: The application does not raise any direct Waste Core Strategy or 
Local Plan issues. Planning policy are aware that Nottinghamshire County Council 
has raised specific comments about the revised landscaping scheme and they 
share their concerns.  In order to integrate the proposed development into the area, 
the perimeter landscape proposals are important.  Any reduction in the landscaping 
and proposed planting is not therefore supported. 
 
Biodiversity and Green Space Policy Officer‘s comments: The revised site plan 
will bring the development closer to the adjacent allotments and lose a swathe of 
soft landscaping to the west of the site. The biodiversity officer considers this 
swathe of landscaping to provide important wildlife connectivity and habitat 

Page 16



 

continuity past the development to the western side and to buffer the adjacent 
allotments from the imposing structures of the energy park. This swathe of 
landscaping would also connect the important hedgerow of Blenheim Lane with the 
Bulwell Hall gold course to the north. The material amendment means that there will 
be just a single hedgerow width between the allotments and the built structures, 
which in the opinion of the Biodiversity officer is too close and imposing. On a site 
that already has very minimal soft landscaping and opportunity for planting, I think it 
would be inappropriate to lose this swathe of planting and bring the built element 
even closer to the western edge. It will also mean that there is no connectivity for 
wildlife down this western side (already lost down the eastern side owing to access 
routes). The loss of this section of the woodland screening will reduce the future 
value of the woodland block, reduce connectivity value, and prevent the 
development from being fully enclosed within adequate buffer and screening 
planting. It is recommended that no soft landscaping is lost from the approved 
scheme and the amendment is made in an alternative way. 
 
Drainage Team: No objections. The submitted Flood Risk Assessment and 
drainage strategy state that surface water run off will be restricted to below green 
field run off rate, provided that this rate is adhered to the drainage proposal are 
considered to be acceptable. A condition relating to surface water drainage is 
recommended. 
 
Nottinghamshire County Council:  
 
Waste and Highways: The proposal does not alter the permitted capacity and 
related vehicle movements etc. and so does not raise any new issues, subject to 
detailed landscape comments outlined below. 
 
Impact on Landscape Character: The revised layout has resulted in the proposed 
attenuation pond being reconfigured. This will result in an increased depth to the 
water body and will have an impact on the ecology of the water feature. The revised 
site layout has resulted in a 19% reduction in landscaping. The most apparent 
change is the reduction in the width of perimeter planting along the western 
boundary which is between the site gas accumulator structures (24m high) and the 
existing allotment site. The deciduous planting proposed by the original site layout 
shown along this boundary by has been replaced by a hedgerow which will provide 
only limited screening. Further planting in the north west corner of the site has been 
altered to feathered pine trees with no shrub under storey which is considered to 
have limited screening potential. The County Council consider perimeter landscape 
proposals to be important to integrate this substantial development into the wider 
landscape. The reduction in the areas of planting are not supported and 
clarification/further information is required regarding existing vegetation and the 
extent of proposed planting from the applicant particularly along the western 
boundary. 
 
Highways England: No objection. 
 
Environment Agency: The variations proposed to the site plan are as a result of 
further requirements to comply with the Environmental Permit and as such the 
Environment Agency has no further planning comments. 
 
Health & Safety Executive: No comments. 
 
Broxtowe Borough Council: No objection. 

Page 17



 

 
Natural England: No comments. 
 
Severn Trent Water: No objection. A condition relating to surface water drainage is 
recommended. 
 
Nottinghamshire Wildlife Trust: The Trust note that the proposal includes some 
alterations to site layout, potentially affecting landscaping and planting 
considerations, but unlikely to result in additional ecological impact over the 
approved design. They recommend that the proposed landscaping scheme is 
improved by focussing on increasing native and decreasing ornamental species. 

 
Western Power: An 11,000KV high voltage electricity cable currently runs through 
the site which forms part of the high voltage network for the Blenheim Industrial 
Estate, Hucknall areas and is an integral part of that network. Development of the 
site would require diversion of this cable. 

 
6 RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE 
 

National Planning Policy Framework: 
 
6.1  The NPPF emphasises the important role that planning plays in delivering 

sustainable development. Paragraph 7 explains that key to this is building a strong 
responsive and economy, supporting strong, vibrant and healthy communities and 
by protecting and enhancing the environment. 
 

6.2  Paragraph 14 states that there is a presumption in favour of sustainable 
development and that development should be approved, without delay, where it 
accords with the development plan. 
 

6.3  The NPPF sets out the core planning principles in paragraph 17, many of which 
apply to the proposed development. They include, amongst others, the 
requirements to proactively drive and support sustainable economic development’ 
secure high quality design; support the transition to a low carbon future, taking full 
account of flood risk and encouraging the reuse of existing resources and the use 
of renewable resources; contribute to conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment and reducing pollution; and managing patterns of growth to the make 
the fullest use of public transport, walking and cycling and to focus significant 
development in locations which are or can be made sustainable. 
 

6.4  Paragraph 52 attaches great importance to the design of the built environment and 
states that good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, indivisible from 
good planning. Paragraph 58 encourages developments to establish a sense of 
place, using streetscapes and buildings to create attractive and comfortable places 
to work. It advises further that developments should function well and add to the 
quality of the area over the lifetime of the development. 
 

6.5  The NPPF supports development that maximises the use of sustainable modes of 
transport. Paragraph 32 recommends the submission of a Transport Assessment; 
that opportunities for sustainable transport modes are taken; and that safe and 
suitable access can be achieved. It advises further that development should only be 
refused on transport grounds where the residual cumulative impacts of 
development are severe. Paragraph 35 states that development should be located 
and designed where it can accommodate the efficient delivery of goods; give 

Page 18



 

priority to pedestrian and cycle movements as well as access to high quality public 
transport facilities and create safe and secure layouts. Paragraph 36 promotes the 
use of Travel Plans to encourage sustainable travel. Paragraph 38 promotes 
developments that provide a mix of uses in order to provide opportunities for people 
to carry out day to day activities. 
 

6.6  Paragraph 93 identifies the key role planning plays in supporting the delivery of 
renewable and low carbon energy. This is seen to be central to the economic, 
social and environmental dimensions of sustainable development. Local Authorities 
should have a positive strategy to promote energy form renewable and low carbon 
sources and design their policies to maximise such development while ensuring 
that adverse impacts are addressed satisfactorily (paragraph 97). When 
determining applications for energy development Local Planning Authorities should 
not require applicants to demonstrate the overall need for renewable or low carbon 
energy and recognise that even small scale schemes can provide a valuable 
contribution to cutting greenhouse gas emissions. Applications should be approved 
if its impacts are (or can be made) acceptable (paragraph 98).  

 
6.7  The Government’s approach to managing the risk of flooding in relation to 

development is outlined in paragraph 100 with development directed to the area of 
least flood risk, wherever possible. When determining planning applications, local 
planning authorities should ensure flood risk is not increased elsewhere and only 
consider development appropriate in areas at risk of flooding where, informed by a 
site-specific flood risk assessment. 
 

6.8  The NPPF outlines how the planning system should contribute to and enhance the 
natural and local environment in paragraphs 109-125. If significant harm resulting 
from a development cannot be avoided (through locating on an alternative site with 
less harmful impacts), adequately mitigated, or, as a last resort, compensated for, 
then planning permission should be refused. Proposed development likely to have 
an adverse impact on a SSSI should not normally be permitted. Where an adverse 
impact on the sites notified special interest feature is likely an exception should only 
be made where the benefits of the development, at this site, clearly outweigh both 
the impacts that is likely to have on the features of the SSI and any broader impacts 
on the national network of SSSI’s (paragraph 118). 
 

6.9  To prevent unacceptable risks from pollution, paragraph 120 identifies that planning 
decisions should ensure that new development is appropriate for its location. The 
effects (including cumulative effects) of pollution on health, the natural environment 
or general amenity, and the potential sensitivity of the area or proposed 
development to adverse effects from pollution, should be taken into account. 
Planning decisions should aim to avoid noise from giving rise to significant adverse 
impacts on health and quality of life as a result of new development.(paragraph 
123). 

The EU Waste Framework Directive with Waste Hierarchy 

6.10 The waste hierarchy is both a guide to sustainable waste management and a legal 
requirement of the revised EU Waste Framework Directive.  It is enshrined in law 
through the Waste (England and Wales Regulations 2011 and lays down a priority 
order of what constitutes the best overall environmental option for managing waste.  
The hierarchy is applied in the planning system through national waste planning 
policy within PPS10. 
 

Page 19



 

 
The Waste Hierarchy 
 

6.11 Energy from waste is generally seen as recovery within the waste hierarchy but in fact 
it can sit in a number of places within the waste hierarchy depending upon the 
feedstock and the efficiency within which it is performed.  

6.12 The Government sees a long term role for energy from waste. To be consistent with 
the EU Directive and the waste hierarchy this long term role needs to be based on 
energy from waste that at least constitutes recovery not disposal. The status of the 
plant is therefore a key consideration for the planning assessment of new energy from 
waste projects.  

6.13 To be classed as recovery, energy from waste facilities must meet the requirements 
set out in the Waste Framework Directive, the aim being to get ‘the most energy out 
of waste’ as opposed to ‘the most waste into energy recovery’.  The Waste 
Framework Directive incorporates an efficiency calculation (known as the R1 
formulae) which effectively sets a threshold by which to determine whether the 
operation of an incineration plant can be considered as a more efficient recovery 
operation or lower efficient disposal facility The  ‘R1’ efficiency  threshold set out 
within the Directive is set at score 0.65.   

 
Planning Policy Statement 10: Planning for Sustainable Waste Management 
(PPS10) 
 

6.14 Whilst a significant element of the development is for employment based uses the 
EfW facility has to be viewed as a major waste management facility fuelled by 
residual waste. This requires the development to be considered against the 
relevant national and local waste planning policies.  

 
6.15 National waste policy reflects the wider context of European law on waste 

management.  Pivotal to this legal framework is the revised EU Waste Framework 
Directive (2008/98/EC) which sets out legislative for the collection, transport, 
recovery and disposal of waste.  The aspirations of the Framework Directive for 
waste management which can be delivered through planning are enshrined in 
PPS10. PPS10 establishes the national policy for land use matters relevant to 
waste management.   

 
6.16 PPS10 identifies that ‘positive planning’ has an important role to play in delivering 

sustainable waste management by inter alia ‘providing sufficient opportunities for 
new waste management facilities of the right type, in the right place and at the right 
time’ (paragraph 2). Moving waste management up the waste hierarchy remains a 

Page 20



 

 

 through driving waste management up 

k in which communities take more responsibility for their 
 

upporting targets, which 

e set 

ndangering human 

 of waste 

f new development supports sustainable 

 
6.17  aragraphs 22-32 set out the approach that should be taken by Waste Planning 

e a 

overnment Waste Strategy – Review of Waste Policy in England 2011 

he review sets out the government vision for a ‘zero waste’ economy in which 
ly 

n 

 
.18 Greater Nottingham Aligned Core Strategies (Adopted September 2104) 

Policy A: Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development. 

olicy 1: Climate Change. 

olicy 4: Employment Provision and Economic Development. 

olicy 10: Design and Enhancing Local Identity. 

olicy 14: Managing Travel Demand. 

olicy 17: Biodiversity. 
 

key objective of Government waste policy in order to reduce the environmental 
impact of waste and is therefore included as a key planning objective in PPS10.
Other key objectives include (paragraph 3): 

 help deliver sustainable development
the waste hierarchy, addressing waste as a resource and looking to disposal 
as the last option; 

 provide a framewor
own waste, and enable sufficient and timely provision of waste management
facilities to meet the needs of their communities; 

 help implement the national waste strategy, and s
are consistent with obligations required under European legislation and 
support and complement other guidance and legal controls such as thos
out in the Waste Management Licensing Regulations; 

 help secure the recovery or disposal of waste without e
health and without harming the environment, and enable waste to be 
disposed of in one of the nearest appropriate installations;  

 reflect the concerns and interests of communities, the needs
collection authorities, waste disposal authorities and business, and 
encourage competitiveness;  

 ensure the design and layout o
waste management 

P
Authorities (WPAs) in determining planning applications. Where proposals are 
consistent with an up-to-date development plan, WPAs should not require 
applicants for new or enhanced waste management facilities to demonstrat
quantitative or market need for the proposal (paragraph 22). 
 
G
 
T
material resources are re-used, recycled or recovered wherever possible and on
disposed of as a last resort option. It sets out the government’s support for energy 
from waste as waste recovery method through a range of technologies and 
believed that there is potential for the sector to grow further, noting the carbo
savings and potential energy benefits from the process (Para 207). 

6
 
 

 
P
 
P
 
P
 
P
 
P

Page 21



 

.19 Nottingham Local Plan (November 2005): 

ST1 - Sustainable Communities. 

 - Industrial Development Expansion. 

E1 - Sites of Special Scientific Interest. 

E2 - Natural Conservation. 

E3 - Conservation of Species. 

E4 - Biological or Geological Sites of Importance for Nature Conservation. 

E5 - Trees. 

E9 - Pollution. 

E10 - Water Quality and Flood Protection. 

E13 - Contamination/Dereliction. 

E14 - Renewable Energy. 

E15 - Waste Implications of Major Development. 

2 - Planning S106 / Conditions.  

3 - Car, Cycle and Servicing Parking. 
 
.20 Nottingham Waste Local Plan (2002) saved policies 

3.3 - Plant and Buildings. 

3.4 - Screening 

3.5 - Water Resources 

3.6 - Water Resources. 

3.7 - Odour. 

3.8 - Litter. 

3.9 - Noise 

3.10 - Dust. 

3.1 - Mud. 
 

- Road Traffic. 

3.15 - Road Traffic. 

6
 

  
E2
  
N
  
N
  
N
 
N
 
N
  
N
  
N
  
N
  
N
  
N
 
T
 
T

6
 
W
 
W
 
W
 
W
 
W
 
W
 
W
 
W
 
W
 
W3.14 
 
W
 

Page 22



 

3.22 - Nature Conservation. 

3.23 – Nature Conservation. 

dopted Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Core Strategy (2013): 

6.21 he Waste Core Strategy was adopted in December 2013 and therefore this policy 

ed 
 

 
– Presumption in favour of sustainable development. States that where 

Plan) 
              

 
- Future waste provision. States that new or extended energy recovery 

te 
 

CS4 – Broad locations for waste management facilities. States that the 
r close to 

CS7 – General Site Criteria. Supports proposals for Energy Recovery proposals 

CS9 – New and Emerging Technologies. Encourages new waste treatment 
e 

CS12 – Managing our own Waste. Supports proposals that provide additional 

 needs 

CS13 – Protecting our Environment. Supports new waste treatment facilities only 

 
uld 

CS14 - Managing Climate Change. States that new facilities should be located, 

CS15 – Design of Waste Management Facilities. Supports proposals for new 

W
 
W
 
A
 
T
guidance should be attributed considerable weight in making planning decisions on 
proposed waste management facilities. The Core Strategy sets out local waste 
planning policy for Nottingham and Nottinghamshire. Its content have been guid
by the Waste Framework Directive and its establishment of the waste hierarchy and
by PPS10 and is therefore consistent with national policy. 
 

 WCS1 
planning applications accord with policies in this Core Strategy (and, where 
relevant, with the policies in other plans which form part of the Development 
will be approved without delay, unless materials consideration indicate otherwise.   
 
WCS3 
facilities will be permitted only where it can be shown that this would divert was
that would otherwise need to be disposed of and the heat and/or power generated
can be used locally or fed into the National Grid. 
 
W
development of large-scale waste treatment facilities will be supported in o
the built up areas of Nottingham and Mansfield/Ashfield. 
 
W
(including Gasification and Pyrolysis) on allocated employment sites and industrial 
estates. 
 
W
facilities making use of new or emerging technologies where this will lead to th
more efficient and sustainable management of waste. 
 
W
capacity to manage waste produced within Nottinghamshire and Nottingham. In 
respect of facilities managing waste from outside of these areas, proposals 
supported provided they make a significant contribution to meeting the waste
of Nottingham and Nottinghamshire; or there are wider social, economic or 
environmental sustainability benefits. 
 
W
where it can be demonstrated that there would be no unacceptable impact on 
environmental quality or the quality of life for those living or working nearby and
where this would not result in an unacceptable cumulative impact. Proposals sho
maximise opportunities to enhance the local environment through landscape, 
habitat ore community facilities. 
 
W
designed and operated to minimise impacts on, and increase adaptability to, 
climate change. 
 
W

Page 23



 

6.22 lenheim Lane Nottingham Energy Park – Informal planning Guidance 

n to it 

7. PPRAISAL OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

waste management facilities that incorporate high standards of design and 
landscaping including sustainable construction measures. 
 
B
(January 2102). While this document sets out planning principles for the 
development of the site as an energy park, minimal weight should be give
given it does not form part of the development plan and has not been through a 
robust consultation process. 
 
A  

Main Issues 

ciple of the development:- 

ent and Energy from Waste Development 
ontamination, 

Visual impact, Layout and Urban 

 
Issue (i) Principle of the development – employment, waste management and 

7.1 his application is made under Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 

on a 

ct 

 

) Employment (NPPF, Aligned Core Strategy: A and 4, Adopted Local Plan: 

 
.2 he site is allocated in the adopted Local Plan as a proposed employment site 

his 

1 of 

its 

 
.3 The principle of the scheme as a whole was established by the previous June 2014 

 
 
  

i) Prin
a) Employment,  
b) Waste managem

ii) Environmental impacts- Air Quality, Noise, Geology, Soils and C
Ecology, Conservation and Flood Risk  

iii) Environmental impacts- Landscape and 
Design 

energy. 
 
T
1990, which enables applications for planning permission to be made for a 
development subject to different conditions to the ones previously imposed 
planning permission. On consideration of such an application, section 73 limits 
consideration to the question of the conditions subject to which a new planning 
permission may be granted. Any decision of the Committee will not have the effe
interfering with the approved principle of the development as the exiting planning 
permission is left intact. The report therefore considers only the significance of the
changes to the scheme. 
 
a

ST1 , E2.2 and Nottingham Waste Core Strategy: WCS7) 
 

7 T
E2.2. Local Plan Policy E2 advises that planning permission will be granted on t
site for industrial development within employment classes B1, B2 and B8. The 
development would support the Aligned Core Strategy policy 4, and policies ST
the Local Plan in their aim of promoting economic prosperity for all and the creation 
of a successful economy and sustainable community. The provision of the EfW 
facility, whilst not falling within the normal range of employment, would generate 
own employment and is a complimentary element of the operation of the remainder 
of the site. Policy WCS7 of the Waste Core Strategy supports the location of large 
sized gasification plants on land allocated for employment uses.  

7
planning permission and the proposed mix of employment uses remain unchanged 
by the current proposal and is therefore in accordance with the strategic land use 
allocation as an employment site. The development would continue to create 
deliver 12,137m2 of new industrial floor space which falls within the within 

Page 24



 

employment classes B1, B2 and B8 and up 250 jobs of different types, giving 
people the opportunity to access local employment. 

 
7.4 As with the 2014 planning permission, it is recommended that the capacity of the 

EfW be restricted by condition in order to maintain the employment component of 
the scheme. This would also safeguard wider environmental impacts that may 
occur from a more intensive waste processing operation. The condition requiring 
the manufacturing, research and development and office element of the scheme is 
built and ready for occupation would also remain in place. 

 
b) Waste Management and Energy from Waste development (Waste 

Framework Directive, PPS 10, Waste Local Plan: W6.3 and W3.1 and  the 
Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Core Strategy:WCS1, WCS3, 
WCS4, WCS7, WCS9, and WCS12, NPPF, Adopted Local Plan: NE14) 

 
7.5 No changes are proposed to the EfW facilities approved waste capacity of 160,000 

tonnes of waste a year. Planning Policy and Nottinghamshire County Council 
therefore consider that the proposed changes to the site layout would raise no new 
issues on waste policy grounds.  

 
7.6 A full appraisal of the proposals waste policy implications is set out in the appraisal 

section of the attached June 2014 committee report for the original planning 
application. 

 
7.7 As with the June 2014 planning permission, conditions requiring the EfW to be CHP 

(combined heat and power) ready to address future opportunities to utilise heat and 
the requirement that R1 Status (design specification) to be secured prior to EfW 
facility being brought into use would be imposed. 

 
ii) Environmental Impacts of the Development: Air Quality, Noise, Geology, 
Soils and Contamination, Ecology, Conservation and Flood Risk (NPPF, PPS 
10, Aligned Core Strategy: 1, 10, 14, 17 Adopted Local Plan: NE1, NE2, NE3, 
NE4, NE9, NE10, NE12 Adopted Waste Local Plan W3.1, W3.3, W3.5. W3.6, 
W3.7, W3.8, W3.9, W3.10, W3.14, W3.15, W3.22, W3.23 and Waste Core 
Strategy: WCS10, WCS12, WCS13 and WCS14). 

 
7.8 The proposed changes to the site layout result from the need to accommodate 

additional equipment within the site layout, to improve operational efficiency, 
introduce further cost savings and to reflect the layout submitted to the Environment 
Agency (EA) as part of the Environmental Permitting process for the EfW facility. 

 
7.9 The main components of the development, ie buildings and equipment, approved in 

June 2014 remain unchanged. The gasification technology (RODECS system) 
which is used to process residual waste to generate the synthetic gas which would 
then be used as a fuel to generate power in the form of electricity and steam would 
also remain unchanged, together with the amount of waste to be processed. As a 
result the proposed changes to the site layout would not raise any further 
implications in terms of the developments impact on air quality, noise, geology, soils 
and ground contamination, ecology and conservation and flood risk.  

 
7.10 Furthermore, the EA have confirmed that an Environmental Permit has been 

approved for the EfW facility and its layout as currently proposed. The 
Environmental Permitting process would have assessed the full environmental 
impact of emissions from the facility and would control emissions once in operation. 

Page 25



 

As the regulatory body for the Environmental Permitting process the EA would 
monitor the future operation of the facility to ensure that the Environmental Permit is 
being adhered to. 

 
7.11 The proposed amendments would not have any further impact on transport, traffic 

and parking. Vehicular movements to and from the site, access arrangements and 
the number of parking spaces provided remain unchanged. The number of vehicles 
required to transport material from the site would be much reduced, during the 
construction phase, due to the levels of the site now not being lowered. Details of 
the proposed access would be dealt with by condition. 

 
7.12  In terms of noise, the accompanying ES states that the inclusion of the proposed 

new equipment into the scheme would enable the number of air cooled condenser 
units to be reduced to one larger fan system. These larger fans run at lower speeds 
and as a result noise emission would be lower than those used in the original noise 
modelling. 

 
7.13  Whilst the surface area of the proposed attenuation pond has been reduced, its 

depth has been increased to ensure that the volume of surface water it is capable 
of storing would remain as originally proposed surface water drainage are proposed 
to be dealt with by condition. 

 
iii) Environmental Impacts of the Development: Landscape and Visual impact, 
Layout and Urban Design (NPPF, PPS 10, Aligned Core Strategy: 10; Adopted 
Waste Local Plan: W3.3 and W3.4 and Waste Core Strategy: WCS12) 

 
7.14 The main impact of the proposed changes to the proposed layout relate to 

landscape and visual impact. Accommodation of the additional buildings housing 
the new equipment has resulted in the site layout being reconfigured and an overall 
increase in the amount of built development on the site. This has led to a reduction 
in perimeter landscaping which together with proposals to keep site levels largely 
as existing, will inevitably result in this large scale development being more visible 
within its surrounding context, particularly when viewed from the new Blenheim 
allotments to the west and the golf course to the north west corner and northern 
boundary of the site. 

 
7.15 The visual impact of the change in proposed site levels largely impact upon views 

of the development from the allotment to the west and north east corner of the site, 
along Blenheim Lane. Along these boundaries the development would be up to 5m 
higher at this point. The proposed manufacturing building at 15m in height runs 
along the eastern boundary and is still proposed to be ‘cut’  into the slope to sit at a 
lower level than Blenheim Lane. Its height in relation to Blenheim Lane would 
however be generally consistent in size and form to that of the former Co-op 
building (14.5m height) located to its southern side of the Lane.  To reduce the 
visual impact of the development when viewed from the west and north west a 6m 
landscaped mound is to be provided in the north west corner of the site. This will 
provide a good visual screen in the long term and help ensure that the change in 
proposed site levels is minimised. 

 
7.16 In response to concerns raised by the County Council, the Biodiversity officer and 

Planning Policy, the applicant has further revised the landscape strategy for the site 
to include: 

 
 

Page 26



 

 The widening landscaping along the western boundary due to the reduction 
in the volume of the 2 gas accumulators. This will help provide a wider 
‘wildlife corridor requested by the Biodiversity Officer, as well as boost 
screening between the site and allotments. 

 Tree planting along the northern boundary of the site would now be a mix of 
species to provide better screening. A lower under storey of trees and 
shrubs is proposed to add further screening at the lower level as requested 
by the County Council. 

 The profile of the attenuation pond will be designed to encourage wildlife and 
species diversity with shelving being provided to the edge of the pond. 
Details of the pond profile would be dealt with by condition. 

 Reference has previously been made to the benefit additional tree planting 
on the newly establishment earth mounds along the golf course boundary 
would achieve in mitigating visual impact from the golf course and the Rolls 
Royce site beyond. Initial discussions have taken place between the 
applicant and Park and Open Spaces Manager who in principle agree to 
additional landscaping on the golf course mounds. The details of these 
landscape proposals will be presented to committee. 

 
7.17 It is considered that the revised landscaping proposals would help to further reduce 

the visual impact of the development, particularly when viewed from Bulwell Hall 
Park and the adjacent allotment site. Notwithstanding this, it is clear that the 
development would have a greater visual impact than the scheme as originally 
approved. However, the greater impact must be seen within the context of the 
substantial scale of the development as originally approved. It is considered, on 
balance, that the changes to the scheme, with the proposed landscaping mitigation, 
are acceptable and in accordance with the NPPF, PPS 10, Aligned Core Strategy: 
10; Adopted Waste Local Plan: W3.3 and W3.4 and Waste Core Strategy: WCS12. 

 
8. SUSTAINABILITY  (Aligned Core Strategy: 1 and Local Plan:NE14) 
 

The proposed layout changes would raise no additional implications on the 
sustainability benefits of the development. 

 
9 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None. 

 
10 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
The issues raised in this report are primarily ones of planning judgement. Should 
legal considerations arise these will be addressed at the meeting. 
 

11 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
The scheme will provide greater opportunities for local people from all sections of 
the community to access a wide range of jobs. 
 
 

12 RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
The management of emissions and residues will be controlled as part of the 
environmental permitting regulations. 
 

Page 27



 

The applicant has confirmed that the storage of syngas on the site would be below 
the levels controlled through the Hazardous Substance Consent (HSC) regime. 
 

13 STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 
 
Working Nottingham: This is a strategic employment site, the development of which 
will deliver local employment and training opportunities during both the construction 
and subsequent operation of the development. 
 
World Class Nottingham: a development that would enhance Nottingham’s standing 
for science and innovation, underpinned by a proven technology that will lead to the 
more efficient and sustainable management of waste. 

 
14 CRIME AND DISORDER ACT IMPLICATIONS 
 

The development will create a secured site with security lighting, site management 
and secure boundary fencing to provide improved surveillance and community 
safety in the area. 

 
15 VALUE FOR MONEY 

 
None. 
 

16 List of background papers other than published works or those disclosing 
confidential or exempt information 
 
1. Application No: 15/00893/PVAR3 - link to online case file: 
http://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=NLTOFVLYCB000 
 

2. Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 
2011. 
3. Consultation reply from Nottinghamshire County Council 05.05.15. 
4. City Councils highway consultation response 20.04.15 
5. Natural England consultation response 29.04.15 
6. Highway Agency consultation response 08.05.15. 
7. Biodiversity officer consultation responses 11.05.15 
8. Pollution Control consultation response 29.04.15 
9. Environment Agency consultation responses 22.04.15. 
10. Nottinghamshire Wildlife Trust consultation responses 06.05.15 
11. Planning Policy consultation response 26.05.15. 
12. HSE consultation response 06.05.15. 
13. Severn Trent Water consultation response 01.06.15. 
14. Ashfield District Council consultation response 04.06.15. 
15. Broxtowe District Council consultation response 15.05.15. 
16. Letter of representation from a resident of Langdown Close 05.05.15. 
17. Western Power consultation response 24.04.15. 
18. . Letter of representation from a resident of Thames Street 29.04.15 

 
17 Published documents referred to in compiling this report 

 
Nottingham Local Plan (November 2005) 
 
 
 

Page 28

http://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=%5END,KEYVAL.DCAPPL;
http://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=%5END,KEYVAL.DCAPPL;


 

Contact Officer:  
Mrs Jo Briggs, Case Officer, Development Management.  
Email: joanna.briggs@nottinghamcity.gov.uk.      Telephone: 0115 8764041

Page 29



© Crown Copyright and database right 2014. Ordnance Survey License number 100019317

NPage 30



 
   

 - 1 -  

Continued… 

Not for issue 
DRAFT ONLY 

 

My Ref: 15/00893/PVAR3 (PP-04043709) 

Your Ref:  

 
Contact: Mrs Jo Briggs 

Email: development.management@nottinghamcity.gov.uk 

 
 
Amberley Consulting Ltd 
Ms Clair Donnelly 
PO Box 567 
Dorking 
Surrey 
RH4 9GN 
 

  
Development Management 
City Planning 
Loxley House 
Station Street 
Nottingham 
NG2 3NG 
 
Tel: 0115 8764447 
www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk 
 

Date of decision:  
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990 
APPLICATION FOR PLANNING PERMISSION 
 
  
Application No: 15/00893/PVAR3 (PP-04043709) 
Application by: Chinook Sciences Ltd 
Location: Blenheim Gardens Allotments, Blenheim Lane, Nottingham 
Proposal: Energy from waste facility (160,000 tonnes of waste per annum capacity), 

manufacturing, research and development facility and associated offices. 
(Revised design S73 application to vary condition S1 of planning permission 
reference 13/03051/PMFUL3). 

  
 
Nottingham City Council as Local Planning Authority hereby GRANTS PLANNING PERMISSION 
for the development described in the above application subject to the following conditions:- 
 

  

 1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before 2 July 2017 (being the expiration of 
three years from the grant of planning permission reference 13/03051/PMFUL3). 
 
Reason: In accordance with Sections 73 and 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, 
as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 

 
 
 

 

2. The development shall not be commenced until the accesses on to Firth Way have been 
designed in accordance with details to be submitted and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
The development shall then be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety to comply with Policy 14 of the Aligned Core 
Strategy; Policy W3.1 and W3.14 of the Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Local Plan 
(2002) and Policy WCS13 of the Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Core Strategy. 
 

Time limit 

Pre-commencement conditions 
(The conditions in this section require further matters to be submitted to the local planning authority 
for approval before starting work) 

Page 31



 
   

 - 2 -  

Continued… 

Not for issue 
DRAFT ONLY 

3. The development shall not be commenced until off-site traffic management works along Firth 
Way are provided in accordance with details to be first submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety to comply with Policy 14 of the Aligned Core 
Strategy;  Policy BE2 of the Nottingham Local Plan (2005); Policy W3.1 and W3.14 of the 
Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Local Plan (2002) and Policy WCS13 of the 
Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Core Strategy. 
 

4. The development shall not be commenced until a scheme to treat and remove suspended 
solids from surface water run-off during construction works has been submitted to, and 
approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority.  
 
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved scheme. 
 
Reason: To protect surface water and groundwater quality in the area and in the interests of 
the health and safety of the occupiers of the development and/or adjoining occupiers to 
comply with Policies 1 and 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy; Policies NE9, NE10 and NE12 of 
the Nottingham Local Plan (2005); Policies W3.5 and W3.6 of the Nottinghamshire and 
Nottingham Waste Local Plan (2002) and Policy WCS13 of the Nottinghamshire and 
Nottingham Waste Core Strategy. 
 

5. Protection measures for the perimeter hedgerows and in particular relation to the hedgerow 
along the southern boundary of the site shall be implemented in accordance with the details 
approved under consent ref. 15/00185/PDS4, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
No equipment, machinery or materials shall be brought onto the site in connection with the 
development until the approved hedgerow protection measures have been installed. 
 
The hedgerow protection measures shall remain in place for the duration the construction of 
the development and shall not be removed until all equipment, machinery and surplus 
materials have been removed from the site. 
 
Reason: In the interests of the Site of Importance for Nature Conservation to comply with  
Policy 17 of the Aligned Core Strategy; Policy NE4 of the Nottingham Local Plan (2005); Policy 
W3.3  of the Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Local Plan (2002) and Policies WCS13 
and WCS15 of the Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Core Strategy. 
 

6. No part of the development shall be commenced until details of all external materials and their 
finish, including that of the proposed gas accumulators, of all buildings and structures have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans. 
 
Reason: To minimise the visual impact of the development and to ensure that the appearance 
of the development is satisfactory to comply with Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy; Policy 
W3.3 and W3.4 of the Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Local Plan (2002) and Policies 
WCS13 and WCS15 of the Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Core Strategy. 
 

Page 32



 
   

 - 3 -  

Continued… 

Not for issue 
DRAFT ONLY 

7. The development shall not be commenced until a surface water drainage scheme, including 
details for the disposal of foul sewage for the site, based on sustainable drainage principles, 
and an assessment of the hydrological and hydrogeological context of the development, has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The drainage 
strategy should demonstrate the surface water run-off generated up to and including the 100 
years plus an appropriate allowance for climate change critical storm will not exceed the run 
off from the undeveloped site following the corresponding rainfall event.  
 
The scheme shall subsequently be implemented in accordance with the approved details prior 
to the development being brought into operation. 
 
The scheme shall also include: 
- The utilisation of holding sustainable drainage techniques; 
- The limitation of surface water run-off to equivalent greenfield rates; 
- Two forms of water treatment prior to discharge from the site; 
- Utilisation of soakaway techniques if ground investigation deems possible; 
- Utilisation of permeable surfacing; 
- Responsibility for the future maintenance of drainage features. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the development is provided with a satisfactory means of drainage, to 
prevent the increased risk of flooding, both on and off site, provide water quality, biodiversity, 
water supply and amenity benefits and to ensure that there is no contamination of the 
underlying aquifer or surrounding water courses from surface water run-offs to comply with 
Policy 1 of the Aligned Core Strategy; Policy NE10 of the Nottingham Local Plan (2005); 
Policies W3.5 and W3.6 of the Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Local Plan (2002) and 
Policies and WCS13 and WCS15 of the Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Core 
Strategy. 
 

8. The development shall not be commenced until details of safe, secure and lit cycle storage for 
a minimum of 54 cycles and 12 powered two wheeler vehicles (PTW), including their location 
within the development, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
Reason: In the interests of sustainable transport to comply with Policies 10 and 14 of the 
Aligned Core Strategy; Policy T2 of the Nottingham Local Plan (2005) and Policy WCS 11 of 
the Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Core Strategy. 
 

9. The development shall not be commenced until a detailed landscaping and planting scheme 
indicating the type, height, species and location of the proposed trees and shrubs has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
 
Reason: To minimise the visual impact of the development, to ensure that the appearance of 
the development is satisfactory and to promote nature conservation interests on the site to 
comply with Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy; Policy W3.4 of the Nottinghamshire and 
Nottingham Waste Local Plan (2002) and Policies WCS13 and WCS15 of the Nottinghamshire 
and Nottingham Waste Core Strategy. 
 

Page 33



 
   

 - 4 -  

Continued… 

Not for issue 
DRAFT ONLY 

10. The development shall not be commenced until details of all materials for the hard surfacing of 
footpaths, access, circulation and car parking areas serving the development, to include the 
use of permeable surfacing, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the appearance of the development is satisfactory to comply with 
Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy; Policy W3.3 and W3.4 of the Nottinghamshire and 
Nottingham Waste Local Plan (2002) and Policies WCS13 and WCS15 of the Nottinghamshire 
and Nottingham Waste Core Strategy. 
 

11. The development shall not be commenced until specific details of sustainable design features 
to be incorporated as part of the development has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: In the interests of sustainable development to comply with Policy 10 of the Aligned 
Core Strategy and Policy WCS15 of the Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Core 
Strategy . 
 

12. The development shall not be commenced until details of an external lighting scheme for the 
development, to include details of light spillage and to take account of potential bat foraging 
routes along perimeter hedgerows, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To minimise the visual impact of the development, to ensure that the appearance of 
the development is satisfactory and to protect nature conservation interests; to comply with 
Policy 10 and 17 of the Aligned Core Strategy; Policy NE3 of the Nottingham Local Plan 
(2005); Policy W3.3, W3.4 and W3.23 of the Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Local 
Plan (2002) and Policies WCS13 and WCS15 of the Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste 
Core Strategy. 
 

13. The development shall not be commenced until details of the attenuation pond, to include 
measures to promote wildlife biodiversity, have been submitted to and agreed in writing with 
the Local Planning Authority 
 
Reason: To promote nature conservation interest on the site to comply with Policy 17 of the 
Aligned Core Strategy; Policy NE3 of the Nottingham Local Plan (2005) and Policies WCS13 
and WCS15 of the Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Core Strategy 
  
 

 
 

 

14. Prior to the Energy from Waste facility being brought into use the applicant shall submit to the 
Local Planning Authority verification that the  Energy from Waste facility has achieved Stage 1 
(design information) R1 Status from the Environment Agency. 
 
Reason: To confirm the recovery status of the Energy from Waste facility and ensure that the 
development would move waste up the waste hiercahy to comply with Policy WCS3 of the 
Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Core Strategy  
 

Pre-occupation conditions 
(The conditions in this section must be complied with before the development is occupied) 

Page 34



 
   

 - 5 -  

Continued… 

Not for issue 
DRAFT ONLY 

15. Prior to the Energy from Waste facility being brought into use and notwithstanding the 
submitted plans details of how the facility would be made 'CHP ready' shall be submitted to 
and agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To confirm the recovery status of the Energy from Waste facility and ensure that the 
development would move waste up the waste hiercahy to comply with Policy WCS3 of the 
Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Core Strategy.  
 
 

16. Prior to first occupation of the development, the following shall be submitted to and be 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority: 
 
a)    A Verification Report, which shall include the data referred to in the Verification Plan, to 
demonstrate that the approved Remediation Strategy to deal with ground gas contamination of 
the site in accordance with the details approved under consent ref. 14/02638/PDS4 has been 
fully implemented and completed.    
 
b)    A Verification Report, which shall include the data referred to in the Verification Plan, to 
demonstrate that the approved Remediation Strategy to deal with ground and groundwater 
contamination of the site in accordance with the details approved under consent ref. 
14/02638/PDS4 has been fully implemented and completed.     
 
Reason: To protect surface water and groundwater quality in the area and in the interests of 
the health and safety of the occupiers of the development and/or adjoining occupiers to 
comply with Policies NE9, NE10 and NE12 of the Nottingham Local Plan (2005); Policy W3.5 
and W3.6 of the Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Local Plan (2002) and Policy WCS13 
of the Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Core Strategy. 
 

17. The Construction Management Plan shall be implemented in accordance with the details 
approved under consent ref. 14/03093/PDS4 prior to the first use of the development unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To avoid prejudice to traffic conditions within the vicinity of the site and to safeguard 
the amenities of neighbouring residents to comply with Policies 10 and 14 of the Aligned Core 
Strategy,  Policies T3 and NE9 of the Nottingham Local Plan (2005); Policy W3.10 and W3.11 
of the Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Local Plan (2002) and Policy WCS13 of the 
Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Core Strategy. 
 

18. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be brought into use until the parking, 
turning and servicing areas are provided and surfaced in a bound material with the parking 
bays clearly delineated in accordance with plans to be first submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The parking, turning and servicing areas shall be 
maintained in the bound material for the life of the development and shall not be used for any 
purpose other than the parking, turning, loading and unloading of vehicles.  
 
Reason: To ensure that adequate off-street parking provision is made to reduce the 
possibilities of the proposed development leading to on-street parking in the area to comply 
with Policy 14 of the Aligned Core Strategy;  Policy T3 of the Nottingham Local Plan; Policy 
W3.1 and W3.14 of the Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Local Plan (2002) and Policy 
WCS13 of the Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Core Strategy. 
 

Page 35



 
   

 - 6 -  

Continued… 

Not for issue 
DRAFT ONLY 

19. The ecological enhancements for the site including bird, bat boxes and the specification of the 
brown roof shall be carried out in accordance with the details approved under consent ref. 
14/02638/PDS4 prior to the first use of the development unless otherwise agreed in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To promote nature conservation interest on the site to comply with Policy 17 of the 
Aligned Core Strategy; Policy NE3 of the Nottingham Local Plan (2005) and Policies WCS13 
and WCS15 of the Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Core Strategy 
  
 

20. The means of enclosing the site shall be carried out in accordance with the details approved 
under consent ref. 14/02748/PDS4 prior to the first use of the development unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the appearance of the development is satisfactory to comply with 
Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy; Policies W3.3 and W3.4 of the Nottinghamshire and 
Nottingham Waste Local Plan (2002) and Policies WCS13 and WCS15 of the Nottinghamshire 
and Nottingham Waste Core Strategy. 
 

21. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the method statement for the 
enhancement and maintenance of the retained hedgerows approved under consent ref: 
14/02638/PDS4 prior to the first use of the development unless otherwise agreed in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: In the interests of protecting the Site of Importance for Nature Conservation, to 
ensure that the appearance of the development is satisfactory and to promote nature 
conservation interests on the site to comply with Policy 17 of the Aligned Core Strategy; Policy 
NE4 of the Nottingham Local Plan (2005); Policies W3.4 and W3.23 of the Nottinghamshire 
and Nottingham Waste Local Plan (2002) and WCS15 of the Nottinghamshire and Nottingham 
Waste Core Strategy. 
 

 
 

 

22. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved finished site levels of 
the site and buildings/plant contained within it (dwg refs:  SE-12-A10 Rev D and SE-12-A11 
Rev E) unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To minimise the visual impact of the development and to ensure that the appearance 
of the development is satisfactory to comply with Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy; Policy 
W3.3 and W3.4 of the Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Local Plan (2002) and Policies 
WCS13 and WCS15 of the Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Core Strategy. 
 

23. The development (and proposed mitigation measures) shall be carried out in accordance with 
the Environmental Statement, received on 7th April  2015. In particular, the total quantity of 
waste material processed at the site shall not exceed 160,000 tonnes per annum, the 
composition of which shall be as described in the submitted Environmental Statement. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the envisaged environmental impacts of the development are 
mitigated, and to determine the scope of the permission.  
 
 

Regulatory/ongoing conditions 
(Conditions relating to the subsequent use of the development and other regulatory matters) 

Page 36



 
   

 - 7 -  

Continued… 

Not for issue 
DRAFT ONLY 

24. Servicing and delivery to and from the premises, including the import and export of waste, 
shall not take place before 7.00am or after 7.00pm Mondays to Saturdays (excluding Bank 
Holidays), or at any time on Sundays or Bank Holidays. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenities of the occupants of development and nearby property in 
accordance with Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy; Policy NE9 of the Nottingham Local 
Plan; Policy W3.9 of the Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Local Plan (2002) and Policy 
WCS13 of the Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Core Strategy. 
 

25. The approved landscaping scheme shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding 
seasons following the occupation of the development and any trees or plants which die, are 
removed or become seriously damaged or diseased within a period of five years shall be 
replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation. 
 
Reason: To minimise the visual impact of the development, to ensure that the appearance of 
the development is satisfactory and to promote nature conservation interests on the site to 
comply with Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy; Policy W3.4 of the Nottinghamshire and 
Nottingham Waste Local Plan (2002) and Policies WCS13 and WCS15 of the Nottinghamshire 
and Nottingham Waste Core Strategy. 
 

26. A full travel plan with up-to-date staff and visitor travel survey data shall be submitted for 
approval by the Local Planning Authority no later than 6 months after initial occupation. This 
travel plan shall be based on the Framework Travel Plan submitted as part of this planning 
application and will make reference to schemes and developments that have occurred during 
the interim period. The full travel plan will use travel plan survey data to inform the 
development of a future travel planning strategy with a list of actions, implementation dates 
and revised targets. The Travel Plan shall include a named Travel Plan  coordinator, 
responsible for ensuring the activities and schemes included in the full Travel Plan are 
delivered and to monitor its performance targets, and annual travel plan surveys shall be 
carried out on an annual basis for a minimum of 5 years following initial occupation, with a 
Travel Plan update to be submitted and to the Local Planning Authority for approval within 3 
months of each survey date. 
 
Reason: In the interests of sustainable transport to comply with Policy 14 of the Aligned Core 
Strategy; Policy T2 of the Nottingham Local Plan (2005) and Policy WCS 11 of the 
Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Core Strategy. 
 

27. In the event that development or site clearance works have not begun by 1 July 2017, no part 
of the development shall be commenced (including remediation or site preparation) until 
details of an up to date ecological survey (and where species are found, suitable mitigation 
measures proposed) have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
Reason: To ensure that any protected species that may be present on site will be safeguarded 
from harm to comply with Policy 17 of the Aligned Core Strategy; Policy NE3 of the 
Nottingham Local Plan (2005) and Policy WCS13 of the Nottinghamshire and Nottingham 
Waste Core Strategy. 
 

Page 37



 
   

 - 8 -  

Continued… 

Not for issue 
DRAFT ONLY 

28. Emissions from the operation of plant and associated ancillary activities shall not result in, nor 
significantly contribute to, an exceedance of Air Quality Objectives at air quality sensitive 
receptor locations. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenities of the occupants of development and nearby property to 
comply with Policy NE9 of the Nottingham Local Plan (2005) and; Policy WCS13 of the 
Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Core Strategy. 
 

29. Where plant, equipment and ancillary activity noise is not subject to, or controlled by a 'Permit' 
issued by the Environment Agency, the noise generated by the facility as a whole, or any 
noise generating plant and equipment located on the site as part of the development shall be 
operated in such a way to ensure: 
  
a) The Rating noise level (calculated in accordance with BS4142 to account for 
distinguishable, discrete continuous note (whine, hiss, screech, hum) and/or if there are 
distinct impulses (bangs, clicks, clatters, thumps) where appropriate) emitted from the 
operation of the development shall not exceed background noise levels (LA90 +0dB) when 
measured at a point 1 metre from the window of any nearby noise sensitive residential 
dwelling (existing at the time of this permission). Consideration of noise from the operational 
facility must be fully in accordance with the methodology of BS4142: 1997-"Method of rating 
industrial noise affecting mixed residential and industrial areas" . 
  
b) Noise emitted from the operation of the development between the hours of 23:00 and 07:00 
when measured externally, at a point 1 metre from the window of any nearby noise sensitive 
residential dwelling (existing at the time of this permission), shall not increase facade noise 
levels of dwellings such that predicted or measured internal noise levels exceed NR 30 in 
bedrooms between the hours of 2300-0700 when measured as an LAeq, 1hour. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenities of the occupants of development and nearby property in 
accordance with Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy; Policy NE9 of the Nottingham Local 
Plan (2005); Policy W3.9 of the Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Local Plan (2002) and 
Policy WCS13 of the Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Core Strategy. 
 

30. The approved buildings shall not be used other than for their intended purpose and proposed 
floorspace for the manufacturing, research and development, offices and the Energy from 
Waste facility element of the development, as shown on approved drawing SE_12_A01-REV-I. 
 
Reason: To maintain the employment and regeneration benefits of the site to comply with 
Policy 4 of the Aligned Core Strategy and Policy E2 and E3 of the Nottingham Local Plan 
(2005). 
 

31. The Energy from Waste facility shall not be brought into operation and no waste for processing 
shall be brought onto the site until  the manufacturing, research and development and office 
buildings have been constructed and made available for use. 
 
Reason: In order to facilitate the regeneration of the site and to ensure that the operation of 
the Energy from Waste plant does not prejudice the availability of other land within the site for 
employment purposes in accordance with Policy 4 of the Aligned Core Strategy and Policy E2 
and E3 of the Nottingham Local Plan (2005). 
 

Page 38



 
   

 - 9 -  

Continued… 

Not for issue 
DRAFT ONLY 

32. The development shall only be carried out in accordance with the approved Energy Report, 
Appendix D of the Environmental Statement received  7th April 2015, which states that the 
energy produced by the  Energy from Waste element of the development would be used to 
provide energy to the whole of the development and potential surplus would be exported to the 
National Grid. The approved energy scheme shall be implemented and continue in operation 
so as to provide energy for the development for as long as the development remains. 
 
Reason: To provide 10% of energy by renewable means in accordance with Policy 1of the 
Aligned Core Strategy and NE15 of the Nottingham Local Plan (2005). 
 

33. Notwithstanding the details submitted there shall be no open storage of waste on the site. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenities of the occupants of development and nearby property and to 
ensure that the appearance of the development is satisfactory to comply with Policy 10 of the 
Aligned Core Strategy;  Policy NE9 of the Nottingham Local Plan (2005); Policy W3.3, W3.4, 
W3.7 and W3.8 of the Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Local Plan (2002) and Policy 
WCS13 of the Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Core Strategy. 
 

Standard condition- scope of permission 

S1. Except as may be modified by the conditions listed above, the development shall be carried 
out in complete accordance with the details described in the forms, drawings and other 
documents comprising the application as validated by the council on 10 April 2015. 
 
Reason: To determine the scope of this permission. 

 
Informatives 
 
 1. The reason for this decision, and a summary of the policies the local planning authority has had 
regard to are set out in the committee report, enclosed herewith and forming part of this decision. 
 
 2. This permission is valid only for the purposes of Part III of the Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. It does not remove the need to obtain any other consents that may be necessary, nor does it 
imply that such other consents will necessarily be forthcoming. It does not override any restrictions 
contained in the deeds to the property or the rights of neighbours. You are advised to check what 
other restrictions there are and what other consents may be needed, for example from the 
landowner, statutory bodies and neighbours.  This permission is not an approval under the Building 
Regulations. 
 
 3. Contaminated Land, Ground Gas & Groundwater 
 
The Remediation Strategy (including its component elements) must be undertaken and 
implemented in accordance with Defra and the Environment Agency's guidance 'Model Procedures 
for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11' and other authoritative guidance. 
 
Following completion of the development, no construction work, landscaping or other activity must 
be undertaken which may compromise the remediation measures implemented to deal with ground, 
groundwater and ground gas contamination of the site.   
 
 Any ground gas protection measures included in the original development are designed for the 
buildings as originally constructed to protect against possible dangers to public health and safety 
arising from any accumulation of methane, carbon dioxide or other gas and to ensure that the site 
can be developed and used without health or safety risks to the occupiers of the development 
and/or adjoining occupiers.  These protection measures may be compromised by any future 
extension of the footprint of the original building or new building structures within the curtilage of the 

Page 39



 
   

 - 10 -  

Continued… 

Not for issue 
DRAFT ONLY 

site including the erection of a garage, shed, conservatory or porch or similar structure.  Advice 
from the Council's Pollution Control Team regarding appropriate gas protection measures must be 
sought should future extension of the footprint of the original building or new building structures 
within the curtilage of the site be proposed (regardless of whether the proposed construction 
requires planning permission or building regulation approval).  
 
 It is a requirement of current Building Regulations that basic radon protection measures are 
installed in all new constructions, extensions conversions & refurbishments on sites which are 
Radon Class 3 or 4 and full radon protection measure are installed on site which are Radon Class 5 
or higher.  Advice from the Council's Pollution Control Team regarding appropriate gas protection 
measures must be sought where there are both radon issues and ground gas issues present. 
 
The responsibility and subsequent liability for safe development and secure occupancy of the site 
rests with the developer and/or the landowner.  The developer is required to institute a thorough 
investigation and assessment of the ground conditions, nature and degree of contamination on the 
site to ensure that actual or potential risks to public health and safety can be overcome by 
appropriate remedial, preventive or precautionary measures.  The developer shall provide at his 
own expense such evidence as is required to indicate clearly that the risks associated with ground, 
groundwater and ground gas contamination of the site has been addressed satisfactorily. 
 
 4. The Highways team have given the following advice in respect of the attached conditions: 
 
1.In order to carry out the off site works required you will be undertaking work in the public highway 
which is land subject to the provisions of the Highways Act 1980 (as amended) and therefore land 
over which you have no control. In order to undertake the works you will need to enter into an 
agreement under Section 278 of the act. Please contact Liz Hiskens on 0115 876 5293 for details. 
2. It is an offence under S148 and S151 of the Highways Act 1980 to deposit mud on the public 
highway and as such you should undertake every effort to prevent it from occurring. 
3. For information pertaining to the travel plan please contact Matthew Price (0115) 876 3947 
4. As the proposal includes works adjacent to the highway, the Highways Network Management 
Team at Loxley House should be notified regarding when the works will be carried out as 
disturbance to the highway will occur. Please contact them on 0115 876 5238 at the earliest 
convenience. 
5. The proposed access/off site highway works referred to in the conditions above require a Traffic 
Regulation Order before the development commences to provide safe access/off site mitigating 
works. The developer should note that the Order can be made on behalf of the developer by 
Nottinghamshire County Council at the expense of the developer. This is a separate legal process 
and the applicant should contact Liz Hiskens on 0115 876 5293 for details. All associated costs will 
be borne by the applicant. 
 
 5. The Environment Agency recommend: 
 
1. The Environment Agency does not consider oversized pipes or box culverts as sustainable 
drainage. Should infiltration not be feasible at the site, alternative above ground sustainable 
drainage should be used. 
  
3. Surface water run-off should be controlled as near to its source as possible through a 
sustainable drainage approach to surface water management. Sustainable Drainage Systems 
(SuDS) are an approach to managing surface water run-off which seeks to mimic natural drainage 
systems and retain water on-site as opposed to traditional drainage approaches which involve 
piping water off-site as quickly as possible. 
  
4. SuDS involve a range of techniques including methods appropriate to impermeable sites that 
hold water in storage areas e.g. ponds, basins, green roofs etc rather than just the use of infiltration 
techniques. Support for the SuDS approach is set out in NPPF and CIRIA C697 guidance. 

Page 40



 
   

 - 11 -  

Continued… 

Not for issue 
DRAFT ONLY 

 
5. If infiltration into the ground is to be adopted as the primary means of disposing surface water 
from the site, we would require infiltration testing to be undertaken in accordance with BRE 365 
guidance (prior to any works commencing) to formulate a suitable surface water drainage strategy. 
  
6. The Flood Risk Assessment indicates that an attenuation pond with an area of 2,630m2 and 
1.97m deep is to be provided to accommodate the indicated required attenuation volume of 
4,950m3.  
  
7. Whilst we accept that the proposed surface water drainage strategy is subject to detailed design, 
we require the proposed SuDS scheme to provide improvements to water quality, habitats and local 
amenity, therefore, we recommend that the depth of the pond is reduced and the attenuation 
embankments are constructed to a gradient of at least 1:3 to favour vegetation growth and to 
reduce the risk of drowning to both people and wildlife.  
  
8. The proposed surface water attenuation does not appear to incorporate a freeboard. We 
recommend that a sufficient freeboard is incorporated within the surface water pond design to allow 
for exceedance and sufficient ground cover above the surface water drain. 
 
9. The Flood Risk Assessment indicates that the site has a Qbar runoff rate of 0.84 l/s and 
therefore the total permissible runoff rate from the site is to be limited to 5.8 l/s. 
 
10. My colleagues  have reviewed the submitted Geotechnical and Environmental Site investigation 
Report (URS November 2013) and are  satisfied with the conclusions in the report that no 
significant risks to controlled waters have been identified. However, no site investigation can fully 
characterise a site, and so a condition to deal ithe unxpected contamination is required. 
 
11. Current proposals do not propose to dispose of surface water via soakaways. If soakaways are 
to be considered we would wish to be reconsulted as currently we do not consider that soakaways 
would be appropriate for this site 
  
12. We endorse the efficient use of water, especially in new developments. New developments 
could take economic advantage of these technologies and should be considered. Wide spread use 
of these and other technologies that ensure efficient use of natural resources could support the 
environmental benefits of future proposals and could help attract investment to the area. 
  
13. Any facilities for the storage of oils, fuels or chemicals shall be sited on impervious bases and 
surrounded by impervious bund walls. The volume of the bunded compound shall be at least 
equivalent to the capacity of the tank plus 10%. If there is multiple tankage, the compound shall be 
at least equivalent to the capacity of the largest tank, vessel or the combined capacity of 
interconnected tanks or vessels plus 10%. All filling points, associated pipe work, vents, gauges 
and sight glasses must be located within the bund or have separate secondary containment. The 
drainage system of the bund shall be sealed with no discharge to any watercourse, land or 
underground strata. Associated pipe work shall be located above ground and protected from 
accidental damage. All filling points and tank/vessels overflow pipe outlets shall be detailed to 
discharge downwards into the bund. 
 
14. The increase in throughput proposed at this stage does not change our view to that held for the 
earlier application [13/00757/PMFIL3]. . We are yet to receive an application for an environmental 
permit, the details of which will inform our technical determination. It is noted that the stack  
emission points may be elevated from previous due to the higher mass release from the process. 
This will be assessed by us during the permit determination. 
  
15. It is noted that the operator retains the description in the Environmental Statement that under 
the Waste Framework Directive the operation will be an R1 recovery activity. To be considered 'R1' 

Page 41



 
   

 - 12 -  

Continued… DRAFT ONLY 
Not for issue 

the applicant will need to submit details for an R1 application to the Environment Agency. It is a 
separate application to that required for the permit.  The determination is a multi-stage process, the 
first stage being to determine whether or not the design is likely achieve R1. Subsequent stages of 
testing and verification would be completed once the plant was operational.  
 
 6. Certain plant and animal species, including all wild birds, are protected under the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981. For example it is an offence to intentionally take, damage or destroy the nest 
of any wild bird whilst it is in use or being built, and this can impact upon site clearance works 
during the main nesting season which runs from April to September. Some other animals for 
example badgers, bats and water voles are protected under other legislation. An ecological survey 
and report may be required to establish the plant and animal species present on a site and the 
implications of this for development of the site. Whilst these aspects may have been considered 
during the processing of the planning application responsibility for complying with this legislation 
rests with the developer and/or contractor. 
 
 7. Noise Control: hours of work and equipment during demolition/construction 
To assist with project planning, reduce the likelihood of justified complaint and avoid costly 
restriction and development delays, 'acceptable hours' are detailed below:- 
 
Monday to Friday:    0730-1800 (noisy operations restricted to 0800-1800) 
Saturday:                 0830-1700 (noisy operations restricted to 0830-1700) 
Sunday:                   at no time 
Bank Holidays:        at no time 
 
Work outside these hours may be acceptable but must be agreed with Nottingham City Council's 
Pollution Control Section (Tel: 0115 9156410; Fax 0115 9156020). 
 
Equipment 
All equipment shall be properly maintained, serviced and operated in accordance with the 
manufacturer's recommendations and with appropriate noise suppression/silencers. 
 
Dust/Grit and other fugitive emissions 
Construction and demolition work invariably generates grit and dust, which can be carried offsite 
and cause a Statutory Nuisance, and have a detrimental effect on local air quality. 
 
Contractors are expected to use appropriate methods to minimise fugitive emissions, reduce the 
likelihood of justified complaint and avoid costly restriction and development delays.  Appropriate 
methods include:- 
 
Flexible plastic sheeting 
Water sprays/damping down of spoil and demolition waste 
Wheel washing 
Periodic road cleaning 
 
Where a condition specified in this decision notice requires any further details to be submitted for 
approval, please note that an application fee will be payable at the time such details are submitted 
to the City Council. A form is available from the City Council for this purpose. 
 
Your attention is drawn to the rights of appeal set out on the attached sheet. 
 
 

Page 42



 
   

 - 13 -  

Not for issue 
DRAFT ONLY 

 
RIGHTS OF APPEAL 

Application No: 15/00893/PVAR3 (PP-04043709) 
 
If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the City Council to impose conditions on the grant of 
permission for the proposed development, then he or she can appeal to the Secretary of State under 
section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
Any appeal must be submitted within six months of the date of this notice.  You can obtain an appeal 
form from the Customer Support Unit, The Planning Inspectorate, Room 3/15 Eagle Wing, Temple 
Quay House, 2 The Square, Temple Quay, Bristol, BS1 6PN.  Phone: 0117 372 6372.  Appeal forms 
can also be downloaded from the Planning Inspectorate website at http://www.planning-
inspectorate.gov.uk/pins/index.htm.  Alternatively, the Planning Inspectorate have introduced an 
online appeals service which you can use to make your appeal online. You can find the service 
through the Appeals area of the Planning Portal - see www.planningportal.gov.uk/pcs. 
 
The Inspectorate will publish details of your appeal on the internet (on the Appeals area of the 
Planning Portal).  This may include a copy of the original planning application form and relevant 
supporting documents supplied to the local authority by you or your agent, together with the 
completed appeal form and information you submit to the Planning Inspectorate.  Please ensure that 
you only provide information, including personal information belonging to you that you are happy will 
be made available to others in this way.  If you supply personal information belonging to a third party 
please ensure you have their permission to do so.  More detailed information about data protection 
and privacy matters is available on the Planning Portal. 
 
The Secretary of State can allow a longer period for giving notice of an appeal, but will not normally 
be prepared to use this power unless there are special circumstances which excuse the delay. 
 
The Secretary of State need not consider an appeal if the City Council could not for legal reasons 
have granted permission or approved the proposals without the conditions it imposed. 
 
In practice, the Secretary of State does not refuse to consider appeals solely because the City 
Council based its decision on a direction given by him. 
 
PURCHASE NOTICES 
 
If either the City Council or the Secretary of State refuses permission to develop land or grants it 
subject to conditions, the owner may claim that he can neither put the land to a reasonably beneficial 
use in its existing state nor can he render the land capable of a reasonably beneficial use by the 
carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted. This procedure is set out in 
Part VI of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
COMPENSATION 
 
In certain limited circumstances, a claim may be made against the City Council for compensation 
where permission is refused or granted subject to conditions by the Secretary of State. The 
circumstances in which compensation is payable are set out in Section 114 of the Town & Country 
Planning Act 1990. 
 
  
 
 

Page 43



 

 
WARDS AFFECTED: Bulwell  Item No:  
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
18th June 2014 

 
REPORT OF HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT AND REGENERATION 
 
Former Blenheim Gardens Allotments, Blenheim Lane 
 
1 SUMMARY 
 
Application No: 13/03051/PMFUL3 for planning permission 

 
Application by: Amberley Consulting Ltd on behalf of Chinook Sciences Ltd 

 
Proposal: Energy from waste facility (160,000 tonnes of waste per annum 

capacity), manufacturing, research and development facility and 
associated offices 
 

 
The application is brought to Committee because it is a major development of strategic 
importance and local interest. 
 
To meet the Council's Performance Targets this application should have been determined 
by 9th May 2014 
 
 
2 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

The Committee resolves: 
 
1) That the requirements of Part 2 of Schedule 4 of the Town and Country Planning 
(Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2011 are satisfied by reason of 
the Environmental Statement submitted in support of the application including at 
least the following information: 
(a)  a description of the development comprising information on the site, design 

and size of the development; 
(b)  a description of the measures envisaged in order to avoid, reduce and, if 

possible remedy significant adverse effects; 
(c)  the data required to identify and assess the main effects the scheme is likely 

to have on the environment; 
(d)  an outline of the main alternatives studied by the applicant and an 

indication of the main reasons for rejecting these, taking into account the 
environmental effects; 

(e)  a non-technical summary of the information provided under (a) to (d) above. 
 
2) That the implications of the development addressed in the Environmental 
Statement subject to the mitigation measures proposed do not amount to major 
adverse effects or main effects or other adverse impacts that would justify the 
refusal of the application. 
 
3) That in making the decision on this application, the environmental information 
being the Environmental Statement and the representations received on it have 
been taken into account. The Environmental Statement meets the minimum 

Page 44



 

requirements of Part 2 of Schedule 4 to the Environmental Impact Assessment 
Regulations 2011 and is sufficient having regard to Part 1 of Schedule 4 to those 
Regulations. 
 
4) That Regulation 24(1) of the Environment Impact Assessment Regulations 2011 
be complied with as soon as reasonably practical and the Head of Development 
Management and Regeneration be delegated to undertake the necessary 
requirements, namely to notify the decision in writing to the Secretary of State, 
inform the public of the decision by newspaper advertisement and to place on 
deposit for public inspection a statement containing the content of the decision and 
the conditions attached to it, the main reasons and consideration on which the 
decision is based and a description, where necessary, of the main measures to 
avoid, reduce and, if possible offset any major adverse effects of the development, 
and also to contain information on the ability to and procedures for the challenge of 
the decision. 

 
5) To GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION for the reasons set out in this report, 
subject to the conditions substantially in the form of those listed in the draft decision 
notice at the end of this report. 

 
Power to determine the final details of the conditions to be delegated to Head of 
Development Management and Regeneration. 
 
 

3 BACKGROUND 
 
  Site and Surroundings 
 
3.1 The site extends to 6.9 hectares and is located at the northern edge of the City in 

the Bulwell Ward. 
 
3.2 The site was previously used as allotments. This use ceased approximately ten 

years ago when they were relocated to land to the immediate west of the current 
site, where that use continues. Vegetation was cleared in 2012, and the site was 
levelled and fenced in preparation for development. The site is designated as 
employment land for the expansion of the Blenheim Industrial Estate in the adopted 
Nottingham Local Plan. 

 
3.3 The site is bounded by Blenheim Lane to the south, Firth Way to the east, the 

Blenheim allotments to the west and a golf course operated by Nottingham City 
Golf Club to the north, which sits within Bulwell Hall Park. Bulwell Hall Park is 
designated as Green Belt within the Nottingham Local Plan and forms part of the 
Open Space Network, Mature Landscape area and a Biological Site of Importance 
to Nature Conservation (SINC).   

 
3.4 The site is situated at the edge of the Blenheim Business Estate. The wider area 

contains a range of industrial, warehousing and distributional units including an 
ASDA distribution centre. 

 
3.5 Hucknall Airfield and the adjacent Rolls Royce Factory are located within Ashfield 

District Council’s administrative area to the north west of the site, beyond the 
adjacent allotments and golf course. Planning permission was granted by Ashfield 
District in March 2014 for a hybrid application for the redevelopment of the Rolls 
Royce site (planning ref: V/2013/0123). That consent permits a 27.8 ha Business 

Page 45



 

Park, 31.2ha residential development, local retail facilities, pub/restaurant, care 
home and community facilities, open space, pedestrian and cycle links and Green 
Belt enhancements. 

 
3.6  The nearest existing residential properties are the Winter Showman’s Quarters, 

which are located approximately 100m to the west. Houses on Langdown Close are 
located 150m away from the site entrance, with Norwich Gardens 350m to the east. 
The Seller’s Wood Drive estate is located beyond the Industrial Estate, 400m away. 

   
3.7  While the site has been secured by fencing, the existing hedgerows which enclose 

the site have been retained, with the most notable being to its southern boundary 
along Blenheim Lane and is identified as a Site of Importance to Nature 
Conservation (SINC) in the Local Plan. 

 
 Relevant Planning History 
 
3.8 In 2000, the site was the subject of two applications (00/01382/NOUT and 

01/00596/PFUL3), for the comprehensive redevelopment of the site for employment 
purposes (classes B1, B2 and B8). The first sought outline planning permission and 
the second was a full application, both submitted on behalf of Raleigh Industries. 
Both applications were subsequently withdrawn as the applicant made a 
commercial decision to expand their business abroad. 

 
3.9 In 2008, a three year temporary permission (08/01786/PFUL3) was granted to use 

the north eastern part of the site as a haul route to provide HGV access to 
Nottingham City Golf Course. This was to allow material to be transported as part of 
the golf course re-modelling works, which included perimeter mounding to the side 
(just outside) of the application site, along the course’s fairways. The HGV haul 
route crosses the north-east corner of the site from the existing roundabout on Firth 
Way. A further application was subsequently granted planning permission in 2011 
to extend the timeframe for the use of the access road (11/0401/PVAR3). The 
access has been constructed and the re-modelling works on the golf course have 
reached an advanced stage. The temporary permission for the access road expired 
on 31 August 2013. 

 
3.10  In February 2013, Chinook Sciences Ltd submitted a request for an Environmental 

Impact Assessment Screening Opinion to establish whether an Environmental 
Statement (ES) would be required as part of a planning application to develop the 
site as a manufacturing and energy demonstrator facility (ref. 13/00432/EASCR). 
As part of that process, following consultation with internal and external bodies, the 
applicant decided that they would submit an ES with their planning application prior 
to formal determination. As a result, Chinook withdrew their EIA screening request 
in April 2013. 

 
3.11 In June 2013 planning permission (planning ref: 13/00757/PMFUL3) was granted to 

develop the site as a manufacturing, research and development and ‘energy from 
waste’ demonstrator facility. The waste processing facility comprised a 30,000 
tonnes per year ‘energy from waste’ demonstrator which would have been capable 
of producing up to 6 MW-hr of power. The facility was intended to demonstrate the 
technology in operation to potential investors. The energy would have been used to 
provide power to the development with potential for surplus power to be exported to 
the National Grid. The development would have created 12,657 m2 industrial floor 
space and created 250 jobs.  

 

Page 46



 

4 DETAILS OF THE PROPOSAL 
 
4.1 This full application seeks planning permission to develop the site as an Energy 

from Waste facility (EfW) processing 160,000 tonnes of waste per year, with 
manufacturing, research and development facility and associated offices. A 
summary comparison of the current proposal and the scheme that already has 
consent are outlined in the table below: 

 
 Permitted Scheme Current Proposal 
Waste to be processed 30,000 tonnes pa 160,000 tonnes pa 
Energy generation 5 Mw 29.5 Mw 
Industrial floorspace 16,330 m2 12,657 m2 
Employees when operational 250 225 

 
4.2 The applicant has stated that the previously approved ‘demonstrator’ facility based 

on 30,000 tonnes per annum processing capacity did not generate a viable 
economic return to attract sufficient investor interest in the scheme. As a larger 
facility processing up to 160,000 of waste per year, the current proposal would 
provide greater economies of scale, and allow the applicant to attract equity 
investors and accelerate the development. It would still allow the technology to be 
demonstrated and would include the manufacturing, research and development 
elements of the previous proposal. 

 
4.3 The increase in the scale of the EfW facility has necessitated fundamental changes 

to the proposed site layout and buildings, which has resulted in the need for a new 
planning application. The following paragraphs set out the details of the different 
components. 

 
Energy from Waste Facility (EfW) 
 

4.4 The waste processing facility would comprise a 160,000 tonnes per year ‘energy 
from waste’ facility. This would utilise two of the applicant’s RODECS machines 
(batch gasifiers) which would be capable of producing up to 29 MW-hr of power. 
The energy would be used to provide power to the development with potential for 
surplus power to be exported to the National Grid via a dedicated substation. 

 
4.5  The RODECS system is a gasification technology that processes residual waste, 

which is waste remaining after recycling operations have been carried out. This 
includes both Commercial and Industrial wastes (C&I) and Municipal Solid waste 
(MSW), all of which, if not treated, would otherwise be expected to go to landfill. 
The applicant has stated that the proposal would utilise approximately 160,000 
tonnes of residual MSW, C&I waste material and Refuse Derived Fuel (RDF) which 
would be sourced from a variety of waste operators in Nottingham, Nottinghamshire 
and Derby. 

 
4.6  The applicant uses a form of gasification technology that they describe as ‘active 

pyrolysis’. This technology allows the waste fuel stock to be combusted at a lower 
temperature than incineration, which means that valuable metals can be recovered 
and re-used. Glass and aggregates are also recovered and recycled. The process 
allows the conversion of waste feed stock into a synthetic gas (‘syngas’), which is 
cleaned and used as a fuel to generate power in the form of electricity and steam. 
 

4.7 The EfW facility and associated operations is proposed to be housed in two 
separate sets of connected buildings. The first set of buildings would be located in 

Page 47



 

the north east corner of the site and would form a series of six linked buildings 
which are as follows: 

 
 Waste reception area and storage hall (50m by 69.6m and 16.7m in height). 
 RODECS processing building (24.5m by 69.6m and 18.9m in height),  
 Bin handling area (9m by 96.3m and 15.m in height). 
 Post-processed building for the storage and despatch of post–processed 

material and recyclables (61m by 26.7m and 15.4m in height). 
 Plant control room, offices, staff room and storage split over two floors (19.5m by 

26.7m and 14m in height). 
 Water Treatment Plant (37.5m by 15m and 13.8m in height) 

 
4.8 The second set of buildings associated with the EfW facility would be located further 

to the west and would form three linked buildings. A generator hall (16.7m by 88.7m 
and 13m in height), a two storey control room (7.3m by 32.1m and 8m in height) and 
CEM room (6.5m by 8.5m and 5m in height) 

 
Manufacturing 
 

4.9 The manufacturing element would be housed within one large scale ‘shed’, with 
ancillary elements of office and staff welfare facilities at first floor. The building would 
extend along the length of the southern (Blenheim Lane) boundary of the site, 
parallel but set back from the ancient hedgerow. This building would measure 205m 
by 38m and 15m high. The building would be used for the manufacture and 
assembly of new RODECS machines and associated equipment. 
 
Research and Development 

 
4.10 This would take place in a single storey building which is located centrally within the 

site. The building would measures 70.7m in length, 40m in width and 15.2m in 
height. The applicant has stated that aim of the facility is the continual improvement 
and increased efficiency of their ‘RODECS’ technology which is described below. 

 
Offices and Visitor Centre 

 
4.11  A 3-storey building is proposed close to the site entrance, at the south east corner of 

the site. A fully glazed triple height atrium and reception area would form the main 
frontage to the building with the visitor centre beyond at ground floor level. The 
remaining ground floor area would be dedicated to car parking. Office 
accommodation would be accommodated above on the first and second floors.  The 
office building would have a flat, brown roof system. 

 
4.12 The scheme includes the following additional plant and structures: 

 
- A 50m  twin flue emission stack; 
- A weighbridge and associated office building; 
- Three spherical  gas accumulators, which would be 1x16.3m and 2x24m in 

height and used to store the cleaned ‘syngas’ prior to use in turbines for the 
creation of energy; 

- Two RODECS MCC buildings; 
- Electricity sub-station dedicated to the site; 
- Two power equipment islands (9m by 34m and 23m in height); 
-  Other external plant includes: combined waste heat boilers (20m in height), 

RODECS equipment (20m in height), waste hall extraction equipment, water 
Page 48



 

storage tank, bin extraction system ( 10m in height), 4x Oxygen tanks (11m in 
height), gas vents equipment (22m in height), enclosed thermal chamber (13,3m 
in height),  

 
4.13 The development is proposed to be served by two new vehicle accesses on Firth 

way alongside a separate pedestrian gate. One of vehicular accesses is proposed 
to be used entirely by HGV’s, with the other being used by all other vehicles. A total 
of 142 parking spaces is proposed to be provided (including 10 disabled and 12 
power two wheeler spaces), 31 of which would be accommodated beneath the new 
office building, with eight visitor parking spaces to the front of it. The remaining staff 
parking would be provided in four parking areas located in the centre of the site. 
Accommodation for 44 cycles is to be provided. 

 
4.14 The scheme proposes a comprehensive landscaping scheme, which shows 

additional planting around the periphery of the site, a 9m landscape mound in the 
north-west corner of the site and the creation of one balancing pond at the entrance 
of the site, which also forms part of the drainage strategy for the site. Improvements 
to the hedgerow along Blenheim Lane are also proposed. The existing hedgerows 
surrounding the site are to be retained with a 2.4m weld mesh fence being 
proposed, which would be would set back from the perimeter hedge within the 
confines of the site to provide additional site security. 

 
4.15  The proposed operation hours are proposed: 
 

- Energy  from Waste facility : 24 hour operation; 
- Offices: 0900 to 1700 hours, Monday to Friday; 
- Manufacturing and Research and Development facility: 08:00 to 17:00 hours, 

Monday to Friday and 08:00 to 12:00 on Saturday.  
 
4.16 The development falls within Schedule 1 of the Town and Country Planning 

(Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2011 and is therefore 
accompanied by an Environmental Statement (ES). The purpose of the ES is to 
identify key environmental impacts that would arise from the proposed 
development, appraise these impacts and, if necessary and possible, identify 
measures that will be implemented to remedy or mitigate significant adverse 
effects. The ES is organised into a series of chapters, which are as follows: 

 
 Policy Context 
 Air Quality Assessment 
 Noise 
 Ecology and Nature Conservation 
 Transport and Traffic 
 Geology, soils ground contamination 
 Water resources 
 Ecology and nature conservation 
 Landscape and visual impact 

 
The issues and mitigation measures proposed in the ES are considered in detail 
within the appraisal section of the report below. The ES has also been 
supplemented by additional Environmental Information, which has been the subject 
of further publicity and consultation.  

 
4.17  The scheme would deliver significant construction and operational employment 

opportunities for local people. ‘It is anticipated that the development would deliver 
Page 49



 

225 permanent jobs during operation. This includes 130 manufacturing jobs (80 
heavy industrial and 50 light industrial), 40 people working within research and 
development, 30 office jobs and 25 people working in the Energy Generation 
facility. A further 200 jobs would be created during the construction period, which is 
expected to take up to 15 months. Chinook have confirmed their commitment to 
work with local schools and colleges to prepare students to work at Chinook. They 
have also committed to using the City Council’s Employer Hub to deliver a suitable 
job ready local workforce. 

 
  

5 CONSULTATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS OF OTHER OFFICERS 
 

Adjoining occupiers consulted: 
 

5.1  72 residents, commercial occupiers and residents groups were notified of the 
application as follows: 
 
Blenheim (New Site) Allotment Association 
Snape Wood Residents’ Association 
Blenheim Lane Management Committee 
Bulwell Hall Tenants’ and Residents’ Association 
Showman’s Winter Quarters 1 Blenheim Lane 
Nottingham Friends of the Earth 
Blenheim Farm Blenheim Lane 
Rufford Tenants’ and Residents’ Association 
Wingbourne, Riseborough and Gardens Tenants’ and Residents’ Association 
Bulwell Community Toy Library 
CRESTA Tenants’ and Residents’ Association 
10 Firth Way Nottingham 
Units 1-13 Vision Business Park 
Cash And Carry Warehouse Firth Way 
Blenheim House 6 Martin Close 
Units 1-11 Martin Court 
23 To 25 Blenheim Lane 
Units 1 to 17 Bennerley Court 
Nottingham City Golf Club 
Nottingham Golf Centre, Bulwell Hall Park 
Merlin Flying Club, Hucknall Airfield  
Rolls Royce 
Hucknall Reach Out Residents Group, 4 Astrall Grove 
Woodhall Farm, Blenheim Lane, Hucknall 
82 Lime Street 
 

5.2 The neighbours listed above were notified of the planning application when 
originally submitted and were then re-notified upon receipt of the revised ES and 
accompanying information. The overall date for expiry of the second neighbour 
consultation exercise was the 4 May 2014.  On both the receipt of the original 
application and the revised ES an advert was displayed in the local newspaper and 
site notices were displayed in the surrounding area. The final expiry dates for 
submission of comments were 5 March and 5 June 2014 respectively.  
 

5.3 Eight letters were received from local residents (including 2 from an adjacent plot 
holder on the new Blenheim allotment site and 2 from one individual local resident), 
in response to the initial consultation, whose comments are summarised below: 

Page 50



 

 
- One resident is against further waste being imported to Bulwell. Bulwell North 

has been used for many years with waste being tipped into the Former Bold 
Street tip located to the south of the site. Imported waste is being dumped on 
Bulwell Hall Park and golf Course. The increase from 30,000 tons of waste 
(Imported) to 160,000 tons is seen as a massive increase leading to an 
unacceptable increase of pollutants being emitted from the stack and increased 
traffic generation. 

- Impact of the development on the adjacent new Blenheim Lane allotment site. 
Similar to the plot holder many of the allotment users are elderly with various 
health problems. The cultivation of their allotment plots provides significant 
benefit to their mental, physical and social wellbeing as well as providing home 
grown produce with high nutritional value. The allotments are in high demand 
with young families increasing taking plots not only because they are passionate 
about growing vegetables but to as low wage earners the vegetable they 
produce can be economically important and a healthy addition to our diets. The 
Council seems to be ignoring the growing national movement to increase the 
availability of fresh, healthy home grown food and the socio-economic benefits it 
would bring. The allotment holders’ preference is to use the site for additional 
allotments, wildlife walks, green retail, garden centre, area for a farmers market, 
car boot sales, a community hut and community shop to sell excess produce 
form the allotment. 

 
The allotment holder’s plot immediately adjoins the western boundary of the site 
and they initially wrote in with concerns that the development would drastically 
reduce sunlight to the adjoining plots. In addition there is concern about 
pollution from both the EfW facility and additional vehicular traffic together with 
an increase in noise disturbance from additional HGV’s visiting the site 
destroying the its peace and quiet and impacting upon the wildlife existing on 
the allotments and using it as a wildlife corridor. The development will 
exacerbate existing problems associated with the close proximity of industry 
which exists around Blenheim Lane. 
 
The allotment holder wrote a second letter after visiting the public consultation 
event held by Chinook in Bulwell library on 24 January 2014. They consider that 
the situation will a lot worse than first believed for both allotment holders and the 
people of Bulwell. Firstly, the small scale” energy facility is actually to be 
enormous. The incinerator’s chimney will be 50 metres high and sited only a few 
tens of meters away from their allotment in particular. The domes - as illustrated 
on their mock-up photo - loom over the allotment site and would reduce the 
sunlight for much of the day to some of the closest allotments. But worst of all in 
their opinion is the concern regarding the considerable emissions which can be 
expected from the increase in processing 160,000 tonnes of waste. 
 
They suggest that if there is to be development there should be no pollution, 
buildings should not ‘loom’ and cut out light and there should be no industrial 
activity close to the allotments. They have suggested that a wildlife corridor 
should be created between the site and the allotments to act as a buffer and 
reduce the impact of large buildings in terms of light and noise. Car parking 
should be located on the opposite side of the site and existing native trees 
should be retained. This should be a true ‘energy park’ concentration on the 
sale of green energy, knowledge plants and potentially a green restaurant. The 
local community should be involved in the development of the site. 

 

Page 51



 

- The development is too close to homes and schools – the resident lives on the 
Seller’s Wood Estate. 

- Increased air pollution as a result of increased traffic generation and  the 
increased emissions from energy plant due to now processing 160,00 tonnes of 
waste a year, resulting in health problems to local population. 

- Increased noise pollution particularly at night, due to the increase form 30,000 
tonnes to 160,000 tonnes of waste being delivered to the site, plus the site 
working 24 hours 7 days a week and the impact this will have on the health and 
wellbeing of people living nearby. 

- Concern about water contamination and its potential impact on human health. 
- Concern that there is no evidence that emissions from the facility would be 

minor. The local community would need monitoring of air and soil quality by an 
independent organisation on a daily basis to determine this 

- Concern that the ES has overlooked on-site protected species and those in 
surrounding area and their mitigation. The former allotments were known for its 
wildlife, such as bats, various varieties of bird, brown hare, common toad, bats 
and newts. 

- Impact on the Blenheim Lane ancient hedgerow and its potential improvement. 
- Impact on existing trees on the site. 
- The loss of allotments and its loss as important local green open space. 
- The site is near to Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSIs), SINC and mature 

landscape area. 
- Increased risk of flooding due to the development of a currently green field site. 
- A resident has stated that full community consultation has not taken place in line 

with the Councils Statement of Community Involvement which is designed to put 
local people in the driving seat of decision making in the planning process. 

- Concern the ‘Chinook’ technology will not be sustainable and ecologically 
advantageous. At the public consultation representatives of Chinook could not 
confirm whether the buildings would be built using the latest developments in 
“zero carbon” technology using passive building techniques the use of solar 
energy to reduce their energy requirements. Furthermore, it is felt that the 
energy created should be used to supply energy to the local community. Linking 
the plant up to other organisations was confirmed to be difficult and would 
involve a lot of work. 

- Concern that the EfW facility would only process waste and would not involve 
the creation of recycled end products from the separated waste material; as 
such they question whether this is truly recycling. 

- The development will provide little beneficial green space as part of the 
development to replace the loss of a site which is seen to be a rich wildlife area. 

-  It is questioned whether the development will truly create jobs for local people. 
The site was originally proposed to be development by Raleigh for 
manufacturing and it is considered that this is the better option. There would not 
have been the concerns relating to emissions and it would have genuinely 
supplied local jobs as manufacturing requiring a lower skills base.  The Chinook 
proposal will only provide 200-250 jobs and at the public consultation Chinook 
representatives stated that it would be challenging to fill these posts with local 
people. It is considered that the demographics of Bulwell which is characterised 
by a large ageing and unskilled population will not benefit from the proposal.  
People do not live in the same place as they work and given the fantastic 
transport links in Nottingham it is accepted that people who work in the plant will 
travel to the site from further afield. 

- Concern regarding the scale of the development and its detrimental visual 
impact with particular mention being made to the ‘ugliness’ of the chimney and 
domes. 

Page 52



 

 
5.4 Merlin Flying Club who historically operate from of the nearby Hucknall Air Field, on 

the Rolls Royce site have confirmed that they still fly out of the air field at present. 
They have stated that with the amount of development taking place in the area the 
City Council are intent in destroying everything and turning the area into a 
‘sprawling mess’ 

 
5.5  A further five letters have been received from one local resident as a result of the 

re-consultation process. The main concerns raised are summarised below: 
 

- An Environmental Permit has yet to be obtained from the Environment Agency for 
the EFW facility. Determination of the application should be delayed until the Permit 
has been applied for and local residents have had the opportunity to establish the 
facts of the application through a public meeting. 

- Summary of chapter 5 of the government’s revised version of ‘Energy from Waste- 
a guide to the debate’ published February 2014. In their opinion this ‘comes down 
hard’ on gasification and pyrolysis. 

- A further copy of the original objections to the proposal summarised above but 
namely: 

 
1. Concern that the ES has overlooked on-site protected species and those in 

surrounding area and their mitigation. The former allotments were known for 
its wildlife, such as bats, various varieties of bird, brown hare, common toad, 
bats and newts. 

2. Impact on the Blenheim Lane ancient hedgerow and its potential 
improvement. 

3. Impact on existing trees on the site. 
4. The loss of allotments and its loss as important local green open space. 
5. The site is near to Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSIs), SINC and 

mature landscape area. 
6. Increased risk of flooding due to the development of an currently green field 

site. 
7. Full community consultation has not taken place in line with the Councils 

Statement of Community Involvement which is designed to put local people 
in the driving seat of decision making in the planning process. 

 
- An email has also been received enclosing a copy of an objection made by a 

national lobby group to a plasma gasification facility proposed elsewhere in 
Nottinghamshire.  

 
5.6 Graham Allen MP has written in full support of the scheme. The development has 

the potential to provide much needed jobs to the area, including training and 
employment of engineers from our local engineering college. It will also lead to the 
creation of manufacturing jobs in the region. This will mean over 200 new jobs in 
Bulwell in the recycling and energy sector. In addition the EfW facility will generate 
enough power to supply the whole site and eventually export power to the local grid 
for the benefit of local businesses. 

  
5.7 Four emails have been received from Nottingham Friends of the Earth objecting 

to the development. Their main comments can be summarised as follows:  
  

a) They consider that current application for a 160,000tpa facility for a major 
waste disposal facility comparable to the current Eastcroft Incinerator.  In their 
opinion it cannot be considered as ancillary to the manufacturing facility. 

Page 53



 

 
b) They consider that a major waste disposal facility on the Blenheim Lane site is 

not consistent with the Local Plan. The site is allocated for employment 
purposes, not for waste disposal purposes. 

 
c) They state that Chinook claims its RODECS pyrolysis/gasification equipment is 

proven technology but that no independently verified evidence is provided to 
substantiate this.  They claim that they are not aware of any evidence on the 
public register in the UK to show how this technology works in practice and that 
they don’t know of any comparable facility in the UK which is gasifying mixed 
residual waste fully in compliance with the Waste Incineration Directive (now 
incorporated into the Industrial Emissions Directive). 

 
d) They consider that although Chinook claims it will be a ‘recovery’ facility, they 

claim the available evidence suggests it should be considered a ‘disposal’ 
facility. They state that there is no indication in Chinook’s application that it has 
applied to the Environment Agency for design stage ‘R1 status’ for the 
RODECS equipment or that it can achieve the R1 energy efficiency required for 
facilities dedicated to the processing of municipal solid waste in operation. As 
much of the waste it proposes to process is derived from municipal waste, they 
consider that it should be assumed that the process is not R1 (recovery) until 
that is proven in practice, and should therefore be defined as D10 (disposal) for 
the purposes of determining this application. 

 
They state that at the time of the application being considered the applicant has 
not applied to the Environment Agency for R1 Recovery Status or discussed 
whether it will meet ‘end of waste status criteria’ (see below). This in their 
opinion confirms that the RODECS technology is experimental and unproven in 
England. 

 
e) Although Chinook says it will seek ‘end of waste’ status for the syngas, this is 

clearly an aspiration not based on actual performance – which is yet to be 
demonstrated, and that Defra’s Energy from Waste guide advises (p5) that 
cleaning the gases to this level is ‘technically difficult, relatively unproven at a 
commercial scale, and some of the generated energy is used to power the 
process, reducing the overall benefits’. It should therefore be assumed for the 
purposes of determining this application that the Industrial Emissions Directive 
Chapter IV (waste incineration) will apply. 

 
f) The calculation of CO2 in the Energy Report (in Appendix D) is considered to 

be a seriously flawed estimate of carbon emissions offset by metal recycling, 
landfill avoided and electricity generation displaced. They also consider it likely 
that Chinook’s estimate of net power output is seriously overoptimistic. 

 
g) They state that the application does not seem to analyse the need for such 

additional waste disposal capacity .They consider the development has failed 
to give consideration to the aim of the Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste 
Core Strategy to progressively reduce waste and to increase recycling and 
composting to 70% by 2025. The application does not recognise the planning 
permission which has been given to expand the Eastcroft Incinerator (and 
which has not yet been implemented because of a lack of contracts for such 
residual waste). Taking the projected reduction in residual waste into account, 
there is not a need for additional waste disposal capacity. In conclusion they 
consider that the proposal is not consistent with the local plan, the lack of need 

Page 54



 

for a waste disposal facility is a reason for rejecting it. 
 

h) They are mainly concerned about the EfW facility. This will gasify mixed residual 
waste producing a 'syngas' containing carbon monoxide, hydrogen, etc. which 
will be used to produce electricity and a residual char from which metals, etc. 
will be recovered for recycling, the rest subject to unspecified disposal. The 
syngas will be cleaned and used to produce electricity. It is not clear how the 
toxic residues from pyrolysis/gasification and gas cleaning will be managed. 

 
i) They state that gasification (of coal) is a well-established process. They raise 

concern that there are former gas works and coking works all over the country 
where the resulting contamination has still not been fully cleaned up. They claim 
that contamination associated with gasification in the past was mainly caused by 
impurities in coal such as chlorine, sulphur and heavy metals.  Concern is raised 
that residual process waste from the demonstrator plant would contain such 
impurities.’  

 
j) They consider that process will produce 'persistent organic pollutants' (POPs) 

which under European Regulation 850/2004 requires priority consideration to 
alternative processes be given by the planning authority as well as the 
Environment Agency, that would avoid the formation and release of these 
substances. Reference is made to an appeal decision for Rufford Colliery. They 
ask that until alternative processes are considered, planning permission should 
be refused. 

 
k) Reference to Defra’s recent guide on Energy from Waste relating to the 

processing of a mixed waste feedstock, steam generation from gasification 
being less efficient than conventional incineration and the potential to create a 
clean gas to be burnt directly as part in gas turbines is noted in the guidelines to 
be difficult and unproven, reducing the overall benefits. 

 
l) Evidence of a comparable facility working in full compliance with the Waste 

Incineration Directive in the UK has not been provided. 
 
5.8 One further email has been received from Friends of the Earth as part of the re-

consultation process. They state that the additional information submitted and in 
particular the submission of the R1 calculation for design stage does not alter their 
original comments outlined above. They state that the R1 calculation has not been 
endorsed by the Environment Agency and nor has the end of waste status for 
syngas. They consider that even if the Agency certifies R1 status at design stage, 
this will have to be re-determined in operation – until R1 is established in operation 
the application should be determined as ‘disposal’ or a planning condition imposed 
to require R1 status in operation. 

 
5.9 They consider the current application to be premature until previous 2013 planning 

consent for the demonstrator facility has been implemented and the technology 
tested. At present the applicant has not applied for an Environmental permit for the 
demonstrator facility. They claim that this confirms that this is an unproven 
technology on a commercial scale. 

 
5.10 They consider that even if the technology were proven, Nottingham does not need 

another 160,000tpa waste disposal facility. As noted their our previous comments, 
the Eastcroft Incinerator has planning permission and an Environmental Permit for 
a third line which has not yet been built  due, in their opinion, to the lack of 

Page 55



 

contracts for additional residual waste.  
 

Additional consultation letters sent to: 
 
5.11  Pollution Control: Under current environmental legislation an Environmental 

Permit would be required for the site. The regulatory body for the permit is the 
Environment Agency whose responsibility it is to ensure that regulated facilities do 
not cause harm to the environment or public health. In this instance it is the City 
Council’s statutory responsibility to prevent and minimise statutory nuisances and 
adverse environmental impacts with respect to air quality, air pollution, land quality 
and contamination, and sound/noise and vibration responsibility, which is not 
subject to or controlled by the Environmental Permit.  

 
Air Pollution: The main source of potential air emissions would result from the EfW 
plant and its gasification process, together with emissions from transport. An Air 
Quality Assessment has been undertaken as part of the ES and its findings are 
considered to meet relevant Air Quality Objectives. 
 
Ground Contamination: The submitted ground contamination survey together 
with the City Council’s in house desk top study have identified the potential for 
ground contamination associated with historical on site activities. The underlying 
bedrock is of a fractured and porous nature, radon levels were shown to be 
above the current Action Level and there is a closed gassing landfill situated 
adjacent to the site. Conditions requiring further investigation work into ground 
contamination, gas migration and ground water issues together with its 
remediation strategy and radon protection measures are recommended. 

 
Noise: Recommended noise levels associated from any operational activities, 
mechanical services plant or equipment serving the whole development are 
acceptable and will need to be secured by condition. 
 

5.12  Highways: No objections in principle to the development. It is recognised that 
development of this cleared site would result in additional traffic generation to the 
highway network. The submitted revised Traffic Assessment has satisfactorily 
demonstrated that proposed traffic generation associated with the development 
would not impact upon the Camberley Road junction sufficient to warrant further 
mitigation measures being required. The applicant has submitted a framework 
travel plan which is acceptable in principle. As a green field site the Flood Risk 
Assessment and Drainage Strategy proposes to provide a balancing pond to 
attenuate surface water run-off and this is considered to be acceptable. A detailed 
travel plan will be required six months after occupation. Conditions requiring a 
construction management plan, detailed plan of proposed access arrangement, 
cycle provision, off site highway works, full travel plan and surface water drainage 
are recommended. 

 
5.13  Travel Planning:  The developer has submitted a framework travel plan. A detailed 

travel plan will be required six months after occupation. Request conditions relating 
to nominating travel plan co-ordinator, secure cycle parking, and commitment of 
businesses to contribute to and participate in travel planning activities. 
 

5.14  Policy and Information:  No objections to the principle of the development. The 
site is allocated within the adopted Local plan for employment and its use for a 
manufacturing, offices and research and development facility is supported. In line 
with the previous application the development of the EfW element of the proposal 

Page 56



 

on the existing employment allocation would be acceptable in principle in terms of 
waste management.  The applicant has submitted a R1 status calculation (design 
stage) for the EfW facility, which has now been verified by an independent 
consultant to be in principle correct.  As an energy recovery facility the proposal 
would contribute towards the movement of waste up the waste hierarchy as it 
means that less material would be disposed of to landfill. It is considered to be in 
accordance with the adopted Nottingham Local Plan, Nottingham Waste Local Plan 
and Adopted Waste Core Strategy for Nottingham and Nottinghamshire. To ensure 
the recovery status of the EfW facility is achieved, it is recommended that a 
condition be imposed to require the applicant to seek and receive R1 Status for the 
facility from the Environment Agency. 

 
5.15  Biodiversity Officer: Given the proximity to designated ecological habitats, 

including Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSIs), within the surrounding area, 
any potential impacts of emissions from the facility on the sites’ notified features 
need to be identified and where necessary mitigated for. The Biodiversity Officer, in 
line with Natural England, is satisfied that the airborne emissions resulting from the 
development will not have an adverse impact upon the nearby designated 
ecological habitat. 

 
 The submitted ecology survey was completed in September 2011 and was 

recommended to be updated by a walk-over survey. This has now been carried out 
and the Biodiversity Officers considers its findings and recommendations to be 
acceptable.  

 
Comments are made in relation to the impact of the development in terms of 
shading of allotment plots adjoining the site and potential impact of air borne 
emissions and ground leaching on food growing. Comments are made relating to 
the landscape proposals for the site, which are considered to be, in principle, 
acceptable. The need for appropriate tree species, choice of plant species around 
the boundaries of the site, specification of the brown roof the pond areas and the 
need for the lighting scheme is appropriate for bat foraging activity is highlighted. 
The boundary hedgerow to the south of the development is classified as a Local 
Wildlife Site (LWS) and measures should be put in place for its protection during 
the construction phase.  

  
5.16  Urban Design:  Comment that the building forms follow their internal function, 

consequently the shape of these structures are of large bulky ‘sheds’. The 
architect has added visual interest primarily through the addition of timber cladding 
and a subdued pallet of materials, which has reduced their visual impact. The front 
elevation of the office building has been clad in vertical timber 'fins' creating an 
interesting and welcoming building at the front of the site. The proposed 
landscaping will help soften the view of the buildings throughout the year. An 
integrated landscape strategy will further improve the environment. 
 

To minimise the impact of the scale and massing of the buildings and structures on 
the longer views of the site, detailed consideration needs to be given to the 
scheme’s landscaping and boundary treatments to secure the most effective 
screening for the site that can be achieved. Consideration could be given to 
repositioning the lower scale building nearer to the Green Belt edge, concentrating 
the larger scale buildings towards Blenheim Lane.  There is preference for a 
footpath to be provided through the site connecting to the public right of way along 
Blenheim Lane. 

Page 57



 

 
5.17  Tree Officer: Has no adverse comments. He notes that little space overall has 

been allocated to green infrastructure. A condition is recommended to secure 
submission and implementation of a detailed landscaping scheme. 

 
5.18  Highways Agency: The development is unlikely to have a material impact upon 

the closest strategic route, the M1. The Highways Agency has therefore raised no 
objections to the proposal 
 

5.19  Environment Agency: No objections to the principle of the development. The EFW 
facility will require an Environmental Permit which is regulated by the Environment 
Agency (EA). As part of the permitting regime, full consideration will be given to the 
proposal’s environmental impact together with the establishment of operational 
control and monitoring systems. Conditions relating to surface water drainage and 
contamination remediation strategy are recommended. 
 

5.20  Health & Safety Executive: The storage of syngas will require Hazardous 
Substances Consent (HSC) due to its highly flammable content. The development 
is not located in the consultation zone of any other Consented site and as such the 
HSE would not advise against the granting of planning permission. The HSE advise 
that the planning application makes no assumptions as to the contents of the 3 gas 
accumulators proposed and, as such, if approved would not grant permission for 
the applicant to store hazardous substances. The HSC application would assess 
the proposed storage arrangement and its level of risk to surroundings populations 
and can seek an alternative storage arrangement to that proposed as part of the 
application if the risk is considered to be too high. 

 
 The HSE have commented that the onsite population ie those working for Chinook 

as a single user site, are not normally taken into account as part of their HSC 
assessment since it is assumed that they are representative of the normal working 
population of the site and the operator has done everything reasonably practical to 
reduce their risks to a low level. The use of the manufacturing, research and 
development and offices elements of the site by separate companies with no 
connection to the proposed storage accumulators and their gas content would 
potentially be controlled by the HSC. This is due to their close proximity to the 
storage accumulators and the risk to those working in these buildings being taken 
into account as part of the HSC assessment. 

 
The HSE do not consider other elements of the proposed development to be in 
question. 
 

5.21 Nottinghamshire County Council: 
 

Waste: This application is for Nottingham City Council to determine in line with the 
adopted Waste Core Strategy (2013) and any other relevant policies in their own 
adopted and emerging Local Plan. In strategic waste planning terms the proposed 
facility is considered to be of an appropriate scale and in an appropriate location to 
manage a significant proportion of Nottinghamshire and Nottingham’s residual 
municipal, commercial or industrial waste in line with both national and local 
planning policy. 

 
 Impact on Landscape Character: The County Council originally commented that 

there was insufficient information contained within Section 11: Landscape and 
Visual Impact of the ES and accompanying photomontages to assess the range of 

Page 58



 

potential impacts on landscape, landscape character and surrounding visual 
receptors. It was considered that the ES should include a more comprehensive 
Landscape and Visual Assessment for both the construction and operational phase 
of the development. In addition a cumulative impact assessment should also be 
carried out. 

 
 The applicant has now provided additional information to ES in the form of a 

revised Section 11 of the ES, revised Landscape Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA), 
and additional photomontages. The County Council have now confirmed that they 
are in agreement with the methodology of the revised LVIA and the conclusions 
reached. They consider that in the longer term, after implementation of the 
recommended mitigation measures the adverse impacts of the proposed 
development would range from slight to moderate. 

 
 Biodiversity: The proposed development site lies within 200m of the county 

boundary, and as such it is expected that consideration should be given to any 
potential indirect impacts which might arise on ecological sensitive areas within 
Ashfield (particularly in relation to emissions). 

 
 Highways: The site lies wholly within the City, and therefore, it is for the City 

Council as local highway authority to consider on‐site highway and transport 
requirements and the impact of the development on the local highway network in 
the vicinity of the site. The nearest major junction on the Nottinghamshire core road 
network is Nuthall roundabout where the A6002 meets the A610. This junction has 
not been tested in the Transport Assessment submitted in support of the planning 
application to understand the likely traffic impact of the development. However, 
although it has not been possible to verify the likely vehicular trip generation 
associated with the development due to the proposal’s unusual nature, the trip 
generation assumptions made within the Transport Assessment appear 
reasonable. The County Council has therefore undertaken its own assessment of 
the roundabout using the figures provided in the Transport Assessment relative to 
the predicted background traffic in year 2022 in both AM and PM peaks. The 
conclusion is that the traffic impact will be small and can be mitigated by minor 
adjustments to the traffic signal timings that the County Council undertake 
occasionally. On this basis, there are no objections on highway grounds to the 
proposed development. 
 

5.22  Broxtowe Borough Council: No objections. 
 

5.23  Ashfield District Council: No comments received. 
 

5.24  Natural England: The site is in close proximity to Sellers Wood and Bulwell Wood 
SSSIs.  Natural England are satisfied that the proposed development being carried 
out in strict accordance with the details of the application will not damage or destroy 
the interest features for which the site has been notified. They advise that these 
SSSIs do not represent a constraint in determining the planning application.  
 
Natural England has commented that the development is within an area which 
could benefit from enhanced green infrastructure provision and encourage the 
incorporation of green infrastructure into this development. 
 

5.25  Nottinghamshire Wildlife Trust: It is noted in the ES (Section 10) that the site was 
cleared in 2013. They assume that any protected species interest of the site will 
therefore have been displaced as supporting habitats (bramble, rough grassland 

Page 59



 

and hedges etc) were removed. They recommend that Natural England is 
consulted with regard to possible deposition impacts on two nearby SSSI 
woodlands (Bulwell Wood and Sellers Wood). They also recommend consultation 
with Ashfield District Council regarding Environmental Impacts of this proposal on 
the proposed redevelopment of the adjacent Hucknall Airfield site. 

 
5.26  Severn Trent Water: No objections. 
 
5.27 Western Power:  An 11,000KV high voltage electricity cable currently runs through 

the site which forms part of the high voltage network for the Blenheim Industrial 
Estate, Hucknall areas and is an integral part of that network. Development of the 
site would require diversion of this cable. 
 
 

6 RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE 
  

National Planning Policy Framework: 
 
6.1  The NPPF emphasises the important role that planning plays in delivering 

sustainable development. Paragraph 7 explains that key to this is building a strong 
responsive and economy, supporting strong, vibrant and healthy communities and 
by protecting and enhancing the environment. 
 

6.2  Paragraph 14 states that there is a presumption in favour of sustainable 
development and that development should be approved, without delay, where it 
accords with the development plan. 
 

6.3  The NPPF sets out the core planning principles in paragraph 17, many of which 
apply to the proposed development. They include, amongst others, the 
requirements to proactively drive and support sustainable economic development’ 
secure high quality design; support the transition to a low carbon future, taking full 
account of flood risk and encouraging the reuse of existing resources and the use 
of renewable resources; contribute to conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment and reducing pollution; and managing patterns of growth to the make 
the fullest use of public transport, walking and cycling and to focus significant 
development in locations which are or can be made sustainable. 
 

6.4  Paragraph 52 attaches great importance to the design of the built environment and 
states that good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, indivisible from 
good planning. Paragraph 58 encourages developments to establish a sense of 
place, using streetscapes and buildings to create attractive and comfortable places 
to work. It advises further that developments should function well and add to the 
quality of the area over the lifetime of the development. 
 

6.5  The NPPF supports development that maximises the use of sustainable modes of 
transport. Paragraph 32 recommends the submission of a Transport Assessment; 
that opportunities for sustainable transport modes are taken; and that safe and 
suitable access can be achieved. It advises further that development should only be 
refused on transport grounds where the residual cumulative impacts of 
development are severe. Paragraph 35 states that development should be located 
and designed where it can accommodate the efficient delivery of goods; give 
priority to pedestrian and cycle movements as well as access to high quality public 
transport facilities and create safe and secure layouts. Paragraph 36 promotes the 
use of Travel Plans to encourage sustainable travel. Paragraph 38 promotes 

Page 60



 

developments that provide a mix of uses in order to provide opportunities for people 
to carry out day to day activities. 
 

6.6  Paragraph 93 identifies the key role planning plays in supporting the delivery of 
renewable and low carbon energy. This is seen to be central to the economic, 
social and environmental dimensions of sustainable development. Local Authorities 
should have a positive strategy to promote energy form renewable and low carbon 
sources and design their policies to maximise such development while ensuring 
that adverse impacts are addressed satisfactorily (paragraph 97). When 
determining applications for energy development Local Planning Authorities should 
not require applicants to demonstrate the overall need for renewable or low carbon 
energy and recognise that even small scale schemes can provide a valuable 
contribution to cutting greenhouse gas emissions. Applications should be approved 
if its impacts are (or can be made) acceptable (paragraph 98).  

 
6.7  The Government’s approach to managing the risk of flooding in relation to 

development is outlined in paragraph 100 with development directed to the area of 
least flood risk, wherever possible. When determining planning applications, local 
planning authorities should ensure flood risk is not increased elsewhere and only 
consider development appropriate in areas at risk of flooding where, informed by a 
site-specific flood risk assessment. 
 

6.8  The NPPF outlines how the planning system should contribute to and enhance the 
natural and local environment in paragraphs 109-125. If significant harm resulting 
from a development cannot be avoided (through locating on an alternative site with 
less harmful impacts), adequately mitigated, or, as a last resort, compensated for, 
then planning permission should be refused. Proposed development likely to have 
an adverse impact on a SSSI should not normally be permitted. Where an adverse 
on the sites notified special interest feature is likely an exception should only be 
made where the benefits of the development, at this site, clearly outweigh both the 
impacts that is likely to have on the features of the SSI and any broader impacts on 
the national network of SSSI’s (paragraph 118). 
 

6.9  To prevent unacceptable risks from pollution, paragraph 120 identifies that planning 
decisions should ensure that new development is appropriate for its location. The 
effects (including cumulative effects) of pollution on health, the natural environment 
or general amenity, and the potential sensitivity of the area or proposed 
development to adverse effects from pollution, should be taken into account. 
Planning decisions should aim to avoid noise from giving rise to significant adverse 
impacts on health and quality of life as a result of new development (paragraph 
123). 
 

The EU Waste Framework Directive and Compliance with Waste Hierarchy 

6.10 The waste hierarchy is both a guide to sustainable waste management and a legal 
requirement of the revised EU Waste Framework Directive.  It is enshrined in law 
through the Waste (England and Wales) Regulations 2011 and lays down a priority 
order of what constitutes the best overall environmental option for managing waste.  
The hierarchy is applied in the planning system through national waste planning 
policy within PPS10. 
 

Page 61



 

 
The Waste Hierarchy 
 

6.11 Energy from waste is generally seen as recovery within the waste hierarchy but in fact 
it can sit in a number of places within the waste hierarchy depending upon the 
feedstock and the efficiency within which it is performed.  

6.12 The Government sees a long term role for energy from waste. To be consistent with 
the EU Directive and the waste hierarchy this long term role needs to be based on 
energy from waste that at least constitutes recovery not disposal. The status of the 
plant is therefore a key consideration for the planning assessment of new energy from 
waste projects.  

6.13 To be classed as recovery, energy from waste facilities must meet the requirements 
set out in the Waste Framework Directive, the aim being to get ‘the most energy out 
of waste’ as opposed to ‘the most waste into energy recovery’.  The Waste 
Framework Directive incorporates an efficiency calculation (known as the R1 
formulae) which effectively sets a threshold by which to determine whether the 
operation of an incineration plant can be considered as a more efficient recovery 
operation or a less efficient disposal facility. The ‘R1’ efficiency threshold set out 
within the Directive is set at 0.65 for new installations. 
 
 
Planning Policy Statement 10: Planning for Sustainable Waste Management 
(PPS10) 
 
 

6.14 The proposed development relates to the creation of an EfW facility processing 
160,000 tonnes per year of waste, with associated manufacturing, offices and 
research. Whilst a significant element of the development remains for employment 
based uses the enlargement of the EfW facility has to be viewed as a major waste 
management facility fuelled by residual waste. This requires the development to be 
considered against the relevant national and local waste planning policies.  

 
6.15 National waste policy reflects the wider context of European law on waste 

management.  Pivotal to this legal framework is the revised EU Waste Framework 
Directive (2008/98/EC) which sets out legislative for the collection, transport, 
recovery and disposal of waste.  The aspirations of the Framework Directive for 
waste management which can be delivered through planning are enshrined in 
PPS10 which establishes the national policy for land use matters relevant to waste 
management.   

 
Page 62



 

.16 PPS10 identifies that ‘positive planning’ has an important role to play in delivering 

t 

 

 through driving waste management up 

k in which communities take more responsibility for their 
 

upporting targets, which 

e set 

ndangering human 

 of waste 

f new development supports sustainable 

 
6.17  aragraphs 22-32 set out the approach that should be taken by Waste Planning 

e a 

overnment Waste Strategy – Review of Waste Policy in England 2011 

6.18 he review sets out the government vision for a ‘zero waste’ economy in which 
ly 

n 

merging Greater Nottingham Aligned Core Strategy (June 2012) 

6.19  aragraph 216 of Annex 1 of the NPPF states that from the day of publication 
e of 

ation 
e 

6
sustainable waste management by inter alia ‘providing sufficient opportunities for 
new waste management facilities of the right type, in the right place and at the righ
time’ (paragraph 2). Moving waste management up the waste hierarchy remains a 
key objective of Government waste policy in order to reduce the environmental 
impact of waste and is therefore included as a key planning objective in PPS10.
Other key objectives include (paragraph 3): 

 help deliver sustainable development
the waste hierarchy, addressing waste as a resource and looking to disposal 
as the last option; 

 provide a framewor
own waste, and enable sufficient and timely provision of waste management
facilities to meet the needs of their communities; 

 help implement the national waste strategy, and s
are consistent with obligations required under European legislation and 
support and complement other guidance and legal controls such as thos
out in the Waste Management Licensing Regulations; 

 help secure the recovery or disposal of waste without e
health and without harming the environment, and enable waste to be 
disposed of in one of the nearest appropriate installations;  

 reflect the concerns and interests of communities, the needs
collection authorities, waste disposal authorities and business, and 
encourage competitiveness;  

 ensure the design and layout o
waste management 

P
Authorities (WPAs) in determining planning applications. Where proposals are 
consistent with an up-to-date development plan, WPAs should not require 
applicants for new or enhanced waste management facilities to demonstrat
quantitative or market need for the proposal (paragraph 22). 
 
G
 
T
material resources are re-used, recycled or recovered wherever possible and on
disposed of as a last resort option. It sets out the government’s support for energy 
from waste as waste recovery method through a range of technologies and 
believed that there is potential for the sector to grow further, noting the carbo
savings and potential energy benefits from the process (Para 207). 
 
 
E
 
P
weight can be given to relevant policies in emerging plans according to the stag
preparation, the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies 
and the degree of consistency of the emerging plan policies to the NPPF. The 
Publication version of the Greater Nottingham Aligned Core Strategies was 
published in June 2012. The document has undergone Independent Examin
earlier this year and the Inspector’s report is still awaited. No material changes wer

Page 63



 

6.20  hapter 2 sets out twelve spatial objectives which seek to deliver the vision of the 

 
i) Environmentally responsible development addressing climate change: reduce the 

 

i) Economic prosperity for all: ensure economic growth is as equitable as possible, 

l 

 
v) Regeneration: to ensure brownfield regeneration opportunities are maximised, to 

olicy 4: Employment Provision and Economic Development seeks to strengthen 

6.21  ottingham Local Plan (November 2005) saved policies: 

he following Policies have been saved and are considered to be relevant to 
ith 

T1 - Sustainable Communities. 

2 - A Successful Economy. 

 - Industrial Development Expansion. 

1 - Design Context in the Public Realm. 

2 - Layout and Community Safety. 

3 - Building Design. 

4 - Sustainable Design. 

5 - Landscape Design. 

E1 - Sites of Special Scientific Interest. 

considered relating to the substance of policies listed below, insofar as this scheme 
is concerned, and therefore this guidance should be attributed considerable weight 
in making planning decisions on proposed waste management facilities. 
 
C
strategy. The spatial objectives relevant to the proposed development are as 
follows: 

causes of climate change and minimise its impacts, locating development where it 
can be highly accessible by sustainable transport, environmentally sensitive design
and construction, reducing the risk of flooding, and promoting the use of low carbon 
technologies  
 
ii
and a more knowledge-based economy is supported. Create the conditions for all 
people to participate in the economy, by providing new and protecting existing loca
employment opportunities, improving access to training opportunities, and 
supporting educational developments at all levels.  

ensure that regeneration supports and enhances opportunities for local 
communities and residents. 
 
P
and diversify the economy of the area and provide new floorspace across all 
employment sectors, with an emphasis on supporting Core and Science City 
objectives. 
 
N
 
T
assessment of the application. The Policies are considered to be consistent w
the NPPF and therefore should be accorded full weight in the decision making 
process. 
 
S
  
ST
  
E2
  
BE
  
BE
  
BE
  
BE
  
BE
  
N
  

Page 64



 

E2 - Natural Conservation. 

E3 - Conservation of Species. 

E4 - Biological or Geological Sites of Importance for Nature Conservation. 

E5 - Trees. 

E9 - Pollution. 

E10 - Water Quality and Flood Protection. 

E13 - Contamination/Dereliction. 

E14 - Renewable Energy. 

E15 - Waste Implications of Major Development. 

2 - Planning S106 / Conditions.  

3 - Car, Cycle and Servicing Parking. 

 
.22  Nottingham Waste Local Plan (2002) saved policies 

he Waste Core Strategy (below) provides overarching policies for waste and has 

3.3 - Plant and Buildings. 

3.4 - Screening 

3.5 - Water Resources 

3.6 - Water Resources. 

3.7 - Odour. 

3.8 - Litter. 

3.9 - Noise 

3.10 - Dust. 

3.1 - Mud. 
 

W3.14 - Road Traffic. 

3.15 - Road Traffic. 

3.22 - Nature Conservation. 

N
  
N
 
N
 
N
  
N
  
N
  
N
  
N
  
N
 
T
 
T
  

6
 
T
replaced a number of the policies that were originally included in the Waste Local 
Plan. However, the following policies remain in place until superseded by a 
replacement Waste Local Plan. 
 
W
 
W
 
W
 
W
 
W
 
W
 
W
 
W
 
W

 
W
 
W
 

Page 65



 

3.23 – Nature Conservation. 

dopted Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Core Strategy (2013): 

6.23  he Waste Core Strategy was adopted in December 2013 and therefore this policy 

ded 

 
– Presumption in favour of sustainable development. States that where 

Plan) 
               

 
- Future waste provision. States that new or extended energy recovery 

te 
 

CS4 – Broad locations for waste management facilities. States that the 
r close to 

CS7 – General Site Criteria. Supports proposals for Energy Recovery proposals 

CS9 – New and Emerging Technologies. Encourages new waste treatment 
e 

CS12 – Managing our own Waste. Supports proposals that provide additional 

 needs 

CS13 – Protecting and Enhancing our Environment. Supports new waste 
 

ing or 

ent 

CS14 - Managing Climate Change. States that new facilities should be located, 

CS15 – Design of Waste Management Facilities. Supports proposals for new 

W
 
A
 
T
guidance should be attributed considerable weight in making planning decisions on 
proposed waste management facilities. The Core Strategy sets out local waste 
planning policy for Nottingham and Nottinghamshire. Its contents have been gui
by the Waste Framework Directive and the waste hierarchy, and by PPS10, and it 
is therefore consistent with national policy. 
 

 WCS1 
planning applications accord with policies in this Core Strategy (and, where 
relevant, with the policies in other plans which form part of the Development 
will be approved without delay, unless materials consideration indicate otherwise.  
 
 WCS3 
facilities will be permitted only where it can be shown that this would divert was
that would otherwise need to be disposed of and the heat and/or power generated
can be used locally or fed into the National Grid. 
 
W
development of large-scale waste treatment facilities will be supported in o
the built up areas of Nottingham and Mansfield/Ashfield. 
 
W
(including Gasification and Pyrolysis) on allocated employment sites and industrial 
estates. 
 
W
facilities making use of new or emerging technologies where this will lead to th
more efficient and sustainable management of waste. 
 
W
capacity to manage waste produced within Nottinghamshire and Nottingham. In 
respect of facilities managing waste from outside of these areas, proposals 
supported provided they make a significant contribution to meeting the waste
of Nottingham and Nottinghamshire; or there are wider social, economic or 
environmental sustainability benefits. 
 
W
treatment facilities only where it can be demonstrated that there would be no
unacceptable impact on environmental quality or the quality of life for those liv
working nearby and where this would not result in an unacceptable cumulative 
impact. Proposals should maximise opportunities to enhance the local environm
through landscape, habitat ore community facilities. 
 
W
designed and operated to minimise impacts on, and increase adaptability to, 
climate change. 
 
W
waste management facilities that incorporate high standards of design and 
landscaping including sustainable construction measures. 

Page 66



 

6.24  lenheim Lane Nottingham Energy Park – Informal planning Guidance 
ent of 

f the 

 

. APPRAISAL OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

 
B
(January 2102). This document sets out planning principles for the developm
the site as an energy park. The guidance is informal because it does not form part 
of the development plan and has not been through a formal consultation or 
adoption process, and therefore has less weight than the adopted policies o
Development Plan. 

 
7  

Main Issues 

ciple of the development 

a) Employment,  
ent and Energy from Waste Development 

) Environmental Impacts of the Development 

a) Air quality 

 and water contamination 

ct 

 landscaping 
 

Issue (i) Principle of the development – employment, waste management and 

 
a) Employment (NPPF and Adopted Local Plan: ST1, ST2, E2.2 and 

 
.1 The site is allocated in the adopted Local Plan as a proposed employment site 

 

 
.2 This scheme would create 12,137m2 of new industrial floor space which falls within 

 
 and 

rged 
t 

 

s.  It 

 
 
  

i) Prin
 

b) Waste managem
 
ii
 

b) Noise 
c) Ground
d) Transport, access and parking 
e) Ecology and conservation 
f) Landscape and visual impa
g) Flood risk and drainage 
h) Layout, urban design and

energy. 

Nottingham Waste Core Strategy: WCS7) 

7
E2.2. Policy E2 advises that planning permission will be granted on this site for 
industrial development within employment classes B1, B2 and B8. Policy ST2 
promotes the development of allocated sites, including the re-use of previously
development land. 

7
employment classes B1, B2 and B8.  The previous 2013 consent proposed 
14,900m²of industrial floor space. The current scheme therefore represents a
reduction of 2763 m² industrial floor space compared to the consented scheme
can largely be attributed to the removal of one of the previously proposed 
manufacturing buildings from the current scheme to accommodate the enla
EfW facility and associated external plant. The provision of the EfW facility, whils
not falling within the normal range of employment generating uses, would generate
jobs and is a complementary element of the operation of the remainder of the site. 
In addition, Policy WCS7 of the Waste Core Strategy supports the location of 
gasification and pyrolysis plants on land which is allocated for employment use
is therefore considered that the scheme as a whole is in accordance with the 
strategic land use allocation of the site for employment. 

Page 67



 

 
.3 The development would support the Emerging Core Strategy and its spatial 

 their 

liver 

 
.4  The NPPF commits the planning system to delivering sustainable economic growth 

 The 
on 

 
.5 As with the 2013 planning consent it is proposed that the capacity of the EfW be 

ur 
ed 

nt 

ce 
 

 

b) Waste Management and Energy from Waste development (Waste 
d  the 

7.6 he proposed development relates to the creation of an EfW facility, manufacturing, 

lid 

l 

e 

 
.7 The WCS sets out strategic policy and criteria on the general location, and types of 

 
.8 The WCS states that it will aim to provide sufficient waste management capacity for 

7
objective and policy 4, and policies ST1 and ST2 of the adopted Local Plan in
aim of promoting economic prosperity for all and the creation of a successful 
economy and sustainable community. The development would continue to de
up 250 jobs of different types, giving people the opportunity to access local 
employment. 

7
and the transition to a low carbon future. The development would meet this 
objective through the creation a significant number of local employment 
opportunities and support the drive toward sustainable economic growth.
provision of local jobs would directly contribute towards the move to a low carb
future, reducing the need for local people to travel large distances to work. 

7
restricted by condition in order to maintain the employment component of the 
scheme. This would also safeguard wider environmental impacts that may occ
from a more intensive waste processing operation. The site has also been design
as a single user site with the employment and waste management elements being 
highly interlinked. There is concern that a subsequent Hazardous Substance 
Consent for the EfW facility may limit the potential for the use of the employme
element of the scheme by an independent commercial operator. It is therefore 
proposed to require that the manufacturing, research and development and offi
element of the scheme is built and ready for occupation before operation of the EfW
element and this will be secured by condition as per the 2013 consent. 

 

Framework Directive, PPS 10, Waste Local Plan: W6.3 and W3.1 an
Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Core Strategy:WCS1, WCS3, 
WCS4, WCS7, WCS9, and WCS12, NPPF, Adopted Local Plan: NE14) 

 
T
offices and research. Whilst a significant element of the development remains for 
employment based uses, i.e. manufacturing and research and development, the 
enlargement of the EfW facility to process 160,000 tonnes of waste a year has to 
be viewed as a major waste management facility fuelled by residual waste. The 
feed material for the EFW facility would be the residual elements of Municipal So
Waste (MSW), Commercial and Industrial Waste (C&I) and Refuse Derived Fuel 
(RDF) both from Nottingham and Nottinghamshire, and beyond albeit within a 
limited area). The EfW facility is proposed to process 160,000 tonnes of residua
waste per year. As the scheme includes a major waste management facility, the 
development should be assessed against guidance contained in PPS 10, the 
adopted Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Core Strategy (WCS) and th
relevant policies of the Waste Local Plan (2002). 

7
waste facilities, that are likely to be needed over the period to 2031. In line with the 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), there is a presumption in favour of 
sustainable development set out within Policy WCS1. 

7
its needs, to manage a broadly equivalent amount of waste to that produced within 

Page 68



 

s 
 

 
.9 The NPPF (paragraph 98) and PPS10 (paragraph 22) state that renewable or low 

 
.10 Alongside Policy WCS3, the Waste Core Strategy includes indicative figures to 

y 

that 

is 

 

or 

 

 
.11 At the present time recycling rates for local authority collected municipal waste are 

nd 

n 

 
.12 The proposed EfW facility would process waste that is currently unable to be 

sed 

r 

 
- 85,000 tonnes from a Material Recycling Facility (MRF) residual material i.e. 

grade Refuse Derived Fuel pellets – from a waste 

esidue waste– from a company 

 
.13 Of the proposed energy being generated 4.5 MW is intended to be used within the 

m 

Nottinghamshire and Nottingham and that new energy recovery facilities will be 
permitted only where it can be shown that this would divert waste that would be 
otherwise need to be disposed of and the heat and or power generated can be 
used locally or fed into the national grid (WCS3).  The use of energy recovery, a
proposed in this application is therefore supported by WCS3 where this will help to
divert waste out of landfill and the heat and/or electricity can be used locally or fed 
to the national grid. 

7
carbon energy development does not need to demonstrate need for the facility 
where proposals are consistent with an up to date development plan.  

7
illustrate the potential amount of recycling, energy recovery and disposal capacit
that is likely to be required over the plan period, based on achieving the 70% 
recycling target. However, it is acknowledged within the Waste Core Strategy 
achieving this target is dependent upon the level of future local authority funding 
available for additional municipal waste collection infrastructure, private sector 
investment and the level of market demand for recycled materials. Assuming th
high level of future recycling is achieved in the longer term, it is anticipated that a 
minimum additional 194,000 tonnes of energy recovery capacity per annum will be
required in order to minimise the amount of waste that is currently disposed of to 
landfill. This figure takes account of the existing capacity at the Eastcroft Incinerat
(circa 200,000tpa), and the potential for it to expand through a consented extension 
which would provide a further 100,000tpa recovery capacity within a ‘third line’.  
The proposed Blenheim EfW facility could therefore make a contribution towards
meeting the objectives of the WCS and policy WCS3. 

7
43% within the Nottinghamshire County Council area and 32% within the 
Nottingham City Council area. The national recycling rate for commercial a
industrial waste is estimated to be 52%. Approximately 330,000 tonnes of 
municipal, commercial and industrial waste was disposed of to landfill withi
Nottinghamshire and Nottingham during 2012. 

7
recycled (residual waste) and therefore the only alternative is for it to be dispo
of in landfill. Whilst for commercial confidentiality specific suppliers have not been 
identified, section 3 of the ES has stated that Heads of Terms have been agreed fo
the following supply contracts: 

post recycling of Municipal Solid Waste from Nottinghamshire. This waste is 
currently going to landfill. 
- 40,000 tonnes of coarse 
management company based in Nottingham. 
- 35,000 tonnes of Commercial and Industrial r
based in Derby. The waste will be sourced from Derby, West Nottingham & 
surrounding areas. This waste is currently going to landfill 

7
site and with the remaining excess 25 MW being exported to the national grid. This 
is to be secured through condition. The process also enables recyclable material 
such as ferrous and non‐ferrous metals, glass and aggregates to be recovered fro

Page 69



 

 
.14 The Framework Directive requires that recovery should be used ahead of disposal 

e 

. 

 
.15 The City Council has employed an environmental consultant to independently verify 

 

58. 
 
.16 The report highlighted that energy efficiency could be improved through the use of 

t 

 
ed in 

 
.17  The applicant has not applied to the Environment Agency for R1 status however 

 

 

 
.18 Policy WCS3 supports larger waste treatment facilities in or close to the built up 

ed 

 
.19 National policy and the WCS show clear support for the delivery of new and 

nergy 

 
.20 The ES states that materials used to fuel the EfW facility would be sourced from 

 

is 
p 

 
.21  In light of the above, and in terms of strategic waste policy  the proposed facility is 

the waste. In this regard, the proposal therefore complies with policy WCS3. 

7
and establishes the R1 formula to establish the efficiency of the technology in its 
recovery of energy from municipal solid waste. As approximately 50% of the wast
being processed in the facility is proposed to be residual solid waste the applicant 
has been requested to apply the R1 formula to the proposed Blenheim EFW facility
They have submitted a summary R1 figure for the initial design stage of the process 
which calculated a predicted R1 efficiency score of 0.75 against the required score 
of 0.65.  

7
the R1 figure. The consultant’s report has confirmed that the calculation provided 
by the applicant has been carried out correctly. It is the opinion of the consultant 
that the feedstock utilised in the plant could be determined as being ‘recovered’ 
rather than ‘disposed of’. In conclusion they have stated that the proposed facility
therefore moves the residual municipal solid waste up the waste hierarchy from 
disposal to recovery. It is however noted that the R1 figure of 0.75 relies upon 
commercial use of heat energy, and that without this the plant would achieve 0.

7
heat in the form of Combined Heat and Power (CHP).  Whilst at present there is no
a clear and ready-made market for CHP in the locality the applicant has agreed to 
ensure that the plant is CHP ready to address future opportunities to utilise heat. 
This will be secured by condition. The Environment Agency as part of the 
Environmental Permit process will also require the facility to meet the Best
Available Technology Test of being consented, constructed and commission
preparation for CHP.  

7
they have committed to do so. To ensure that the EfW facility can be confirmed to
be a recovery operation in term of the waste hierarchy it is proposed to impose a 
condition requiring Stage 1  R1 Status (design information) to be secured prior to 
EfW facility being brought into use. On this basis it is considered that the proposal
would comply with policy WCS3. 

7
area of Nottingham and WCS7 supports gasification facilities on both existing 
employment land and allocated sites, and derelict and other previously develop
land. As the proposal seeks to develop an allocated employment site, on the edge 
of an existing employment estate, it complies with policy WCS3. 

7
emerging sustainable waste management facilities and the development of e
recovery facilities, including gasification technology (policies WCS1 and WCS9). 

7
waste operators located in Nottingham, Nottinghamshire and a small element from
Derby. In compliance with policy WCS12 of the Waste Core Strategy the EfW 
facility would prevent residual waste from being disposed of within landfill. In th
regard, the facility would make a positive contribution to the movement of waste u
the waste hierarchy and would provide an economic benefit for the local area. 

7

Page 70



 

 

 

 
ii) Environmental Impacts of the Development  

) Environmental Impacts - Air quality (NPPF, PPS 10, Adopted Local Plan: 
e 

 
.22 An Air Quality Assessment has been submitted as part of the ES. The assessment 

 

nsent. 

 
.23  The ES states that the syngas is cleaned prior to its combustion in the energy 

nd 

his 

 
.24 Emissions from the proposed process are subject to two complementary regulatory 

 
.25 Secondly, local air quality issues are considered by the Local Authority under the 

 

e 
nt has 

iled in 

 
.26 The applicant has submitted detailed atmospheric dispersion modelling to predict 

d 
 

y 

 
.27 As with the information submitted in support of the previous application, the 

considered to be of an appropriate scale, and in an appropriate location to manage
a signification proportion of the Nottingham’s and Nottinghamshire’s residual 
municipal, commercial and industrial waste in line with both national and local
waste planning policy.  

 
a
NE9, Adopted Waste Local Plan W3.1, W3.7, W3.8 and W3.10 and Waste Cor
Strategy: WCS13) 

7
identifies that the main source of emissions is from the combustion of synthetic gas 
(syngas) produced by the gasification of waste material brought to site. Emissions 
are proposed to be vented into the atmosphere through the proposed twin flue 50m
high stack. This has been increased in height by 15m from the stack height 
proposed to serve the ‘demonstrator’ facility which has previously secured co
There would also be ‘tail-pipe’ emissions from waste transport vehicles, materials 
delivery and product distribution vehicles and staff vehicles. 

7
component of the facility (gas engines and Heat Recovery Steam Generator) a
only clean syngas is utilised. This achieved by passing the syngas through a 
‘scrubber’ to remove the solids and quench the gases, followed by an alkali 
scrubber to neutralise any acids, and finally a polishing stage. The result of t
process is that emissions arising from the combustion of syngas are cleaner. 

7
regimes. Firstly, direct emissions from the EfW facility would be controlled by the 
Pollution Prevention and Control Act 1999 (and Environmental Permitting 
Regulations 2010), and regulated by the Environment Agency. 

7
Environment Act 1995 (Part 3: Local Air Quality Management). In order to quantify
the potential impact of emissions of the process and to determine the maximum 
height of the stack for dispersion for the purposes of this regime, detailed 
atmospheric dispersion modelling has been undertaken. On the basis of th
submitted air quality assessment, Pollution Control considers that the applica
designed the installation (when operated in conjunction with an Environment 
Agency ‘permit’ assuming the same is granted) to ensure emission limits deta
the Waste Incineration Directive (For the Environmental Permitting (England and 
Wales) Regulations 2010) Version 3.1) will be met. Furthermore the applicant will 
need to ensure, via the permitting process, that emissions limits will also meet the 
Air Quality Objectives for sensitive ecological systems. 

7
ground level concentrations using Waste Incineration Directive emission limits, 
emissions from predicted vehicle movements associated with site operations an
existing traffic levels in the locality. This work predicted that the relevant Air Quality
Objectives would not be exceeded. The dispersion modelling also calculated 
ground level concentrations of a wider range of chemicals, concluding that the
would have a negligible impact. 

7

Page 71



 

red 

est of 

posed 

00m 

ite 

isfy the 

 
.28 The Council’s Pollution Control team has stated that the development is predicted 

 
.29 The Environment Agency (EA) has stated that they do not object to the principle of 

he EA 

 

nt 

ity 

 
.30 The ES has stated that it is a prerequisite for the permitting regime that operators 

ste 

er 

 
.31 The impact of air quality on ecology and nature conservation will be considered in 

 
b) Environmental Impacts - Noise (NPPF, Adopted Local Plan: NE9, Adopted 

7.32  e applicant has carried out a noise assessment in order to assess predicted 
to 

dispersion modelling and air quality impact assessment work has not conside
the Rolls Royce site as a potential receptor in relation to emissions from the 
development.  The site is approximately 600 metres to the north and north-w
the site and now has the benefit of planning permission for its development. 
However, the assessment does identify residential receptors closer to the pro
stack such as properties at the allotment site in which the Showman’s Winter 
Quarters is located at 200m, Langdown Close at 400m, Norwich Gardens at 5
and Seller’s wood Drive at 500m. These identified receptors are closer to the 
energy facility than the proposed residential development on the Rolls Royce s
and the air quality assessment concluded that emission limits as set out in the 
Waste Incineration Directive would be met in respect of these receptors. 
Notwithstanding this, as stated above, the facility would be required to sat
Environment Agency’s permitting regulations and therefore emission levels would 
be looked at in detail as part of that process to ensure that residential occupants, 
including future occupiers of the Rolls Royce site development are not adversely 
affected. 

7
to meet current air quality objectives for a development of this nature. 

7
the development. Under the Environmental Permitting (England and Wales) 
Regulations, an Environmental Permit for the development will be required. T
will be the Regulatory Authority responsible for assessing the permit application 
and monitoring the management and operation of the facility. The operator will be
required to demonstrate that emissions to air, land, water and sewer will not 
significantly impact the relevant environmental quality standards or assessme
levels to protect the environment for sensitive receptors such as humans and 
protected ecological habitats. The operator will also have to ensure that Best 
Available Techniques are employed in the management and operation of the 
installation to ensure the risk of pollution is prevented or otherwise minimised. 
These techniques will be determined by risk assessment and will address amen
issues such as dust, odour and noise to ensure sufficient mitigation is in place to 
ensure risk of nuisance is minimised. 

7
demonstrate a management system which establishes operational controls to 
minimise its environmental impacts. In order to do this it is confirmed that all wa
management processing and storage is proposed to be contained within the 
building envelope to minimise potential impacts in terms of odour dust and litt
problems.  This will also secure compliance with W3.7, W3.8 and W3.10 of the 
adopted Waste Local Plan which require the enclosure of all processing and of 
waste reception and storage, dust generating plant and the sheeting of HGVs 
carrying waste material. 

7
the relevant section below.  

Waste Local Plan: W3.1, and W3.9 and Waste Core Strategy: WCS13) 
  
Th
noise levels arising from the proposed operation of the development in relation 
nearby residential properties at Norwich Gardens and Langdown Close and the 

Page 72



 

th 

 

art of 

 
.33 The Council’s Pollution Control department has assessed the submitted noise 

ect 

t, 
f 

 
.34 The operation of the manufacturing and research and development facilities and 

 

sed 

) Environmental Impacts - Ground and water contamination (NPPF, Adopted 

7.35  Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) was submitted as part of the ES 

 
i. The site has not been used as allotment gardens for several years. Therefore 

ered 

. It is considered unlikely that landfill waste is present beneath the site. However 

 to be 

 
iii. The environmental sensitivity of the site in relation to groundwater and 

 by a 

 
iv. The environmental risks associated with the development are considered to be 

 
.36  Pollution Control carried out an in-house Desk Study for the site in 2010, which 

development of the Rolls Royce site (southern extent). The ES concludes that wi
appropriate mitigation in place, in terms of building design and insulation and the 
noise from external plant, including the stack, being limited to reasonable design 
limits, noise from the operation of the proposed development could be mitigated to
an acceptable level and would in line with the noise restrictions imposed by 
condition on the 2013 planning permission for the site. The assessment and 
management of noise emitted from the development would be controlled as p
the Environmental Permit process by the EA. 

7
assessment and further discussions have taken place with the applicant in resp
of the agreement of appropriate noise controls for the development. Pollution 
Control are satisfied that, subject to the imposition of conditions restricting plan
equipment and activity noise not controlled by a EA Permit, an appropriate level o
noise control can be achieved for the development, particularly given the energy 
plants operation on a 24hour basis. 

7
offices are proposed to take place during normal working hours Monday to Friday
and Saturday mornings only. No operations would take place on Sunday or Bank 
Holidays. Furthermore, whilst the energy plant would operate on a 24 hour basis 
services, deliveries including waste deliveries would also take place in line with 
hours of operation proposed for the remaining parts of the development. A 
condition restricting the component parts of the development to these propo
hours of use forms part of the recommendation. 
 
c
Local Plan: NE9, NE10 and NE12, Adopted Waste Local Plan: W3.1, W3.5 and 
W3.6 and Waste Core Strategy: WCS13) 
 
A
for both the previous planning application and as part of the ES for the current 
development. It concluded that: 

the potential presence of asbestos and fly-tipping waste, the potential for 
ground contamination associated with historical on-site activities is consid
to be moderate. 

 
ii

the potential for landfill gas to have migrated beneath the subject site is 
considered moderate and for leachate to have migrated beneath the site
low (as the site is inferred to be up-gradient of the former landfill). 

ecological receptors is considered to be moderate. The site is underlain
principal aquifer at approximately 0.5m in depth. 

low with respect to groundwater (subject to appropriate operational controls) 
and low with respect to surface water and human health. 

7
concluded: 

Page 73



 

 
- No major geological faults are recorded for the site. It is noted that bedrocks 

No artificial deposits are recorded on the site. The area adjacent to the east 
 

The current radon maps indicate the area is classified as Radon Class 3).  

n 

The closed gassing landfill is situated adjacent to the site. The northern part 

e 
as 

 
.37 Following on from the Phase 1 report a more detailed Geotechnical and 

of the ES 

the 

 
.38 Pollution Control are generally satisfied with the findings of the Geotechnical and 

her 

 be 

 
.39 The EA have reviewed the submitted Geotechnical and Environmental Site 

no 
er 

 
.40  The EA has identified that the majority of ground and water contamination issues 

) Environmental Impacts - Transport, access and parking (Adopted Local 

 

beneath the site have extensive fracture systems that could provide 
pathways for gases and ground waters.   

 
- 

forms in filled ground, which corresponds to areas of former quarrying activity
which was later used as a landfill site (known as Hoewood Road).   

 
- 

Currently building regulations require preventative measures in Affected 
Areas where there is greater than a 3% chance of a property having rado
levels above the current Action Level.  

 
- 

of the landfill site has been developed for commercial/industrial use with gas 
protection measures incorporated in the building designs and ground works 
including ventilation trenches, with no subsequent problems. There is a 
possibility that ground gas pathways may have been affected by that 
development, particularly by the hard-standing cover, and in view of th
fractured and porous nature of the underlying bedrock, a programme of g
monitoring of the allotments site will be necessary to determine whether gas 
precaution measures will be required. 

7
Environmental Site Investigation Report has also been submitted as part 
for the current development proposal relating to potential ground, surface water 
and/or groundwater contamination and potential issues regarding ground gas at 
site.  

7
Environmental Site Investigation Report, particularly given the end use of the site 
for commercial purposes with predominantly hard standing on site.  They have 
recommended that a remediation strategy and verification report to address furt
ground gas requirements and the need for an asbestos action is required.  These 
will be secured by condition as required by NE12 of the Local Plan which states 
that where the principle of development is acceptable, appropriate conditions will
applied relating to any necessary mitigation or monitoring measures.  

7
investigation Report and are satisfied with the conclusions in the report that 
significant risks to controlled waters have been identified. However, they consid
that no site investigation can fully characterise a site, and have recommended a 
condition requiring a contamination remediation strategy to be submitted for not 
previously unidentified contamination found during the development of the site.  

7
are dealt with by the Environmental Permit for the site, along with other potential 
contamination issues resulting from the development. 
 
d
Plan: BE2 and T3;  Adopted Waste Local Plan: W3.1, W3.14 and W3.15 and 
Waste Core Strategy: WCS11 and WCS13) 

Page 74



 

.41 The application has been accompanied by a supplementary Transport Assessment 

tional to 

 
.42 In terms of traffic generation, the proposal is unique in nature and the TRICS 

ation, 

d its 

9 
ents 

 

n 

 
.43 The applicant has assessed the Camberley Road roundabout with Firth Way, and 

 
.44 The construction period for this facility is considered to be important in terms of the 

s 

 
.45 The development would be served by two new vehicular accesses on Firth Way 

 by 

d 

 
.46 142 parking spaces are intended to be provided within the site. 134 spaces are 

paces 

 
.47 The overall aim of the Framework Travel Plan (FTP) is to reduce single occupancy 

a 

 
.48 In terms of accessibility of the development to other modes of transport, the 

7
and Framework Travel Plan that considers the impact of the development upon the 
surrounding highway network and takes account of opportunities for using 
sustainable modes of travel. The supplementary Traffic Assessment is addi
the Traffic Assessment submitted with the approved scheme, and takes account of 
the current proposal to create a larger EfW facility with smaller element of 
associated manufacturing, office and research and development.  

7
database has been utilised to derive the best fit trip generation. The trip gener
distribution methodology and growth factors have been agreed with the City 
Council’s Highways team. In comparison to its previous use as allotments, an
current undeveloped state, all traffic movements from the scheme would be new. 
The Traffic Assessment estimates that anticipated total traffic movements 
generated by all elements of the development would be in the region of 117
vehicular movements per day, of which 116 would be attributed to HGV movem
and the remaining vehicular movements would be attributed to staff and visitors. 
HGV traffic associated with the manufacturing operations would account for 54 of
these movements, the EfW facility 58 movements and the office/research and 
development element, 4 movements. The impact of this level of traffic generatio
has been assessed and is considered to be acceptable in this location. 

7
the Council’s highways engineers consider that there is sufficient capacity for this 
roundabout to accommodate the traffic generation from the development. 

7
impact on the highway network. This has been identified by both the Highway 
Authority and the applicant as of particular importance. The Highways team ha
therefore requested that a Construction Management Strategy be agreed before 
works begin. This detail is proposed to be secured by condition. 

7
alongside a separate pedestrian gate. One of the accesses would be used solely
HGVs while the other would be used by all other vehicles. These accesses would 
require works to the existing highway, which would necessitate the applicant to 
enter into a Section 278 agreement with the Council as Highway Authority. The 
detailed design of the new access points and off-site highway works are propose
to be secured by condition. 

7
standard car spaces with a further 8 spaces allocated for visitor use and 10 
disabled bays across the site and 12 Powered 2-Wheeler spaces. 44 cycle s
have been provided at various locations across the site. Cycle parking provision is 
calculated at a ratio of 1:10 car parking spaces, based on the maximum 
permissible.  Car and cycle parking is to be covered by condition. 

7
vehicle trips by associated with the development by 15%. It proposes a range of 
measures to encourage travel by sustainable modes of transport. The proposed 
measures are considered to be acceptable in principle, subject to a condition for 
Full Travel Plan being submitted 6 months after initial occupation. 

7

Page 75



 

ntified 

would 
 

tion to 

 

 

 
.49  The County Council’s Highways Department have undertaken its own assessment 

affic in 

ir 

 
e) Environmental Impacts - Ecology and conservation (NPPF, PPS10, Adopted 

7.50 he NPPF and policy NE1 advises that development that is likely to affect nationally 

 

 

 
.51 Policy NE2 advises that development that is likely to have an adverse impact on the 

at 

 that 

Waste 
e 

Transport Assessment submitted in support of the 2013 planning consent ide
that local bus services are located within 10 minutes’ walk of the development on 
Bennerley Road, Freeston Drive and Seller’s Wood Drive. The Yellow line bus, 
which serves Blenheim Industrial Estate, also serves Bulwell, allowing for 
connections to NET Line 1 and the rail network beyond. The development 
also be served by a good network of existing pedestrian cycling routes, which link
into surrounding residential areas in BulwelI. The existing shared cycle and 
pedestrian route which extends along Camberley Road provide good connec
the residential areas to the east and also provides in combination with cycle lanes 
access into Bardney Drive to the south and cycle routes further afield. A further 
footpath and cycle lane connects Blenheim Lane with Bennerley Road to provide
access to the Snape Wood estate to south west. The measures, such as secure 
and sheltered cycle parking and changing/shower facilities for employees are 
proposed as part of the Framework Travel Plan to encourage employees and 
visitors to use these more sustainable modes of travel.  The same assessment
applies to the current scheme and therefore the development would therefore 
comply with T3 of the adopted Local Plan. 

7
of the Nuthall roundabout, which is within their jurisdiction, using the figures 
provided in the Transport Assessment relative to the predicted background tr
year 2022 in both AM and PM peaks. They concluded that the traffic impact will be 
small and can be mitigated by minor adjustments to the traffic signal timings that 
the County Council undertake occasionally. On this basis, they have raised no 
objections on highway grounds to the development. The Highways Agency has 
commented that the submitted Transport Assessment has been reviewed by the
planning consultants and the development is unlikely to have a material impact 
upon the closest strategic route, the M1. The Highways Agency has therefore 
raised no objections to the proposal. 

Local Plan: BE5, NE1, NE2, NE3 and NE4; Adopted Waste Local Plan W3.1, 
W3.22 and W3.23 and Waste Core Strategy: WCS13) 
 
T
SSSIs will be subject to special scrutiny. Where such development may have an 
adverse effect, either directly or indirectly, planning permission will not be granted
unless the reasons for the development clearly outweigh policy to safeguard such 
sites. This guidance advises further that if planning permission is granted, 
conditions and or planning obligations will be sought to provide appropriate
mitigation and compensation measures.  

7
flora, fauna, landscape or geological features of a locally important site will not be 
permitted unless it can be demonstrated that there are reasons to outweigh the 
need to safeguard the nature conservation value of a site. Policy NE3 advises th
planning permission will not be granted for development which would have an 
adverse impact on protected species or their habitats unless it is demonstrated
there is an overriding need for the development. It further advises that planning 
conditions and/or obligations can be negotiated to ensure the favourable 
conservation status of the species. In the context of biodiversity, Adopted 
Core Strategy policy WCS13 advises that new waste treatment facilities will only b
supported where it can be demonstrated that there would be no unacceptable 
impact on environmental quality. 

Page 76



 

 
.52 The ES identifies that within a 5km radius of the site, there are four nationally 

nd 
) 

 sites 

 
.53 The ES concludes that there would be no environmental impacts upon statutory or 

 

 
.54 Natural England have considered the ES and its supporting information and have 

ge or 

ing 

re 

 
.55 In terms of the ecological value of the site itself, the ES refers to an ecological 

 
g 

nd 

d 

 
.56 At the Council’s ecologist request to provide an updated ecological survey of the 

the 

ential 

 
.57 A day time bat survey was been undertaken in April 2013. No specific features with 

 to 
y 

 

7
designated SSSIs: at Sellars Wood, Bulwell Wood, Sledder Wood Meadows a
Kimberley Railway cutting. In addition there are four Local Nature Reserves (LNR
within 2km, 5 additional LNRs within 2-5km as wells as 12 Biological Sites of 
Importance to Nature Conservation (SINC) within a 2km radius. Several of the
have more than one designation.  

7
non-statutory sites in the surrounding area, other than potentially through emissions
to air. The air quality assessment accompanying the ES has demonstrated that 
there is no impact on designated sites within a 5km radius.  

7
stated that they are satisfied that the proposed development, subject to being 
carried out in strict accordance with the details of the application, will not dama
destroy the interest features for which the SSSI sites has been notified. They 
advise that these SSSIs do not represent a constraint in determining the plann
application.  The proposal would therefore comply with policy NE2 of the Local 
Plan, policy W3.22 of the Waste Local Plan and policy WCS13 of the Waste Co
Strategy. 

7
survey that was undertaken in September 2011 by the City Council. The survey
found that that the majority of the site comprised rough grassland which was bein
invaded by scrub and brambles. There were few mature trees on the site itself, the 
exception being two mature trees located towards the north west side of the site. 
There were some mature trees with boundary hedge rows. No protected species 
were observed during the survey. A badger sett had been identified on the site at 
the outset of the site’s clearance, and was thought to be an outlying or transient 
sett. In accordance with an action plan, agreed in consultation with Natural Engla
and the Council’s ecologist, weekly monitoring took place to determine if the set 
was still in use. By the end of the monitoring period the sett had not been used an
was closed April 2013 to prevent re-use. The site was subsequently cleared by the 
City Council in early 2013.  

7
site, the applicant has now submitted a follow up survey of the site. The survey 
found no change in the status of the site following the initial ecological survey 
carried out prior to April 2013. There are no signs that badgers have occupied 
site. Since clearance there has been little change to the botanical situation on the 
site; vegetative cover has regenerated and now covers the entire plot which has 
provided extensive habitat resource for ground breeding birds. The Council’s 
ecologist is satisfied with the findings of the follow on survey and given the pot
for ground nesting birds recommends that further site clearance takes places 
outside the bird breeding season. This will be secured by condition. 

7
bat roosting potential were identified on the site, although some ivy covered trees 
were considered to offer limited potential for roosting. Two activity surveys 
subsequently were undertaken during the active season (May –September)
confirm the absence/presence of roosts within these trees, as well to identify an
important foraging routes.  No evidence of bats or bat roosting features were found
within any of the trees in the hedgerow and no bats were recorded either returning 

Page 77



 

gned to 

 
.58 A landscape strategy has been submitted as part of the ES which proposes 

abitat 

 
 The enhancement and maintenance of boundary hedgerows to strengthen 

 and strengthened. 
ditional planting on 

riety of site 

7.59 The Council’s ecologist is broadly supportive of the landscape strategy for the site 
 

 Environmental Impacts - Landscape and visual impact (NPPF, PPS 10, 
 

7.60 ood quality design is a key priority both within the NPPF and Local Plan policies. 

ure 

 
.61 The accommodation of the enlarged EfW has resulted in the site layout being 

e 
 

rical 

 
.62 To address the scale and height of the proposed buildings and the potential 

 
 

ve 

 
.63 In response to comments made by Nottinghamshire County Council’s Landscape 

 from the 

to roost or emerging from any tree during either of the activity surveys. The 
Council’s ecologist has requested that the proposed lighting scheme be desi
take of potential bat foraging routes and this will be secured by condition. 

7
selective planting and a range of native species to provide opportunities for h
creation and diversification to increase the biodiversity potential of the site. This 
includes the following proposals: 

bio diversity linkages with the wider landscape. 
 A brown roof to the office building. 
 Existing hedgerows to be enhanced
 Remodelling of the proposed balancing pond to allow ad

its margins and opportunities for wet land habitat creation. 
 The establishment of different wildflower mixes to suit the va

conditions across the whole site. 
 

but requests detailed proposals for the landscape scheme which will be secured by
condition. 
 
f)
Adopted Local Plan: BE3; Adopted Waste Local Plan: W3.3 and W3.4 and
Waste Core Strategy: WCS13) 
 
G
The key objectives in PPS 10 identify that design and layout should support 
sustainable waste management. The PPS further advises on the need to sec
integration of waste management facilities without adverse impact on the street 
scene.  

7
reconfigured and an overall reduction in the amount of built development on th
site. The operational requirements of the EfW facility and has however resulted in
an increase in amount of external plant now being proposed.  The proposal is still 
for a large scale development on a substantial site, located at the north western 
edge of the city adjoining designated Green Belt and open allotment land. It is 
recognised that several buildings would be larger than most buildings on the 
adjacent Blenheim Industrial Estate and together with the 50m stack, the sphe
gas accumulators at 15 and 24m in height and the height of some of the external 
plant now proposed (the tallest being 22m in height) would appear to be very tall 
and dominant against this context.  

7
landscape and visual impact of the development, the ES is accompanied by a
Landscape and Visual Assessment. Long-distant and close up photomontages
have been submitted with the application. In addition, sun path analysis plans ha
been submitted that show the potential impact of shading of the buildings on the 
immediately adjacent parts of the golf course and allotment. 

7
Team, a revised Landscape Visual Impact Assessment and additional 
photomontages have been received showing views of the development

Page 78



 

 
.64 The assessment includes detailed information about the baseline landscape and 

e of 

 

eir 

s 

 
.65 As with the 2013 planning consent the results of the Landscape Visual Impact 

al 

f 
tial 

e 

 
.66 To mitigate the visual impact of the development identified by the assessment it is 

 

t have 

 to 

 
.67 A new landscape strategy has been prepared to support this application, elements 

ite 

 
 A 9m landscaped mound at the north western corner of the site. 

 along the 

d strengthened; 

adjoining golf course and allotment showing after ten years growth of the 
landscaping scheme. 

7
visual context. The methodology uses a character based criteria to assess and 
describe the landscape, it identifies the site’s visual sensitivity and the magnitud
change. In terms of the baseline landscape context, the assessment highlight that 
the character of the Blenheim Business park and the immediate vicinity to the south
west along Blenheim Lane to be of ‘low sensitivity’. However the landscape of 
Bulwell Hall Park and its golf course is deemed to be of ‘medium sensitivity’ and the 
former allotment site serves as a buffer between the two. Occupiers of nearby 
residential properties are considered to be of medium visual sensitivity due to th
limited views of the development, even in winter months. Visitors to Bulwell Hall 
Park and the users of the golf course have been described by the assessment, a
being of a medium visual sensitivity as this is a recreational destination of some 
local significance. 

7
Assessment indicate that the development would be likely to have greatest visu
impact when viewed from the southern perimeter of the golf course in Bulwell Hall 
Park and the middle of the allotment site, with the change being classed as 
moderate to substantial to moderate adverse. This is because it is in these 
locations where the buildings would be most prominent and the magnitude o
change would be greatest. These findings are accepted. There are no residen
properties adjoining the site and it is acknowledged that many of the dwellings in 
close proximity to the site are already exposed to views of the existing industrial 
estate and to a significant degree are screened from those premises by existing 
intervening landscaping. To this effect, the assessment considers that the visual 
impact when viewed from Hoewood Road and Bardney Drive would be low and th
magnitude of change has been classed as having no change. 

7
proposed to lower the existing ground level of the site which results in the proposed
floor level of the proposed buildings being approximately 2.5m to 6.9m below the 
level of the adjoining allotment and golf course.  Improvements made to the 
external finish of the buildings proposed as part of the 2013 planning consen
been retained, with timber cladding being proposed to the most visually prominent 
of the externally facing facades. While it is considered that some of the buildings 
would be substantial in height and area, it is considered that the design treatment
their facades would help to soften the visual impact of the buildings when viewed 
from the surrounding area. 

7
of which are proposed to have a direct, positive impact on landscape and visual 
amenity, as well as biodiversity benefits. The landscape strategy in particular 
focuses on the use of the open areas on the north and western edges of the s
where the visual impact of the development are greatest. These include: 

 fast growing evergreen tree planting for screening key viewpoints
west, north and southern boundaries of the site; 

 existing hedgerows will be retained, enhanced an
 a new wetland habitat created in the south east corner of the site; 
 establishment of different wild flower mixes; 

Page 79



 

nefit additional tree planting on 

 

 
.68 The findings of the Visual Impact Assessment are supported. It is considered that 

l 

 in the 

 

 
.69 The Council’s Ecologist and Allotment Team have raised concerns regarding the 

 

al 

 

 

 

g)  Environmental Impacts - Flood risk and drainage (NPPF; PPS10; Adopted 
 

7.70 he NPPF and NE10 of the adopted Local Plan seek to protect the quality of 

 
.71 The developer has submitted a Flood Risk Assessment as part of the ES, which 

 

 

 

 

e 

 
.72 The Council’s drainage engineer and the Environment Agency both consider the 

 

 the landscape strategy has highlighted the be
the newly establishment earth mounds along the golf course boundary would 
achieve in mitigating its visual impact form the golf course and the Rolls 
Royce site beyond. The potential for this planting is currently be explored
with Park and open Spaces.  

7
the proposed landscaping, level changes and sympathetic treatment of the externa
cladding of the buildings would help mitigate against the visual impact of the 
proposal, particularly when viewed from Bulwell Hall Park and the adjacent 
allotment site. The impact of the proposed landscaping scheme can be seen
additional photomontage of views from the golf course and allotment showing the 
landscaping after ten years growth. Notwithstanding this, the essential character of
the structures would, would not be changed.  Their substantial physical presence 
when viewed in close proximity could not be ignored. 

7
findings of the sun path analysis which shows significant shading of the immediate
adjacent plots to the manufacturing building and gas accumulators in February. 
There is the potential this will impact on food growing on these plots.  The remov
of the second manufacturing building from the current scheme and the lowering of 
the site’s grounds levels would help to mitigate the impact of shading.  The siting of
the gas accumulators in this western boundary area would also help to break up the 
mass of development adjacent to the allotments. The operational requirements of 
the site mean that no further changes can be made its layout to help mitigate 
against this impact. On balance it is considered that whilst this is not ideal, the
impact would not be sufficient to warrant refusal of the application.  

 

Local Plan: NE10; Adopted Waste Local Plan: W3.1, W3.5 and W3.6 and Waste
Core Strategy: WCS13) 
 
T
ground water and resist proposals that increase the risk of flooding.  

7
concludes that part of the site falls within flood zone 1 and therefore the risk of the
site flooding is very low. The Assessment recognises that the development would 
result in the site being converted from a fully permeable plot covering 6.9 hectares
to development which is 75.3% impermeable (5.52 hectares). To mitigate against 
the risk of flooding from surface water run off the 2013 planning consent proposed
to provide two ponds located in the northwest and southeast corners of the site. 
The drainage strategy for the current development proposes to attenuate surface
water from the site by proposing a single enlarged pond located on the southern 
corner, close to the entrance of the site. The pond has been designed to discharg
surface water from the site based on green field run off rates and attenuate flows 
up to the 1 in 100 years plus 30% storm return event. Additional surface water 
storage would be provided in oversized pipes under the access road. 

 7
drainage solution to be acceptable subject to a condition to agree details of the 
surface water drainage proposals before work commences. 

Page 80



 

iii) Layout and urban design (NPPF; Adopted Local Plan: BE2, BE3 and BE5; 

 
.73 The layout and design of the development has been informed by the function of the 

s 

ith 

ver 

 
.74 The scale of the buildings has been dictated by their function and the operations 

pt 

ent 

he 

 
.75 In contrast, the proposed office building has been designed to provide an 

creen to 

her by 

 

. SUSTAINABILITY / BIODIVERSITY BE4 and NE14

Adopted Waste Local Plan: W3.1, W3.5 and W3.6 and Waste Core Strategy: 
WCS13 and WCS15) 

7
site as a small industrial estate occupied by a series of buildings with interrelated 
operations and the need to ensure that the development as a whole operates 
efficiently. The current development and the enlargement of the EfW facility ha
resulted in the site layout being reconfigured with and overall reduction in built 
development and a greater proportion of operational infrastructure associated w
the EfW facility being externally located. This would clearly increase the visual 
impact of the development however the mitigation measures mentioned in the 
landscape and visual impact section of this report will help reduce this impact o
time. 

7
taking place within them. Where possible, the height of the buildings has been ke
to a minimum and range between 12m to 19m in height. To further mitigate the 
visual on these large buildings  refinement has been made to the external treatm
of the buildings with the aim of creating a coherent ‘family’ of buildings which follow 
a consistent approach in choice of materials across the development. All buildings 
are proposed to be clad in two toned grey metal cladding system, a darker grey is 
proposed at their base to help visually ‘ground’ the buildings, with a lighter grey 
above to help the colour blend with the sky. A mid- band of horizontal panel of 
timber open timber is then proposed to over clad the main metal façade  which 
would be applied on the key visual location on the outward facing elevations of t
buildings. An intermittent, rather than continuous use of timber aims to reduce the 
scale of the buildings, and the horizontal alignment of the of the timber, which will 
be detailed with open spaces between, is proposed to further soften and layer the 
facades, particularly when viewed against the backdrop of existing and proposed 
landscaping. 

7
architectural feature at the entrance of the site and when viewed from the 
Camberley Road roundabout. The office building would be simply detailed 
horizontal ribbon of windows and the use the timber cladding as a full rain s
create a refined timber box, which has been designed to ‘float’ above gabion 
enclosures of the car park below. This entrance building will be enhanced furt
appropriate landscaping. 
 

 
8  

.1 Policy BE4 advises that planning permission will be granted for development which 

 
.2 The power generated in the energy demonstrator element of the development 

d 
s 

 

 
8

accords with the principles of sustainability in design, including renewable 
resources, recycling, accessibility and efficiency. 

8
would be used to meet the energy needs of the development as a whole. The 
demonstrator plant has the capability of producing up to 29 MW/hr of energy an
the plant itself would consume 4 MW/Hr of this energy produced. Up to 25MW/hr i
therefore intended to be exported to the National Grid, which is in accordance with 
the guidance contained within WCS policy WCS3. 

Page 81



 

.3 A BREEAM pre-assessment has submitted as part of the ES which shows that the 

e is 

 
 Sustainably sourced / certified timber for cladding. 

 installation of roof lights 

ctor 

andscape proposals 

le. 

ducing car 

anels. 

ort of heat, subject to a suitable end user in the vicinity. 

ill 

 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

8
development has the potential to be rated ‘Very Good’. Details of sustainable 
measures that are proposed to be considered as inclusion as part of the schem
as follows: 

 Natural lighting in buildings where possible through
subject to noise insulation requirements in manufacturing / process areas. 

 Construction and Environmental Management Plan to be developed. Contra
to be member of Considerate Constructors Scheme. 

 New habitats and increase in biodiversity as part the l
including a brown roof to the office and new water habitats. 

 Lighting to be low voltage with sensors installed where feasib

 Development of travel plan with measures specifically aimed at re
travel. 

 Solar p

 Potential for exp

 Environmental Management System to be developed for the site which w
require continuous improvement in environmental performance across all 
aspects of operations and activities. 

 Sustainable drainage. 

 
9  

None. 

10 EGAL IMPLICATIONS

 

 
L  

he issues raised in this report are primarily ones of planning judgement. Should 

11 QUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

 
T
legal considerations arise these will be addressed at the meeting. 
 
E  

he scheme will provide greater opportunities for local people from all sections of 

12 ISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES

 
T
the community to access a wide range of jobs. 
 
R  

he management of emissions and residues will be controlled as part of the 
rmit to 

he storage syngas on the site will be controlled through the Hazardous Substance 

13 TRATEGIC PRIORITIES

 
T
environmental permitting regulations. The developer intends to apply for a pe
the Environment Agency should planning permission be granted. 
 
T
Consent (HSC) regime. The developer intends to apply for a HSC to the City 
Council should planning permission be granted. 
 
 
S  

orking Nottingham: This is a strategic employment site, the development of which 
 
W

Page 82



 

orld Class Nottingham: a development that would enhance Nottingham’s standing 

14 RIME AND DISORDER ACT IMPLICATIONS

will deliver local employment and training opportunities during both the construction 
and subsequent operation of the development. 
 
W
for science and innovation, underpinned by a proven technology that will lead to the 
more efficient and sustainable management of waste. 
 
C  

he development will create a secured site with security lighting, site management 

15 ALUE FOR MONEY

 
T
and secure boundary fencing to provide improved surveillance and community 
safety in the area. 
 
V  

one. 

16 ist of background papers other than published works or those disclosing 

 
N
 
L
confidential or exempt information 
 
1. Application No: 13/03051/PMFUL3 - link to online case file: 

http://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=MXW6WFLY00L00 

2. Severn Trent Water comments 03.03.14 and 21.05.14. 
3. Highways comments 21.02.14. 
4. Biodiversity Officer comments 04.03.14 and 01.05.14. 

ents 13.03.14, 20.03.14, 26.02.14, and 

shire Wildlife Trust comments 13.03.14. 
4.14 and 12.05.14. 

. 

.04.14 and 09.05.14 
5.14. 

ell 06.02.14 
– 31.01.14,  

2.14 (2 emails) 01.05.14, 

2.14, 24.02.14 (2 emails), 03.03.14, 

ent of Church Street Greasley and part owner of Bulwell 

 of Aspley Lane 17.02.14. 
14 

17 ublished documents referred to in compiling this report

5. Highways Agency comments 19.03.14 and 02.05.14. 
6. HSE comments 12.03.14, 10.04.14 and 17.04.14. 
7. Natural England comments 13.03.14. 
8. Nottinghamshire County Council comm

17.04.14. 
9. Nottingham
10. Pollution Control comments 19.03.14, 21.03.14, 28.0
11. Urban design comments 24.03.14 
12. Planning policy comments 28.03.14
13. Tree Officer comments 17.03.14. 
14. Environment Agency comments 07
15. Broxtowe Borough Council comments 22.04.14 and 06.0
16. Western Power Distribution comments 13.03.14. 
17.  Comments from a resident of Lathkill Close Bulw
18. Comments from a Blenheim Lane allotment tenant of plot 57c 
19. Comments from a resident of Spindle Gardens 30.01.14 
20.  Comments from Merlin Flying Club 03.02.14. 
21.  Comments from Graham Allen MP 12.02.14. 
22.  Comments from a resident of Lime Street 24.0

02.05.14 (3 emails), and 05.05.14. 
23. Friends of the Earth comments 14.0

03.04.14 and 02.05.14 
24.  Comments from a resid

Woodhall Farm 27.02.14. 
25. Comments from a resident
26. Comments from a resident of Langdown Close 31.03.
27. SLR Consulting- Review of R1 Calculation- May 2014 
 
P  

Page 83



 

ational Planning Policy Framework 
g for Waste Management 

e Strategy (June 2012) 

am Waste Core Strategy (December 2013) 

Contact Officer: 

 
N
Planning Policy Statement 10: Plannin
Nottingham Local Plan (November 2005) 
Emerging Greater Nottingham Aligned Cor
Nottingham Waste Local Plan (2002) 
Adopted Nottinghamshire and Nottingh
Blenheim Lane Nottingham Energy Park – Informal planning Guidance (January 
2102) 
 

 
e Officer, Development Management.  

e: 0115 8764041
Mrs Jo Briggs, Cas
Email: joanna.briggs@nottinghamcity.gov.uk.      Telephon

Page 84



 

 
WARDS AFFECTED: Arboretum Item No: 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
22nd July 2015 

 
REPORT OF HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT AND REGENERATION 
 
95 Talbot Street, Nottingham 
 
1 SUMMARY 
 
Application No: 15/00888/PFUL3 for planning permission 

 
Application by: Mr Simon Birch on behalf of Romiga Holdings LLP 

 
Proposal: Demolition of existing derelict building and construction of new 

residential student development consisting of 77 beds in the form 
of Studios and multi bed accommodation units including communal 
areas to Lower Ground floor. 

 
The application is brought to Committee because it is a major application for development 
on prominent site with important design and heritage. 
 
To meet the Council's Performance Targets this application should have been determined 
by 30th June 2015. 
 
2 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION subject to: 
 
1. (a) The receipt of satisfactorily amended plans for the treatment of the elevation 

of the Wollaton Street/Talbot Street corner; 
 

(b) Prior completion of a section s106 planning obligation which shall include: 
(i) a financial contribution of £31,004.05,to be used towards improvements to 
the site of the refreshment rooms at the Arboretum, in lieu of on-site open 
space provision; 
(ii) a student management scheme; 
(ii) a restriction on keeping private motor cars on site. 

 
(c) The indicative conditions substantially in the form of those listed in the draft 
decision notice at Appendix 1 to this report. 

 
Power to determine the final details of both the terms of the planning obligation 
and conditions of the planning permission to be delegated to the Head of 
Development Management and Regeneration. 

 
2. That Councillors are satisfied that Regulation 122(2) Community Infrastructure 

Levy Regulations 2010 is complied with, in that the planning obligation sought is 
(a)necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms, (b) directly 
related to the development and (c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind 
to the development. 

 

Page 85

Agenda Item 4b



 

3. That Councillors are satisfied that the section 106 obligation(s) sought would not 
exceed the permissible number of obligations according to the Regulation 123 
(3) Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010. 

 
3 BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The site is located within the City Centre and Canning Circus Conservation Area. It 

is triangular in nature and is occupied by former livery stables built in 1902 and 
fronting both Talbot Street and Wollaton Street. It is a prominent site resulting from 
the converging streets which focus upon Canning Circus at the centre of the 
conservation area. The tapering sites that exist in this area have given rise to some 
striking buildings, identified as focal points in the townscape on the proposals map 
 of the Local Plan. The former Ben Bowers/1877 restaurant, a listed building at the 
junction of Derby Road and Wollaton Street, shares the context of the application to 
the south. To the west is the listed Canning Terrace which frames the entrance to 
the General Cemetery. A terrace of Victorian villas lies to the east of the site 
fronting onto Talbot Street. Wollaton Street descends steeply south-east towards 
the city centre resulting in level changes across the site. The immediate area is 
characterised by a mix of commercial uses and increasing amounts of residential, 
including a number of student accommodation schemes. 

 
3.2 The existing building on the application site varies in height between 3 and 5 

storeys. It has a strong corner feature comprising a prominent, decorated stone 
pediment facing onto Canning Circus. However, the building has been vacant for 
many years and is in a poor state of repair. 

 
3.3 Planning permission was granted in July 2012 for a predominantly 6/7-storey high 

student accommodation building comprising 2 retail units to the lower 
ground/ground floors; 5 cluster flats and 47 self-contained units.  At the time of 
preparing this report, this planning permission (11/01989/PFUL3) remains extant; 
however, none of the pre-commencement conditions have been discharged. 

 
4 DETAILS OF THE PROPOSAL 
 
4.1 This application is seeking permission for a building of similar mass and scale to 

that previously approved on the site under 11/01989/PFUL3.  It would be 
predominantly 6 stories rising to 7 stories from Wollaton Street due to the change in 
site levels and would again form student accommodation.  The building would 
comprise communal facilities (gym; laundry; common room; trunk store and TV 
room); plant and a bin store on the lower ground floor with access from Wollaton 
Street.  The upper ground floor would accommodate the reception area and office 
accessed from Talbot Street.  A cycle store would also be positioned on this level 
along with actual units of accommodation.  In total there would be 6 three bed units 
(59.3m2); 6 two bed units (38m2); 5 ‘super’ studios (24.7m2) and 42 studios (19.1 – 
20.9 m2) providing 77 bedroooms.  The proposed accommodation sizes and layouts 
are the main change from the previous approval, along with the removal of the retail 
units and provision of communal facilities.  The accommodation arrangement has 
been proposed on the basis of the success of the applicant’s previous development 
at the nearby Talbot Studios.  The smaller cluster flats are more popular and the 
super studios are favoured by overseas students as they can stay for the duration 
of their course and have sufficient space for storage. 

 
4.2 The massing of the building would be predominantly 6 storeys, although the top 

three storeys would step down a floor each to ‘meet‘ with the adjacent villas on 

Page 86



 

Talbot Street. The building is proposed to be finished with a white render and dark 
grey tile with accents of colour alongside the window openings. A metal banding is 
proposed to the top of the building to act as a lid and provide more definition. 

 
5 CONSULTATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS OF OTHER OFFICERS 
 

Adjoining occupiers consulted: 
 

 87 – 93 (odds), 118 – 120 Talbot Street; 52, 175 – 193 (odds) Wollaton Street; 106 
 –128 Derby Road; 1A and 3A Canning Chambers; 2-8 Canning Terrace; 1 and 3 

Canning Circus 
 
Site Notice displayed 14th April 2015 and advertised in the press 22ndApril 2015. 
 
No representations have been received. 
 
Additional consultation letters sent to: 
 

 Pollution Control: No objections subject to the imposition of relevant conditions in 
relation to noise and an advisory note in relation to contaminated land. 
 
Highways: No objection subject to conditions requiring dropped kerbs to be 
reinstated, a construction management plan and the provision of secure, covered 
cycle parking. 
 
Drainage: To be reported. 
 
Biodiversity and Notts Wildlife Trust: The submitted bat survey is over 3 years 
old and a new survey should be carried out. 
 
Housing Strategy: No objection to the derelict property at 95 Talbot Street being 
brought back into use as purpose built student accommodation. 
 

 Comments have been received from the Derby Road Regeneration Steering Group. 
Accept the ground floor may not work as retail, leisure or office space, but there is a 
need for a more sympathetic design for the site given it is a gateway building into 
the city. Looking at 128 Derby Road with its clock face and curved frontage, the 
proposed building looks harsh to say the least. 

 
6 RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE 
 
 National Planning Policy Framework: 
 
6.1  The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out the Government’s 

planning policies. While planning applications still need to be determined in 
accordance with the development plan, which are set out in the report, the NPPF is 
a material consideration in the assessment of this application. 

 
6.2  The NPPF advises that there is a presumption in favour of sustainable development 

and that development which is sustainable should be approved. Paragraph 17 of 
the NPPF lists the core planning principles that should underpin decision taken on 
planning applications. Of particular relevance to this application is the need to 
secure high quality design and a good standard of amenity for all existing and 
future occupants of land and buildings, and to contribute to conserving and 

Page 87



 

enhancing the natural environment and support the transition to a low carbon 
future. 

 
6.3  Paragraphs 56-64 of the NPPF sets out the approach for achieving good quality 

design, including responding to local character, creating a strong sense of place 
and resisting poor design that fails to take opportunities to improve the character 
and the quality of an area. 

 
6.4  Paragraph 96 states that new development should be expected to take account of 

landform, layout, building orientation, massing and landscaping to minimise energy 
consumption. 

 
6.5  Paragraph 111 states that planning decisions should encourage the effective use of 

land by re-using land that has been previously developed. 
 
6.6  Annex 1 states that the NPPF aims to strengthen local decision making and 

reinforce the importance of up-to-date plans. For the purpose of decision-taking, the 
policies in the Local Plan should not be considered out-of-date and are to be 
afforded weight in accordance with their conformity with the NPPF. 
 
Nottingham Local Plan (NLP) - November 2005: 
 

 BE12 - Development in Conservation Areas. 
 
 BE13 - Demolition in Conservation Areas. 
 
 E4 - Previously Used Employment Sites. 
 
 H6 - Student Housing. 

 
NE3 - Conservation of Species. 
 
NE9 - Pollution. 
 
R2 - Open Space in New Development. 
 
T3 - Car, Cycle and Servicing Parking. 
 

 Aligned Core Strategy (ACS) - September 2014 
  
 Policy A - Presumption in favour of sustainable development. 
  
 Policy 1 - Climate change. 
  
 Policy 5 – NottinghamCity Centre 

 
Policy 10 – Design and Enhancing Local Identity. 
 
Policy 19 – Developer Contributions  
 

 Other Planning Guidance 
 
 NottinghamCity Centre Urban Design Guide 
 

Page 88



 

 Building Balanced Communities Supplementary Planning Document 
 
 Planning Guidance for the Provision of Open Space Within Developments 

 
Supplementary Planning Guidance 

 
7. APPRAISAL OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
 Main Issues 
 
 (i) Use for student accommodation. 
 (ii) Scale and design of proposed development. 
 (iii) Amenities of future and neighbouring occupiers. 
 (iv) Highways 
 
 Issue (i)Use for student accommodation (Policy H6 of the NLP and Policy 5 of 

the ACS & Building Balanced Communities SPD) 
 
7.1 The application site, which is currently vacant, falls within the defined city centre 

conveniently located within a short walking distance of Nottingham Trent University 
campus and the city centre amenities. 95 Talbot Street is conveniently located 
within a short walking distance of Nottingham Trent University campus and city 
centre amenities. It is considered that the provision of further good quality purpose-
built accommodation on this street will attract students that would otherwise occupy 
houses of multiple occupation outside of the city centre. The principle of student 
accommodation has been accepted in the previous planning permission for the 
redevelopment of this site. Accordingly, it is considered that the proposed student 
accommodation use complies with the Building Balanced Communities 
Supplementary Planning Document, Policy H6 of the Local Plan, and Policy 5 of the 
Aligned Core Strategy regarding the location of student accommodation 
development. 

 
 Issue (ii) Scale and design of proposed development (Policy BE12 of the NLP 

and Policy 10 of the ACS) 
 
7.2 The scale and mass of the proposed building at predominantly 6 storeys is similar 

to the scheme permitted in 2012. Although, the revised scheme would be taller than 
the existing building on the site and therefore more prominent, the scale and mass 
is considered to be acceptable and appropriate on this highly visible site which is 
one of the main gateways to the City Centre. The stepping down of the proposed 
building follows the fall of Wollaton Street and ensures the building retains an 
appropriate scale when viewed in the context of the more domestic scale villas to 
the rear (east).  

 
7.3 The proposed building is of modern design and would be constructed with a palette 

of modern materials including dark tiles/cladding to lower ground/ground and 
feature panels; white and contrasting colour cladding to upper floors; powder 
coated aluminium window frames and glazed balustrade to balconies/terraces. This 
palette of materials is considered to be appropriate to this location which on the 
north side of Canning Circus is dominated by render finished buildings. The building 
is of similar architectural style to the previous approval, with the substitution of 
cladding for render.Talbot Street is an area which has recently been vastly 
improved by the construction of the new Student Accommodation building to 116 
Talbot Street, and further regeneration of the area is currently under-way. Adjacent 

Page 89



 

to this site are the two large linked white rendered Georgian houses at 93 Talbot 
Street used as offices, and next to these is a car parking area on two levels with an 
insitu concrete raised deck with garaging/storage below. Apart from 93 and 116 
Talbot Street the majority of the buildings are 1960’s style brick and rendered 
facades with glass curtain walling which have little architectural merit. 
 

7.4 The current building on the site is in a poor state of repair and has been vacant for 
many years; as such it does not make a positive contribution to the special 
character of the Conservation Area. It is not considered that conversion of the 
existing building would be economically viable and within the context of the 
surrounding architecture the proposed re-development is considered to be 
appropriate in order to enhance the character and appearance of the Canning 
Circus Conservation Area and in line with Policy BE12 of the Local Plan and Policy 
10 of the Aligned Core Strategy. 

 
7.5 The retail units in the previous scheme have been omitted from the ground floor 

corner, and it is no longer proposed to have balconies above. The combined effect 
of these changes has been to reduce the significance and quality of the important 
corner elevation when compared with the approved scheme Officers are currently in 
discussions with the applicant in order to secure further changes to this key 
element of the proposals. It is recommended thatany approval of planning 
permission is subject tosatisfactory amended plans for the treatment of the 
elevation on the Wollaton Street/Talbot Street corner being submitted and 
approved. Subject to this,design of proposed development would accord with Policy 
BE12 of the NLP and Policy 10 of the ACS. 

 
 Issue (iii) Amenities of future and neighbouring occupiers (Policy NE9 of the 

NLP and Policy 10 of the ACS) 
 
7.6 It is not considered that adverse overbearing impact or loss of natural light would 

result to neighbouring properties from the erection of the proposed building. The 
nature of the area is of close knit development and relatively tall buildings, which 
are exacerbated in certain locations by the change in ground levels. 

 
7.7 The property immediately to the rear of the site, 93 Talbot Street, is in use as a 

House of Multiple Occupation (HMO).  There are principal windows facing the 
application site and there would be habitable windows and communal terrace areas 
to the 3rd, 4th and 5th floors of the proposed building. It is not considered that 
adverse direct overlooking would result due to the terraces and windows being 
above the height of 93 Talbot Street. 

 
7.8 Due to the location of the site at the junction of two heavily trafficked roads Pollution 

Control have recommended the imposition of a condition requiring the submission 
of an environmental noise assessment and  implementation of any necessary  
noise attenuation measures prior to occupation to ensure that future residents are 
not adversely affected by noise levels on the site. Subject to such a condition the 
proposal would accord with policy NE9 of the NLP and Policy 10 of the ACS.  

 
 Issue (iv) Highways (Policy T3 of the NLP) 
 
7.9 The proposed development makes no provision for on-site parking. The 

surrounding highway is highly restricted by Traffic Regulation Orders. Although 
there is unlikely to be any parking displacement from the development by any car 

Page 90



 

owners, loading and unloading at the beginning and end of terms will take place. A 
loading bay exists adjacent to the proposed building. 

 
7.10 It is intended that a student management agreement will be provided as part of the 

S106 planning obligation. It is intended that a clause within the S106 will aim to 
ensure that student occupants do not keep or use their cars within the city and that 
drop off-arrangements are dealt with appropriately. This has become a successful 
deterrent to student car use and is common to all major student accommodation 
developments within and around the city centre. There is a secure bike store 
proposed on the ground floor, this is another incentive to encourage sustainable 
travel. 

 
7.11 Subject to appropriate highway conditions, it is considered that the proposed 

development accords with Policy T3. 
 
 Other Matters (Policy R2 of the NLP, Policy 19 of the ACS) 
 
7.12 The building would occupy the total ground area of the site with no open space 

provided for amenity. It is therefore considered necessary and reasonable to secure 
a financial contribution through a s.106 agreement for the provision of offsite open 
space in line with the requirements of Policy R2 of the Local Plan. This is to be 
spent on the landscaping of the former refreshment rooms public house site, which 
has not previously benefited from Section 106 contributions. 

 
7.13 Provision for local employment and training during the construction and operation of 

the development has been offered by the Developer. In the circumstances these 
matters will be incorporated included in the Section 106. 

 
8. SUSTAINABILITY / BIODIVERSITY (Policy NE3 of the LP and Policy 1 of the 

ACS) 
 
8.1 An energy statement provided with the application shows that through the use of 

either a Combined Heat and Power (CHP) unit or Photovoltaic cells a minimum of 
10% of the buildings required energy could be provided by renewable sources. It is 
not considered necessary to insist that the applicant specifies exactly which 
renewable energy method they will ultimately use as a condition would be included 
on any planning permission to ensure this commitment to renewable energy is 
carried out and the proposal would comply with Policy 1 of the Aligned Core 
Strategy. 

 
8.2 A biodiversity survey carried out on the site in relation to the previous 

applicationconcluded that there was no evidence of roosting bats internally or 
externally. Demolition works have commenced on site, pursuant to the 2012 
planning permission and conservation area consent, and the building now has no 
roof. It is understood that the demolition has been proceeding in line with the 
method statement submitted with the previous application, and as far as officers are 
aware, no protected species have been affected during the course of demolition. 

 
9 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None. 

 
 
 

Page 91



 

10 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The issues raised in this report are primarily ones of planning judgement. Should 
legal considerations arise these will be addressed at the meeting. 
 

11 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
None. 
 

12 RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
None. 
 

13 STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 
 

 Neighbourhood Nottingham: Providing a high quality and sustainable development. 
 
 Working Nottingham: Securing training and employment for local citizens through 

the construction of the development. 
 
14 CRIME AND DISORDER ACT IMPLICATIONS 

 
None. 
 

15 VALUE FOR MONEY 
 
None. 
 

16 List of background papers other than published works or those disclosing 
confidential or exempt information 
 
1. Application No: 15/00888/PFUL3 - link to online case file: 
http://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=NLTD62LYCB000 

2. Pollution Control 
3. Highways 
4. Housing Strategy 
5. Biodiversity 
6. Notts Wildlife Trust 
 

17 Published documents referred to in compiling this report 
 

 Nottingham Local Plan (November 2005) 
 Aligned Core Strategy (September 2014) 
 Building Balanced Communities Supplementary Planning Document 
 Planning Guidance for the Provision of Open Space Within Developments 
 Supplementary Planning Guidance 

NottinghamCity Centre Urban Design Guide 
 
Contact Officer:  
Mrs Rachel Gaskell (Mon,Tue And Fri), Case Officer, Development Management.  
Email: rachel.gaskell@nottinghamcity.gov.uk.      Telephone: 0115 8764052

Page 92

http://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=NLTD62LYCB000
http://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=NLTD62LYCB000


© Crown Copyright and database right 2014. Ordnance Survey License number 100019317

NPage 93



 
   

   

1 Continued… 

Not for issue 
DRAFT ONLY 

 

My Ref: 15/00888/PFUL3 (PP-04065005) 

Your Ref:  

 
Contact: Mrs Rachel Gaskell (Mon,Tue And Fri) 

Email: development.management@nottinghamcity.gov.uk 

 
 
Mr Simon Birch 
44 The Ropewalk 
Nottingham 
Nottinghamshire 
NG1 5DW 
United Kingdom 
 

  
Development Management 
City Planning 
Loxley House 
Station Street 
Nottingham 
NG2 3NG 
 
Tel: 0115 8764447 
www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk 
 

Date of decision:  
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990 
APPLICATION FOR PLANNING PERMISSION 
 
  
Application No: 15/00888/PFUL3 (PP-04065005) 
Application by: Romiga Holdings LLP 
Location: 95 Talbot Street, Nottingham, Nottingham City 
Proposal: Demolition of existing derelict building and construction of new residential 

student development consisting of 77 beds in the form of Studios and multi bed 
accommodation units including communal areas to Lower Ground floor. 

  
 
Nottingham City Council as Local Planning Authority hereby GRANTS PLANNING PERMISSION 
for the development described in the above application subject to the following conditions:- 
 

  

 1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from 
the date of this permission. 
 
Reason: In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as 
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 
 
 

 

2. No works including site clearance shall be commenced until a construction management plan 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan shall 
as a minimum include details of the type, size and frequency of vehicles to/from the site, haul 
routes (if any), staff parking provision, site security, traffic & pedestrian management plans, 
wheel cleaning facilities and measures to prevent the deposit of debris on the highway and a 
timetable for its implementation. Thereafter the construction plan shall be implemented in 
accordance with the approved details and timetable unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: - To avoid prejudice to traffic conditions on the strategic highway network within the 
vicinity of the site, in accordance with Policy T3 of the Local Plan. 

Time limit 

Pre-commencement conditions 
(The conditions in this section require further matters to be submitted to the local planning authority 
for approval before starting work) 

Page 94



 
   

   

2 Continued… 

Not for issue 
DRAFT ONLY 

3. No part of this development hereby permitted shall take place until further drainage details 
have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and sustainable development in accordance with 
Policy BE4 of the Local Plan. 

4. No development shall commence until an environmental noise assessment and details of 
sound insulation and acoustic ventilation measures, designed to protect residential occupiers 
of the development from noise, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The noise assessment shall be carried out whilst any premises and/or 
activities in the vicinity that are likely to have an adverse effect on noise levels are operating. 
 
The submission shall include1/3rd octave band analysis, shall specify all assumptions made 
(e.g. glazing and façade areas) and shall be designed to achieve the following internal noise 
levels: 
 
(i) Not more than 35dB LAeq(1 hour) for bedrooms between the hours of 23.00 and 07.00; and 
not more than 40dB LAeq(1 hour) for living rooms between the hours of 07.00 and 23.00. 
 
(ii) Not more than 45dB LAmax (15 min) in bedrooms (measured with F time weighting) 
between the hours of 23.00 and 07.00. 
 
Where noticeable low frequency noise is present the submission shall also be designed to 
achieve the following internal noise levels: 
 
(i) Not exceeding NR 30 for living rooms between the hours of 07.00 and 23.00 
 
(ii) Not exceeding NR 25 bedrooms between the hours of 23.00 and 07.00. 
 
 
Reason: To ensure that the residential occupiers of the development do not experience noise 
nuisance in accordance with Policy NE9 of the Local Plan. 

5. No part of this development hereby approved shall take place until the applicant has submitted 
to, and received approval in writing from the Local Planning Authority, details of a sound 
insulation scheme, including the glazed areas of the property and any complementary 
acoustical ventilation scheme. 
 
Reason: In the interests of residential amenity in accordance with Policy NE9 of the Local 
Plan. 

6. Prior to the commencement of development details of all the external materials shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: In order to ensure an appropriate quality of finishes and therefore in the interests of 
the visual amenity of the area in accordance with Policy BE12 of the Local Plan and Policy 10 
of the Aligned Core Strategy. 

 
 

 

Pre-occupation conditions 
(The conditions in this section must be complied with before the development is occupied) 

Page 95



 
   

   

3 Continued… 

Not for issue 
DRAFT ONLY 

7. The approved development shall not be occupied until the sound insulation scheme and 
complementary acoustical ventilation scheme, which are required to be approved under 
Condition 5 of this permission, have been installed. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the residential occupiers of the development do not experience noise 
nuisance in accordance with Policy NE9 of the Local Plan. 

8. The approved sustainable measures that form part of this consent and achieve a minimum of 
10% of the building's energy needs shall be implemented before the development is first 
brought into use. 
 
Reason: In order to ensure that these measures are incorporated into the approved 
development, in the interests of the sustainable development of the site and in accordance 
with Policy BE4 of the Local Plan. 

9. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until such time that all of the 
redundant accesses on Talbot Street and Wollaton Street have been reinstated as footway 
with full height kerbs to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: In the interests of pedestrian safety, in accordance with Policy T3 of the Local Plan.  

 
 

 

10. Any doors and windows on the ground floor must open into the curtilage of the site and not out 
onto the public highway. 
 
Reason: In the interests of pedestrian safety in accordance with and Policy 10 of the Aligned 
Core Strategy. 

Standard condition- scope of permission 

S1. Except as may be modified by the conditions listed above, the development shall be carried 
out in complete accordance with the details described in the following drawings/documents: 
Drawing reference AMENDED 
 
 
Reason: To determine the scope of this permission. 

 
Informatives 
 
 1. The reason for this decision, and a summary of the policies the local planning authority has had 
regard to are set out in the committee report, enclosed herewith and forming part of this decision. 
 
 2. This permission is valid only for the purposes of Part III of the Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. It does not remove the need to obtain any other consents that may be necessary, nor does it 
imply that such other consents will necessarily be forthcoming. It does not override any restrictions 
contained in the deeds to the property or the rights of neighbours. You are advised to check what 
other restrictions there are and what other consents may be needed, for example from the 
landowner, statutory bodies and neighbours.  This permission is not an approval under the Building 
Regulations. 
 
 3. The environmental noise assessment shall be suitable and sufficient, and shall be undertaken 
by a competent person having regard to BS 7445: 2003 Description and Measurement of 

Regulatory/ongoing conditions 
(Conditions relating to the subsequent use of the development and other regulatory matters) 

Page 96



 
   

   

4 Continued… DRAFT ONLY 
Not for issue 

Environmental Noise.  The internal noise levels referred to are derived from BS 8233: 2014 Sound 
Insulation and Noise Reduction for Buildings. 
 
 
 4. The approved sound insulation scheme must be maintained &, in the case of mechanical 
ventilation, must be maintained, serviced and operated in accordance with manufacturer's 
recommendations. 
 
 
 5. Planning consent is not consent to work on the public highway. Therefore prior to any works 
commencing on site you must contact Highways Network Management on 0115 876 5238 to 
ensure all necessary licences and permissions are in place. It is an offence under Section 148 and 
Section 151 of the Highways Act 1980 to deposit mud on the public highway and therefore you 
should take every effort to prevent this occurring. 
 
To carry out the permanent off-site works associated with the planning consent on Wollaton Street 
and Talbot Street, approval must first be obtained from the Local Highway Authority. Approval will 
take the form of a Section 278 Agreement and you should contact Highways Network Management 
on 0115 8765293 to instigate the process. It is strongly recommended that you make contact at the 
earliest opportunity to allow time for the process to be completed as you will not be permitted to 
work on the Highway before it is complete. All associated costs will be borne by the developer. We 
reserve the right to charge commuted sums in respect of ongoing maintenance where the item in 
question is above and beyond what is required for the safe and satisfactory functioning of the 
highway. For further information please refer to the 6Cs Design Guide which is available at 
www.leics.gov.uk/htd. 
 
To relocate the existing street name plate from the building to be demolished, to the new building's 
Wollaton Street elevation it will be necessary for the building owner to enter into a way leave 
agreement with Nottingham City Council. Please contact the Conveyancing Team on 0115 876 
4371 to commence the process. 
 
Where a condition specified in this decision notice requires any further details to be submitted for 
approval, please note that an application fee will be payable at the time such details are submitted 
to the City Council. A form is available from the City Council for this purpose. 
 
Your attention is drawn to the rights of appeal set out on the attached sheet. 
 
 

Page 97



 
   

 - 5 -  

Not for issue 
DRAFT ONLY 

 
RIGHTS OF APPEAL 

Application No: 15/00888/PFUL3 (PP-04065005) 
 
If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the City Council to impose conditions on the grant of 
permission for the proposed development, then he or she can appeal to the Secretary of State under 
section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
Any appeal must be submitted within six months of the date of this notice.  You can obtain an appeal 
form from the Customer Support Unit, The Planning Inspectorate, Room 3/15 Eagle Wing, Temple 
Quay House, 2 The Square, Temple Quay, Bristol, BS1 6PN.  Phone: 0117 372 6372.  Appeal forms 
can also be downloaded from the Planning Inspectorate website at http://www.planning-
inspectorate.gov.uk/pins/index.htm.  Alternatively, the Planning Inspectorate have introduced an 
online appeals service which you can use to make your appeal online. You can find the service 
through the Appeals area of the Planning Portal - see www.planningportal.gov.uk/pcs. 
 
The Inspectorate will publish details of your appeal on the internet (on the Appeals area of the 
Planning Portal).  This may include a copy of the original planning application form and relevant 
supporting documents supplied to the local authority by you or your agent, together with the 
completed appeal form and information you submit to the Planning Inspectorate.  Please ensure that 
you only provide information, including personal information belonging to you that you are happy will 
be made available to others in this way.  If you supply personal information belonging to a third party 
please ensure you have their permission to do so.  More detailed information about data protection 
and privacy matters is available on the Planning Portal. 
 
The Secretary of State can allow a longer period for giving notice of an appeal, but will not normally 
be prepared to use this power unless there are special circumstances which excuse the delay. 
 
The Secretary of State need not consider an appeal if the City Council could not for legal reasons 
have granted permission or approved the proposals without the conditions it imposed. 
 
In practice, the Secretary of State does not refuse to consider appeals solely because the City 
Council based its decision on a direction given by him. 
 
PURCHASE NOTICES 
 
If either the City Council or the Secretary of State refuses permission to develop land or grants it 
subject to conditions, the owner may claim that he can neither put the land to a reasonably beneficial 
use in its existing state nor can he render the land capable of a reasonably beneficial use by the 
carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted. This procedure is set out in 
Part VI of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
COMPENSATION 
 
In certain limited circumstances, a claim may be made against the City Council for compensation 
where permission is refused or granted subject to conditions by the Secretary of State. The 
circumstances in which compensation is payable are set out in Section 114 of the Town & Country 
Planning Act 1990. 
   
 
 

Page 98



 

 
WARDS AFFECTED: Basford Item No: 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
22nd July 2015 

 
REPORT OF HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT AND REGENERATION 
 
Western Section Of Former Coach Station, Park Lane 
 
1 SUMMARY 
 
Application No: 15/01102/PFUL3 for planning permission 

 
Application by: IG Estates Limited on behalf of Sycamore Developments 

 
Proposal: Residential development comprising 32 dwellings and associated 

works. 
 
The application is brought to Committee because it is a major application and where a 
planning obligation is to be waived as a consequence of viability appraisal and review.  
 
To meet the Council's Performance Targets this application should be determined by 23rd 
July 2015 
 
2 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION for the reasons set out in the report subject to 
the indicative conditions substantially in the form of those listed in the draft decision 
notice at the end of this report. 
 
Power to determine the final details of the conditions to be delegated to the Head of 
Development Management and Regeneration. 
 

3 BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The application site is located off Bulwell Lane proximate to its junction with Vernon 

Road. It is the western third of what was a former bus depot. The central and 
eastern part of the depot has been previously developed for housing, which is now 
Weave Close (05/01521/PFUL3). The site is bounded to the west by the rear of the 
properties on Weave Close. To the north is the Council’s business/industrial estate 
on Northern Court. To the south is Southwark Primary School and to the south and 
east are residential properties on Bulwell Lane. 

 
3.2 The site is currently bounded by a galvanised palisade fence, with a gated access 

point on Bulwell lane. There is a further gated access point to the site off Northern 
Close. There are trees and other vegetation within the site across the boundary of 
the site to Bulwell Lane, with the remainder of the site being cleared. A significant 
feature and influence upon the development of the site is the 5-6 metre difference 
in level between Bulwell Lane and the higher plateau section of the site. 

 
3.3 Planning permission was granted on 2 July 2008 for the redevelopment of the site 

for the “Erection of 16 new B1 light industrial units and creation of associated 
parking” (08/00940/PFUL3). This permission has now expired. 

 
Page 99

Agenda Item 4c



 

3.4 An application for outline planning permission for a residential development of up to 
26 dwellings with access off Bulwell Lane was submitted in November 2011 
(11/03511/POUT). The indicative layout showed a mix of 2, 3, and 4 bed semi-
detached and terrace houses. A resolution to grant outline planning permission was 
made subject to the prior completion of a S106 to provide a contribution towards 
the provision of public open space and 10% affordable housing if the scheme 
exceeded the 25 dwelling threshold for provision. Planning permission has not yet 
been issued and is expected to be withdrawn subject to a resolution to grant this 
current application. 

 
4 DETAILS OF THE PROPOSAL 
 
4.1 The proposal is for a development of 32 dwellings that would be served by a private 

central spine road off Bulwell Lane. The dwellings would be a mix of semi-detached 
and short terraces of three houses, with one block of four linked units. The 
dwellings would all be two storeys, with the exception of those onto Bulwell Lane, 
which would be three storeys, including dormers.  

 
4.2 There would be four house types A to D, with house types A to C each having three 

bedrooms and house type D having two bedrooms. There would be either one or 
two parking spaces to each dwelling. Short sections of low boundary walls with 
railings are also to be provided to the frontages. 

 
4.3 The access road is proposed as a private drive due to the proposed gradient that 

would preclude its adoption. It is being designed as a shared surface road, to be 
broken with sections of setts along its length and including build outs with trees. 
 

5 CONSULTATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS OF OTHER OFFICERS 
 

Adjoining occupiers consulted: 
 
8– 12 & 14 Weave Close 
1 – 5 Shardale Gardens, Bulwell Lane 
Unit 1 – 6 Vernon Place 
Catchems Corner & Living Accommodation Over, Vernon Road 
30 Northern Court 
Southwark Academy, Park Lane 

 
The application has also been advertised by a site and press notice. No neighbour 
responses have been received. 
 
Additional consultation letters sent to: 
 
Pollution Control: A greater depth of 'clean' soil is required in garden areas than 
specified in the recommendations of the report. 1m of 'clean' soil will be required in 
these areas. A Remediation Strategy is required and conditions are recommended. 
The development is adjacent to an industrial area and a public house therefore an 
appropriate Environmental Noise Assessments will be required prior to building 
commencing on site. 

 
Highways: No objection subject to conditions.This is a brownfield development site 
which our drainage section have identified as a major development within Flood 
Zone 1 but also within the River Leen catchment so the River Leen and 
DaybrookStrategic Flood Risk Assessment will apply. Highways Drainage 

Page 100



 

recommend planning conditions. It has been suggested to the applicant that a 
shared surface, broken up with features, and tree pits would be a way forward and 
we await revised drawings accordingly. It will be necessary to alter the footway 
along Bulwell Lane so that the proposed parking spaces can be accessed via 
vehicular crossovers as opposed to the existing, redundant bell mouths. 
Recommend cycle parking is provided as a pre-occupation condition and that 
parking space sizes are increased.  
 
Urban Design: Bin storage is easily accessible along individual drives. A mixture of 
car parking solutions is proposed, within curtilage: to the side and front and on 
street towards the rear of the site. The different car parking solutions allows for a 
variety of densities and positioning of houses within individual plots, adding to the 
interest of this difficult site. Trees are proposed both within curtilage and the street 
for visual interest and to calm vehicular traffic. Officers are satisfied these will have 
every chance of thriving. The width of the highway has been reduced as much as 
possible with strips of block paving adding to the visual interest and increasing the 
sustainable drainage. Overall the scheme reaches 11 out of the 12 Building for Life 
criteria.   

 
Nottingham Civic Society: Development seems very intensive, with all the street 
frontages dominated by open parking across narrow spaces. The front curtilages 
are very tight, with the number of suggested trees looking very optimistic - the 
streets will be dominated by hard surfaces. The gaps between dwellings seem very 
tight, with bin accesses shared with neighbouring driveways. The scheme falls well 
short of the Built for Life aspirations the Council had for new housing developments. 

 
6 RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE 

 
National Planning Policy Framework: 

 
6.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out the Government’s 

planning policies. While planning applications still need to be determined in 
accordance with the development plan, which are set out in the report, the NPPF is 
a material consideration in the assessment of this application.  

 
6.2  The NPPF advises that there is a presumption in favour of sustainable development 

and that development which is sustainable should be approved. Paragraph 17 of 
the NPPF lists the core planning principles that should underpin decision taken on 
planning applications. Of particular relevance to this application is the need to 
secure high quality design and a good standard of amenity for all existing and 
future occupants of land and buildings, and to contribute to conserving and 
enhancing the natural environment and support the transition to a low carbon 
future. 

 
6.3  Paragraph 49 states that the relevant policies for the supply of housing should not 

be considered up-to-date if the local planning authority cannot demonstrate a five-
year supply of deliverable housing sites. 

 
6.4  Paragraphs 56-64 of the NPPF sets out the approach for achieving good quality 

design, including responding to local character, creating a strong sense of place 
and resisting poor design that fails to take opportunities to improve the character 
and the quality of an area. 

 

Page 101



 

6.5  Paragraph 96 states that new development should be expected to take account of 
landform, layout, building orientation, massing and landscaping to minimise energy 
consumption. 

 
6.6 Paragraph 111 states that planning decisions should encourage the effective use of 

land by re-using land that has been previously developed. 
 
6.7  Paragraph 118 states that local planning authorities should aim to conserve and 

enhance biodiversity by applying a range of principles including that if significant 
harm cannot be avoided, mitigated or as a last resort compensated, then 
permission should be refused. 

 
6.8 Annex 1 states that the NPPF aims to strengthen local decision making and 

reinforce the importance of up-to-date plans. For the purpose of decision-taking, the 
policies in the Local Plan should not be considered out-of-date and are to be 
afforded weight in accordance with their conformity with the NPPF. 
 
Nottingham Local Plan (November 2005): 

 
E4 - Previously Used Employment Sites. 
 
H2 - Density 

 
H5 - Affordable Housing 

 
MU8 / 8.6 - Other Regeneration Sites 
 
NE9 - Pollution. 

NE12 - Derelict and Contaminated Land. 
 
R2 - Open Space in New Development 
 
T3 - Car, Cycle and Servicing Parking 

 
Aligned Core Strategy (September 2014) 
 
Policy A - Presumption in favour of sustainable development. 
 
Policy 1 - Climate change. 

 
  Policy 4 - Employment Provision and Economic Development 
 
  Policy 8 - Housing Size, Mix and Choice 
 

Policy 10 - Design and Enhancing Local Identity. 
 
Policy 19 – Developer Contributions  

 
Development Brief - Dunn Line Coaches, Park Lane, Basford (August 2002) 
 
Land and Planning Policies Document (LAPP) – Preferred Option (September 
2013) 

 

Page 102



 

7. APPRAISAL OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
 Main Issues 

 
i) Loss of employment land and the suitability of the site for residential purposes. 
ii) Density and design. 
iii) Highway considerations. 

 
Issue i) Loss of employment land and the suitability of the site for residential 
purposes. (ACS Policy 4 and Policies E4, MU8/8.6) 

 
7.1 The previous report on the outline planning application for residential development 

noted that the site forms part of a mixed-use development allocation in the Local 
Plan (MU8.6 - Dunn Line Coaches, Park Lane, Old Basford). The adopted 
Development Brief for the site (August 2002) proposed the development of a 
residential led scheme with some employment space. This led to the development 
of the residential scheme at Weave Close on the central and eastern parts of the 
site (05/01521/PFUL3) and planning permission for the redevelopment of the 
remaining western section of the site for Class B1 light industrial units 
(08/00940/PFUL3). 

 
7.2 Planning permission for the Class B1 units expired on 2 July 2011. In submitting the 

previous outline planning application for residential development (11/03511/POUT), 
the applicant had stated that the site had been actively marketed for sale since 
January 2008 but there had been no serious business development interest. In 
resolving to grant outline planning permission for an alternative residential use of 
the site Committee has therefore, accepted that a housing development would 
benefit the regeneration of the area and accords with Policy E4 of the Local Plan. 

 
7.3 The Land and Planning Policies Development Plan Document has since been 

prepared and consultation carried out (September 2013). The plan is yet to be 
submitted to the Government for review by an Independent Inspector from the 
Planning Inspectorate, and as such cannot be given undue weight. The LAPP 
identifies that application site as now being suitable for the development of Class 
C3 family housing. Whilst the proposed development would not accord with Policy 
MU8 / (8.6) and the Development Brief for the site, as employment uses are no 
longer included, it is considered that the residential development of the site is 
appropriate to the area and is in accordance with the emerging land use 
designation and ACS Policy 4h) iii), which recognises that sites may be released 
where they are no longer attractive or are of sufficient quality to the employment 
market. 

 
7.4 The neighbouring commercial premises on Northern Court already co-exist in close 

proximity to residential properties on Weave Close and it is considered that 
proposed development would not inhibit the activities associated with these 
commercial uses. 

 
Issue ii) Density and design (ACS Policies 8, 10 and Policy H2) 
 

7.5 The proposed layout is substantially based upon the indicative layout that was 
developed for the previous outline planning application, with the primary difference 
being the density of proposed development which has been raised from the 
previous maximum of up to 26 to the current proposal for 32 dwellings (approx. 56 
dwellings per hectare). This increased density has primarily been achieved by 

Page 103



 

adjusting the size of the dwellings, omitting the four-bed units that were indicated 
on the previous layout that accompanied the outline planning application and by 
introducing the block of four linked units (House Type D). Whilst it is considered 
that this increase in density is to the limit of its acceptable development, it is 
considered that the proposed layout demonstrates that there is capacity for this 
density of development and that the range of family sized dwellings to be provided 
will be appropriate to the area. Separation distances between the rear elevations of 
existing properties on Weave Close and the rear elevation of the new properties are 
also considered to be appropriate. 

 
7.6 The design of the proposed dwellings has been discussed and revised by the 

applicant. These are to a common architecture, with the four house types 
expressing individual designs. Most are to be constructed in red brick with pitched 
grey tile roofs. There are, however, also units of the same house types that are to 
receive rendered finishes to their front elevations in order to break up the street 
scene. All units are to have pre-cast cills and heads to their windows, 75mm 
window reveals, dentil brickwork detailing to the eaves and gables, restrained flat 
canopies to the doorways and contemporary styled doors. It is considered that the 
combination of proposed house types and detailing will provide an appropriate 
quality of built finish to the development and its own identity within the area. 

 
It is considered that the proposed highways layout accords with Policies 8, 10 and 
Policy H2. 

 
Issue iii) Highway considerations (ACS Policy 10 and Policy T3) 

 
7.7 The proposed access road into the site has been reviewed by Highways, who have 

advised that it would need to remain as a private drive due to the proposed 1:12 
gradient off Bulwell Lane, which is in excess of the 1:20 gradient that would 
otherwise make it adoptable. The applicant has stated that it would not be viable to 
develop to the preferred gradient due to the amount of earth moving that would be 
required. Accordingly, Highways have advised that they would not object to the 
proposed access road subject to an undertaking that it would be maintained by a 
management company and that householders are advised that the Highway 
Authority has no obligation to maintain the access road at public expense. Refuse 
collection would also be required as a private arrangement. The applicant has 
confirmed that a management company will be set up to ensure that the 
development is maintained, with resident paying an annual sum towards general 
maintenance costs. 

 
7.8 The design of the proposed access road has been revised in conjunction with 

Highways and Urban Design to provide a shared surface finish in tarmac, with 
sections of setts at intervals along its length and street trees in build outs. It is 
considered that the proposed highways layout will provide and appropriate finish to 
the scheme, subject to planning conditions relating to its ongoing private 
maintenance. 

 
7.9 It is considered that the proposed highways layout accords with Policy 10 and 

Policy T3. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 104



 

Other Material Considerations 
 

Planning Obligations (ACS Policy 19, and Policies H5 and R2): 
 

7.10 In accordance with the above policies, the proposed development would be 
expected to provide on-site affordable housing and a commuted sum contribution 
towards the provision of public open space in the vicinity of the site by way of a 
planning obligation. It is to be noted that the previous resolution to grant outline 
planning permission agreed that the affordable housing provision would be reduced 
to 10% due to viability issues discussed at that time. 
 

7.11 The applicant has submitted a viability appraisal in support of the current 
application. The assessment asserts that the proposed development would not be 
viable based upon the provision of a S106 planning obligation for the provision of 
on-site affordable housing and a financial contribution towards the provision of off-
site open space. The appraisal has been assessed by Property Plus surveyors who 
have concluded that the scheme is far from viable even without an open space 
contribution and that a sufficient case has been made to waive the policy 
requirement in this instance. It is, therefore, considered that the proposed 
development accords with ACS Policy 19, and Policies H5 and R2. 

 
Pollution and Contamination (Policies NE9 and NE12): 

 
7.12 Pollution Control advise that the geotechnical investigation and contamination 

assessment reports provided are satisfactory. It is advised that a greater depth of 
‘clean’ soil is required in garden areas than specified in the recommendations of the 
report and that recommendations for landscaped areas is also required. Gas 
protection measure proposals need to be confirmed. A noise assessment is also 
required in relation to the neighbouring business/industrial estate on Northern Court 
and Catchems Corner public house on Bulwell Lane. Subject to the inclusion of 
appropriate planning conditions to address these matters, it is considered that the 
proposed development accords with Policies NE9 and NE12. 

 
8. SUSTAINABILITY / BIODIVERSITY (Policy BE4) 
 

The Energy Statement submitted with the application identifies that a range of 
technologies will be used to achieve CO2 reductions including:  

 
i) Higher specification of insulation (fabric first approach to be beyond current 
Building Regulations standards).  
ii) Installation of A or A+ rated energy efficient domestic appliances.  
iii) 100% energy efficient lighting.  
iv) Higher specification of energy efficient heating.  

 
It is advised that, when these four energy efficiency measures/technologies 
specified are installed, this will equate to a 16.7% reduction in CO2 compared to 
standard building scenario. It is therefore considered that, subject to 
implementation in accordance with the Energy Statement, the proposed 
development complies with Policy 1. 

 
9 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None. 

 
Page 105



 

10 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The issues raised in this report are primarily ones of planning judgement. Should 
legal considerations arise these will be addressed at the meeting. 

 
11 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 

 
None. 
 

12 RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
None. 
 

13 STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 
 
Ensuring Nottingham’s workforce is skilled. 
 

14 CRIME AND DISORDER ACT IMPLICATIONS 
 
Providing a residential development with secure property boundaries and streets 
and spaces that facilitate good natural surveillance. 
 

15 VALUE FOR MONEY 
 
None. 
 

16 List of background papers other than published works or those disclosing 
confidential or exempt information 
 
1. Application No: 15/01102/PFUL3 - link to online case file: 
http://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=NN7LSCLYCB000 

2. Pollution Control, 1.6.15 
3. Nottingham Civic Society, 21.5.15 
4. Urban Design, 7.7.15 
5. Highways, 9.7.15 

 
17 Published documents referred to in compiling this report 

 
Nottingham Local Plan (November 2005) 
Aligned Core Strategy (September 2014) 
Development Brief - Dunn Line Coaches, Park Lane, Basford (August 2002) 
Land and Planning Policies Document (LAPP) – Preferred Option (September 
2013) 
 
 
Contact Officer:  
Mr Jim Rae, Case Officer, Development Management.  
Email: jim.rae@nottinghamcity.gov.uk.      Telephone: 0115 8764074

Page 106

http://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=NN7LSCLYCB000
http://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=NN7LSCLYCB000


© Crown Copyright and database right 2014. Ordnance Survey License number 100019317

NPage 107



 
   

   

1 Continued… 

Not for issue 
DRAFT ONLY 

 

My Ref: 15/01102/PFUL3 (PP-04103399) 

Your Ref:  

 
Contact: Mr Jim Rae 

Email: development.management@nottinghamcity.gov.uk 

 
 
IG Estates Limited 
FAO: Mr Ian Gidley 
1 Thornton Close 
Crick 
Northamptonshire 
NN6 7GE 
 

  
Development Management 
City Planning 
Loxley House 
Station Street 
Nottingham 
NG2 3NG 
 
Tel: 0115 8764447 
www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk 
 

Date of decision:  
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990 
APPLICATION FOR PLANNING PERMISSION 
 
  
Application No: 15/01102/PFUL3 (PP-04103399) 
Application by: Sycamore Developments 
Location: Western Section Of Former Coach Station, Park Lane, Nottingham 
Proposal: Residential development comprising 32 dwellings and associated works. 
  
 
Nottingham City Council as Local Planning Authority hereby GRANTS PLANNING PERMISSION 
for the development described in the above application subject to the following conditions:- 
 

  

 1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from 
the date of this permission. 
 
Reason: In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as 
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 
 
 

 

Time limit 

Pre-commencement conditions 
(The conditions in this section require further matters to be submitted to the local planning authority 
for approval before starting work) 

Page 108



 
   

   

2 Continued… 

Not for issue 
DRAFT ONLY 

2. Prior to the commencement of the development, a Remediation Strategy that includes the 
following components to deal with the risks associated with ground and ground gas 
contamination of the site shall be submitted to and be approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority:   
 
a)    A Remediation Plan, based on Geotechnical Investigation and Contamination 
Assessment Report by Ruddlesden geotechnical Ltd dated August 2012 (ref: 
SR/JW/DT/07273/GICAR), giving full details of the remediation measures required and how 
they are to be undertaken (including a contingency plan for dealing with any unexpected 
contamination not previously identified in the Site Investigation).  
 
b)    A Verification Plan providing details of the data that will be collected in order to 
demonstrate that the works set out in c) above are complete. 
 
The Remediation Strategy shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details unless 
varied with the express written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the site can be developed without health or safety risks to the 
environment, the users of the development, and/or adjoining occupiers, and the surrounding 
water environment in accordance with Policy NE12 of the Nottingham Local Plan. 

3. Prior to the commencement of the development, an environmental noise assessment and 
sound insulation scheme shall be submitted to and be approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.    
 
The environmental noise assessment shall take into account the impact of road traffic noise 
and be carried out whilst any premises and/or activities in the vicinity that are likely to have an 
adverse effect on noise levels are operating. In addition it shall include predicted noise levels 
for any plant and equipment which will form part of the development, octave band analysis and 
all assumptions made (e.g. glazing and façade areas).  
 
The sound insulation scheme shall include the specification and acoustic data sheets for 
glazed areas of the development and any complementary acoustical ventilation scheme and 
be designed to achieve the following internal noise levels: 
 
i. Not exceeding 30dB LAeq(1 hour) and not exceeding NR 25 in bedrooms for any hour 
between 23.00 and 07.00,  
 
ii. Not exceeding 35dB LAeq(1 hour) and not exceeding NR 30 for bedrooms and living rooms 
for any hour between 07.00 and 23.00, 
 
iii. Not more than 45dB LAmax(5 min) in bedrooms (measured with F time weighting) between 
the hours of 23.00 and 07.00. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the residential occupiers of the development do not experience noise 
nuisance in accordance with Policy NE9 of the Nottingham Local Plan. 
 

Page 109



 
   

   

3 Continued… 

Not for issue 
DRAFT ONLY 

4. No development shall be commenced until the detailed design for the disposal of the surface 
water has been submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The run off 
rate from the development shall be 5l/s and SUDS techniques must be used. It is 
recommended that more than one SUDS technique is used in order to improve water quality. 
Details of how the on-site surface water drainage systems are to be maintained and managed 
after completion for the lifetime of the development shall also be submitted to and approved by 
the Local Planning Authority. The approved surface water scheme shall be constructed in 
accordance with the approved plans and documents. 
 
Reason : In the interests of sustainable development and to reduce flood risk to third party 
properties in accordance with Policy NE10 of the Nottingham Local Plan. 
 
 

5. The development shall not be commenced until a Construction Management Plan has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan shall as a 
minimum include details of the type, size and frequency of vehicles to/from the site, haul 
routes (if any), staff parking provision (including subcontractors), site security, traffic 
management plans, wheel cleaning facilities and measures to prevent the deposit of debris on 
the highway and a timetable for its implementation. Thereafter the construction plan shall be 
implemented in accordance with the approved details and timetable unless otherwise agreed 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To avoid prejudice to traffic conditions within the vicinity of the site and to safeguard 
the amenities of neighbours in accordance with Policy NE9 of the Nottingham Local Plan. 

6. No development shall commence until samples of the external materials of the buildings and 
details of the windows, including sections to show the reveal depths (min. 75mm), have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the 
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the appearance of the development will be satisfactory in accordance 
with Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy. 

7. The development shall not be commenced until details of areas to be hard landscaped have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the appearance of the development will be satisfactory in accordance 
with Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy. 

8. Unless the Local Planning Authority has agreed in writing to an alternative timetable for the 
submission of details and subsequent implementation, the development shall not commence 
until a landscaping scheme has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The scheme shall include details of the type, height, species and location 
of the proposed trees, hedges and shrubs, the tree pits/trenches and aeration pipes, and a 
timetable for the implementation of the scheme. 
 
Reason: In the interests of the appearance of the development in accordance with Policy 10 of 
the Aligned Core Strategy and NE5 of the Nottingham Local Plan. 

 
 

 

Pre-occupation conditions 
(The conditions in this section must be complied with before the development is occupied) 

Page 110



 
   

   

4 Continued… 

Not for issue 
DRAFT ONLY 

9. Prior to first occupation of the development, verification that the approved sound insulation 
scheme has been implemented and is fully operational shall be submitted to and be approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
 
Reason: To ensure that the residential occupiers of the development do not experience noise 
nuisance in accordance with Policy NE9 of the Nottingham Local Plan. 

10. Prior to first occupation of the development, the following shall be submitted to and be 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority: 
 
a)    A Verification Report, which shall include the data referred to in the Verification Plan, to 
demonstrate that the approved Remediation Strategy to deal with ground gas contamination of 
the site has been fully implemented and completed.   
 
b)    A Verification Report, which shall include the data referred to in the Verification Plan, to 
demonstrate that the approved Remediation Strategy to deal with ground contamination of the 
site has been fully implemented and completed.    
 
Reason: To ensure that the site can be developed without health or safety risks to the 
environment, the users of the development, and/or adjoining occupiers, and the surrounding 
water environment in accordance with Policy NE12 of the Nottingham Local Plan. 

11. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until the proposed vehicular 
and pedestrian accesses, internal access road, private drives, on site car and cycle parking 
provision for that part of the development have all been implemented. These areas shall be 
retained for the life of the development. 
 
Reason: To promote sustainable travel, to ensure that adequate off street parking provision is 
made to reduce the possibilities of the proposed development leading to on street parking in 
the area, to enable vehicles to enter and leave the public highway in a slow and controlled 
manner and in the interests of general highway safety. 

12. No individual dwelling shall be occupied until the parking provision for that dwelling has been 
completed and is available for use.  
 
Reason: In the interests of the amenity of occupants of the development and in accordance 
with Policy T3 of the Nottingham Local Plan. 

13. No individual dwelling shall be occupied until the boundary enclosure associated with that 
dwelling has been completed in accordance with approved details.  
 
Reason: In the interests of the amenity of occupants of the approved development and in 
accordance with Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy. 

14. No individual dwelling within the approved development shall be occupied unless it has been 
constructed in accordance with the construction specification and other details included within 
the Energy Statement that is approved as part of this consent unless otherwise varied in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: In the interests of ensuring the sustainable development of site and in accordance 
with Policy 1 of the Aligned Core Strategy. 

15. No dwelling shall be occupied until such time as all of the off-site highway works have been 
completed to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. This shall include the 
reinstatement of redundant accesses to footway, provision of vehicular crossovers to access 

Page 111



 
   

   

5 Continued… 

Not for issue 
DRAFT ONLY 

on plot parking spaces and provision of a dropped vehicular footway crossing for vehicular 
access into the wider site. 
 
Reason: In the interests of pedestrian safety, to ensure that adequate off street parking 
provision is made to reduce the possibilities of the proposed development leading to on street 
parking in the area, to enable vehicles to enter and leave the public highway in a slow and 
controlled manner and in the interests of general Highway safety in accordance with Policy 10 
of the Aligned Core Strategy and Policy T3 of the Nottingham Local Plan. 

 
 

 

16. The approved landscaping scheme for the approved development shall be carried out in the 
first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation or completion of the development 
of that phase, whichever is the sooner, and any trees or plants which die, are removed or 
become seriously damaged or diseased within a period of five years shall be replaced in the 
next planting season with others of similar size and species, unless the Local Planning 
Authority gives written consent to any variation. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the appearance of the development is satisfactory in accordance with 
Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy. 

Standard condition- scope of permission 

S1. Except as may be modified by the conditions listed above, the development shall be carried 
out in complete accordance with the details described in the forms, drawings and other 
documents comprising the application as validated by the council on (as amended – drawings 
list TBC). 
 
Reason: To determine the scope of this permission. 

 
Informatives 
 
 1. The reason for this decision, and a summary of the policies the local planning authority has had 
regard to are set out in the committee report, enclosed herewith and forming part of this decision. 
 
 2. This permission is valid only for the purposes of Part III of the Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. It does not remove the need to obtain any other consents that may be necessary, nor does it 
imply that such other consents will necessarily be forthcoming. It does not override any restrictions 
contained in the deeds to the property or the rights of neighbours. You are advised to check what 
other restrictions there are and what other consents may be needed, for example from the 
landowner, statutory bodies and neighbours.  This permission is not an approval under the Building 
Regulations. 
 
 3. Contaminated Land, Ground Gas & Groundwater 
 
The Remediation Strategy (including its component elements) must be undertaken and 
implemented in accordance with Defra and the Environment Agency's guidance 'Model Procedures 
for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11' and other authoritative guidance. The 
Remediation Strategy must also provide details of: 
 
§  'Cut and fill' operations on site 
 
§  How trees retained on site will be dealt with 
 

Regulatory/ongoing conditions 
(Conditions relating to the subsequent use of the development and other regulatory matters) 

Page 112



 
   

   

6 Continued… 

Not for issue 
DRAFT ONLY 

§  How gas precautions will be validated  
 
§  Any asbestos surveys carried out, the method statement for removal of asbestos and 
subsequent validation of air and soil following asbestos removal and demolition.  
 
Following completion of the development, no construction work, landscaping or other activity must 
be undertaken which may compromise the remediation measures implemented to deal with ground, 
groundwater and ground gas contamination of the site.   
 
Any ground gas protection measures included in the original development are designed for the 
buildings as originally constructed to protect against possible dangers to public health and safety 
arising from any accumulation of methane, carbon dioxide or other gas and to ensure that the site 
can be developed and used without health or safety risks to the occupiers of the development 
and/or adjoining occupiers.  These protection measures may be compromised by any future 
extension of the footprint of the original building or new building structures within the curtilage of the 
site including the erection of a garage, shed, conservatory or porch or similar structure.  Advice 
from the Council's Pollution Control Team regarding appropriate gas protection measures must be 
sought should future extension of the footprint of the original building or new building structures 
within the curtilage of the site be proposed (regardless of whether the proposed construction 
requires planning permission or building regulation approval).  
 
It is a requirement of current Building Regulations that basic radon protection measures are 
installed in all new constructions, extensions conversions & refurbishments on sites which are 
Radon Class 3 or 4 and full radon protection measure are installed on site which are Radon Class 5 
or higher.  Advice from the Council's Pollution Control Team regarding appropriate gas protection 
measures must be sought where there are both radon issues and ground gas issues present. 
 
The responsibility and subsequent liability for safe development and secure occupancy of the site 
rests with the developer and/or the landowner.  The developer is required to institute a thorough 
investigation and assessment of the ground conditions, nature and degree of contamination on the 
site to ensure that actual or potential risks to public health and safety can be overcome by 
appropriate remedial, preventive or precautionary measures.  The developer shall provide at his 
own expense such evidence as is required to indicate clearly that the risks associated with ground, 
groundwater and ground gas contamination of the site has been addressed satisfactorily. 
 
 
 4. Environmental Noise Assessment  
 
The environmental noise assessment shall be suitable and sufficient, and shall be undertaken by a 
competent person having regard to BS 7445: 2003 Description and Measurement of Environmental 
Noise.  The internal noise levels referred to are derived from BS 8233: 2014 Sound Insulation and 
Noise Reduction for Buildings. 
 
The approved sound insulation scheme must be maintained &, in the case of mechanical 
ventilation, must be maintained, serviced and operated in accordance with manufacturer's 
recommendations. 
 
 
 5. Planning consent is not consent to work on the public highway. Therefore prior to any works 
commencing on site you must contact Highways Network Management on 0115 876 5238 to 
ensure all necessary licences and permissions are in place. It is an offence under Section 148 and 
Section 151 of the Highways Act 1980 to deposit mud on the public highway and therefore you 
should take every effort to prevent this occurring. 
 

Page 113



 
   

   

7 Continued… DRAFT ONLY 
Not for issue 

 6. Planning consent is not consent to work on the highway. To carry out the permanent off-site 
works associated with the planning consent on Bulwell Lane, approval must first be obtained from 
the Local Highway Authority. Approval will take the form of a Section 278 Agreement and you 
should contact Highways Network Management on 0115 8765293 to instigate the process. It is 
strongly recommended that you make contact at the earliest opportunity to allow time for the 
process to be completed as you will not be permitted to work on the Highway before it is complete. 
All associated costs will be borne by the developer. We reserve the right to charge commuted sums 
in respect of ongoing maintenance where the item in question is above and beyond what is 
required for the safe and satisfactory functioning of the highway. For further information please 
refer to the 6Cs Design Guide which is available at www.leics.gov.uk/htd 
 
 7. Temporary and permanent Traffic Regulation Orders (20mph speed limit on internal access 
road) will be required during the construction process and for the life of this development site. 
These have separate legal processes and the Orders can be made on behalf of the developer by 
Nottingham City Council at the applicant's expense. It is strongly recommended that you make 
contact at the earliest opportunity to allow time for the processes to be completed; please contact 
Traffic Management on 0115 876 5245 to instigate the process. 
 
 8. The applicant should note that notwithstanding any planning permission that if any highway 
forming part of the development is to be adopted by the Highway Authority then the new road/s and 
any highway drainage will be required to comply with our design guidance and specifications. The 
Advanced Payment Code in the Highways Act 1980 applies and under Section 219 of the Act 
payment will be required from the owner of the land fronting a private 
street on which a new building is to be erected. The developer should contact the Highway 
Authority with regard to compliance with the Code or alternatively to the issue of a Section 38 
Agreement and bond under the Highways Act 1980. A Section 38 agreement can take some time to 
complete. Therefore it is recommended that the developer contact the Highway Authority as early 
as possible for clarification with which compliance will be required and it is essential that design 
calculations and detailed construction drawings for the proposed works are submitted to and 
approved by the Highway Authority in writing before work commences on site. Please contact 
Highways Network Management on 0115 876 5293 at the earliest opportunity to begin the process. 
In the event that the access road remains within private ownership, the Highway Authority may 
require further evidence including but not limited to:- 
 
1) the deposit of a map identifying the road which is to remain private; 
2) the erection and maintenance thereafter of signage indicating that the road is unadopted; 
3) evidence that future occupiers are aware that the road is unadopted, that the future maintenance 
of the road has been secured and to indemnify Nottingham City Council against future petitioning 
by residents to adopt their road; and, 
4) the boundary between the adopted highway and private highway is cleared marked. 
 
Where a condition specified in this decision notice requires any further details to be submitted for 
approval, please note that an application fee will be payable at the time such details are submitted 
to the City Council. A form is available from the City Council for this purpose. 
 
Your attention is drawn to the rights of appeal set out on the attached sheet. 
 
 

Page 114



 
   

 - 8 -  

Not for issue 
DRAFT ONLY 

 
RIGHTS OF APPEAL 

Application No: 15/01102/PFUL3 (PP-04103399) 
 
If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the City Council to impose conditions on the grant of 
permission for the proposed development, then he or she can appeal to the Secretary of State under 
section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
Any appeal must be submitted within six months of the date of this notice.  You can obtain an appeal 
form from the Customer Support Unit, The Planning Inspectorate, Room 3/15 Eagle Wing, Temple 
Quay House, 2 The Square, Temple Quay, Bristol, BS1 6PN.  Phone: 0117 372 6372.  Appeal forms 
can also be downloaded from the Planning Inspectorate website at http://www.planning-
inspectorate.gov.uk/pins/index.htm.  Alternatively, the Planning Inspectorate have introduced an 
online appeals service which you can use to make your appeal online. You can find the service 
through the Appeals area of the Planning Portal - see www.planningportal.gov.uk/pcs. 
 
The Inspectorate will publish details of your appeal on the internet (on the Appeals area of the 
Planning Portal).  This may include a copy of the original planning application form and relevant 
supporting documents supplied to the local authority by you or your agent, together with the 
completed appeal form and information you submit to the Planning Inspectorate.  Please ensure that 
you only provide information, including personal information belonging to you that you are happy will 
be made available to others in this way.  If you supply personal information belonging to a third party 
please ensure you have their permission to do so.  More detailed information about data protection 
and privacy matters is available on the Planning Portal. 
 
The Secretary of State can allow a longer period for giving notice of an appeal, but will not normally 
be prepared to use this power unless there are special circumstances which excuse the delay. 
 
The Secretary of State need not consider an appeal if the City Council could not for legal reasons 
have granted permission or approved the proposals without the conditions it imposed. 
 
In practice, the Secretary of State does not refuse to consider appeals solely because the City 
Council based its decision on a direction given by him. 
 
PURCHASE NOTICES 
 
If either the City Council or the Secretary of State refuses permission to develop land or grants it 
subject to conditions, the owner may claim that he can neither put the land to a reasonably beneficial 
use in its existing state nor can he render the land capable of a reasonably beneficial use by the 
carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted. This procedure is set out in 
Part VI of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
COMPENSATION 
 
In certain limited circumstances, a claim may be made against the City Council for compensation 
where permission is refused or granted subject to conditions by the Secretary of State. The 
circumstances in which compensation is payable are set out in Section 114 of the Town & Country 
Planning Act 1990. 
   
 
 

Page 115



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
WARDS AFFECTED: Dales Item No: 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
22nd July 2015 

 
 
REPORT OF HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT AND REGENERATION 
 
Site of Colwick Service Station, Daleside Road East 
 
1 SUMMARY 
 
Application No: 14/03073/PFUL3 for planning permission 

 
Application by: Lace Market Properties Ltd 

 
Proposal: 16 new dwellings and associated works. 
 
The application is brought to Committee because it is a major application on a site where 
there has been previous Committee involvement, and where reduced planning obligation 
contributions are being offered. 
 
To meet the Council's Performance Targets this application should be determined by 30th 
July 2015 
 
2 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION for the reasons set out in this report, subject 
to:  

 
1. (a) prior completion of a Section 106 planning obligation which shall include a 
financial contribution of  between £24,635 and £46,401.60 (as may be agreed 
following independent viability appraisal) for improvements to the play area and 
path infrastructure at Colwick Country Park, in lieu of on-site open space provision. 

 
(b) the indicative conditions substantially in the form of those listed in the draft 
decision notice at the end of this report. 

 
Power to determine the final details of both the terms of the Planning Obligation 
and conditions of planning permission be delegated to the Head of Development 
Management and Regeneration. 

 
2. That Councillors are satisfied that Regulation 122(2) Community Infrastructure 

Levy Regulations 2010 is complied with, in that the planning obligation sought is 
(a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms, (b) directly 
related to the development and (c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind 
to the development. 
 

3. That Councillors are satisfied that the section 106 obligation(s) sought would not 
exceed the permissible number of obligations according to the Regulation 123 (3) 
Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010. 
 
 
 

Page 117

Agenda Item 4d



 

3 BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The application site comprises the former Texaco filling station on the north side of 

Daleside Road East. The Nottingham to Lincoln railway line runs in an elevated 
position along the northern boundary. The site adjoins a public house to the east 
and an area of mature landscape to the west (part of which falls within the 
development site). The site takes the form of a ‘wedge’ shape, tapering from 50 
metres at the eastern boundary to 4 metres at the western boundary.  

 
3.2 An application for 81 apartments on the site was refused by the Planning 

Committee in January 2006, overturning the officer recommendation to grant 
planning permission. The development was subsequently allowed on appeal, 
however, work did not commence to implement the permission and the permission 
expired in 2011. An outline application for 25 dwellings was withdrawn in 2012 
following concerns about the proposals and extensive pre-application discussions 
ensued. The current application for 16 dwellings has been submitted as a result of 
the outcome of pre-application discussions.  

 
4 DETAILS OF THE PROPOSAL 
 
4.1 The application proposes 16 detached dwellings and associated works. The 

dwellings would be a mix of three and four bedroom dwellings with garages and 
would follow a linear building line, along the northern boundary of the site, returning 
along the east boundary of the site. The area of mature landscaping in the western 
section of the site would be retained, with some of the trees being encompassed 
into the rear garden of plot number 16.  

 
4.2 Access would be provided via a dropped kerb entrance off Daleside Road. A 

shared surface is proposed for the main access road and private drives would 
branch off to the east and west providing access to the remainder of the dwellings.  

 
4.3 The front (south) boundary of the site on Daleside Road would be enclosed by a 

mix of brick wall and railings whilst the front boundaries of individual properties 
would be enclosed by low level railings. Planting is proposed at strategic points 
adjacent to the southern boundary to soften the impact of the extent of the 
boundary enclosure.  

 
4.4 The proposed dwellings would be constructed using traditional materials, namely 

red brick and clay tiles. Brick detailing around the windows and eaves of the 
properties would be used to articulate the elevations and add visual interest. 

 
5 CONSULTATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS OF OTHER OFFICERS 
 

Adjoining occupiers consulted: 
 
The Starting Gate Public House, Colwick Road 
Living Accommodation over the Starting Gate Public House, Colwick Road 
18-30 (even) and 62 Candle Meadow 
1 and 2 Spring Moor 
7 West Moor 
 
A site notice was posted on 5th May 2015 and an advertisement was publicised in 
the press on 13th May 2015. 
 

Page 118



 

5.1 1 representation seeking further details of the development, was submitted in 
response to consultations. 
 

5.2 A petition, signed by 63 local residents, was submitted to the Council in January 
2015, in anticipation of and in objection to the proposed development. The grounds 
of objection relate to the potential for increased traffic as a result of the 
development and the impact that this will have upon the residents of the Colwick 
Park estate on the opposite side of Daleside Road.  
 
Additional consultation letters sent to: 
 
Pollution Control: No objection. Conditions requested relating to ground 
contamination and a noise assessment. 
 
Highways: No objections subject to conditions. The proposed entrance to the site 
has been amended in accordance with recommendations to introduce a dropped 
crossing rather than a traditional bellmouth. This would prioritise pedestrian and 
vehicular movements along the A612. The access road has also been amended in 
line with recommendations and would now take the form of a shared surface which 
is welcomed. The redevelopment of this site from a petrol filling station, to a small 
residential cul de sac not only consolidates the number of access points out on to 
the A612 Daleside Road East but in comparison will also reduce the amount of 
traffic associated with the site in general. Each property is being provided with at 
least one parking space, plus specific cycle parking. The site is already fronted by 
an off road cycle track and future residents could easily cycle into the city as an 
alternative to using the private car. A condition requiring the submission of a 
Construction Management Plan is recommended.  
 
Environment Agency: No objection subject to conditions relating to contamination 
remediation. 
 
Biodiversity: No objection. A Condition requiring hedgehog corridors in boundary 
fencing is recommended. The retention of the hedge along the eastern boundary of 
the site is encouraged. The applicant should be advised of appropriate times for 
site clearance in order to avoid harm to habitats.  
 
Housing Strategy: The development will bring forward a vacant site for the 
delivery of larger market housing which would bring some tenure/property diversity 
to the broader area and city overall.  

 
6 RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE 

 
 National Planning Policy Framework: 
 

6.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out the Government’s 
planning policies. While planning applications still need to be determined 
accordance with the development plan, which are set out in the report, the NPPF is 
a material consideration in the assessment of this application. 
 

6.2 The NPPF advises that there is a presumption in favour of sustainable development 
and that development which is sustainable should be approved. Paragraph 17 of 
the NPPF lists the core planning principles that should underpin decision taken on 
planning applications. Of particular relevance to this application is the need to 
secure high quality design and a good standard of amenity for all existing and 

Page 119



 

future occupants of land and buildings, and to contribute to conserving and 
enhancing the natural environment and support the transition to a low carbon 
future. 

 
6.3 Paragraph 49 states that the relevant policies for the supply of housing should not 

be considered up-to-date if the local planning authority cannot demonstrate a five 
year supply of deliverable housing sites. 

 
6.4 Paragraphs 56-64 of the NPPF sets out the approach for achieving good quality 

design, including responding to local character, creating a strong sense of place 
and resisting poor design that fails to take opportunities to improve the character 
and the quality of an area. 
 

6.5 Paragraph 96 states that new development should be expected to take account of 
landform, layout, building orientation, massing and landscaping to minimise energy 
consumption. 

 
6.6 Paragraph 111 states that planning decisions should encourage the effective use of 

land by re-using land that has been previously developed. 
 
6.7 Paragraph 118 states that local planning authorities should aim to conserve and 

enhance biodiversity by applying a range of principles including that if significant 
harm cannot be avoided, mitigated or as a last resort compensated, then 
permission should be refused. 
 

6.8 Annex 1 states that the NPPF aims to strengthen local decision making and 
reinforce the importance of up-to-date plans. For the purpose of decision-taking, the 
policies in the Local Plan should not be considered out-of-date and are to be 
afforded weight in accordance with their conformity with the NPPF. 

 
Nottingham Local Plan (November 2005): 
 
H2 - Density. 
 
NE3 - Conservation of Species. 
 
NE9 - Pollution. 
 
NE10 - Water Quality and Flood Protection. 
 
NE14 - Renewable Energy. 
 
R2 - Open Space in New Development. 
 
ST1 - Sustainable Communities. 
 
T3 - Car, Cycle and Servicing Parking. 
 
T11 - Cycling 

 
Aligned Core Strategy (September 2014) 
 
Policy 1 – Climate Change 
 

Page 120



 

Policy 8 – Housing Size, Mix and Choice 
 
Policy 10 – Design and Enhancing Local Identity 
 
Policy 16 (2 c) i– Green Infrastructure, Parks and Open Space 
 
Policy 17 – Biodiversity 
 
Policy 19 – Developer Contributions  

 
7. APPRAISAL OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
 Main Issues 
 

(i) Principle of the Development 
(ii) Layout and Design 
(iii) Traffic and Parking 

 
 Issue i) Principle of the development (Policies ST1, H2 of the NLP and Policy 8 

of the ACS) 
 
7.1  The application site is not a within an area of protection or an area of land 

designated for particular land uses in the Saved Nottingham Plan. However, it has 
been identified as suitable for residential development within the emerging Land 
and Planning Policies Document (although not a preferred option at the current 
stage).This has not yet been subject Government for review by an Independent 
Inspector from the Planning Inspectorate, and so cannot be given undue weight. 

 
7.2 The principle of residential development on this site has also been established 

through the granting of planning permission, on appeal, 05/02261/PFUL3, for 81 
self-contained apartments. However, the 5 year time limit condition lapsed prior to 
any works commencing on site.  

 
7.3 Policy ST1 aims to secure the creation and maintenance of balanced communities, 

including a balanced mix of housing size, type, and affordability. The policy 
supports the use of previously developed land and buildings and development at an 
appropriate density to help support local services and to ensure the efficient use of 
land. 

 
7.4 Policy H2 recognises that development should aim to be compatible with the 

characteristics of the site and its surroundings, whilst also recognising that higher 
densities will be particularly appropriate where there is a good level of accessibility, 
including public transport and services. 

 
7.5 Policy 8 of the Aligned Core Strategy emphasises the need to develop sustainable 

communities and, in Nottingham’s case, places further emphasis on the provision of 
innovative family housing on the fringes of the city centre and a broader mix of 
housing elsewhere. Policy 8 also recognises that the appropriate housing mix will 
be informed by a number of factors including local housing strategies, 
demographics, need and demand, site specifics and accessibility. 

 
7.6 The proposed development is faced with a number of constraints due to the former 

use of the site and the unusual shape of the land and this has dictated the final 
layout and density. The proposal would deliver quality housing of an appropriate 

Page 121



 

size and design for occupation by families, offering a mix of three and four bedroom 
properties with garages and private rear gardens. Housing Strategy have identified 
that the type of dwellings proposed would bring some tenure diversity to the 
broader area and city overall. The development would benefit from good public 
transport links to the city centre and to the suburbs to the east of the city, being 
located on a primary bus route. The site is also within walking distance of Colwick 
Country Park. It is therefore considered that the proposed development would 
comply with policies ST1 and H2 of the Nottingham Local Plan and Policy 8 of the 
Aligned Core Strategy. 

 
 Issue ii) Layout and Design (Policies 8 and 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy) 
 
7.7 The NPPF recognise the importance of design in making places better. It states that 

decisions should not attempt to impose architectural styles and that great weight 
should be given to schemes that raise the standard of design in the area. Policy 10 
of the Aligned Core Strategy states that all new development should aspire to the 
highest standards of design, make a positive contribution to the public realm and 
create an attractive, safe, inclusive and healthy environment. 

 
7.8 The layout of the proposed development has been largely dictated by the shape of 

the site and the fact that a significant portion of the land to the western side of the 
site does not lend itself to residential development. Extensive pre-application 
discussions have taken place to arrive at the final layout and it is considered to be 
substantially better than the previous approval for flats and the subsequent outline 
application for 25 dwellings. It is considered that the proposed development 
responds well to the constraints of the site and would present a permeable and 
legible layout with an appropriate number of dwellings. The dwellings have been 
orientated to make the best use of the developable land available without 
compromising design or amenity.  

 
7.9 The proposed architectural treatment is fairly simple with a traditional palette of 

materials, but effective use of brick detailing and features such as porches will add 
sufficient interest to the front elevations. A condition requiring the submission of 
materials is recommended. 

 
7.10 Although the submitted Design and Access statement infers that landscaping 

across the site will be minimal with no planting along the front boundary, this has 
since been negotiated and planting has been introduced at strategic points along 
the boundary with Daleside Road. This has been included within private front and 
rear gardens to ensure future maintenance. A condition requiring the submission of 
a full landscaping scheme is recommended.  

 
7.11 It was initially proposed to enclose the front boundary with a mix of brick wall with 

railings and brick wall with fencing. However, concerns were raised about the 
overall quality of the enclosure and the future maintenance of the timber fencing 
and it has therefore been amended. A mix of full height brick wall and railings are 
now proposed, which is considered to be appropriate in the semi-rural context.  

 
7.12 Bin storage would be incorporated within the rear gardens of all properties. In view 

of the above, it is considered that the proposals would comply with policies 8 and 
10 of the Aligned Core Strategy). 

 
 
 

Page 122



 

 Issue iii) Traffic and Parking (Policies T3 and T11 of the NLP and Policy 10 of the 
ACS) 

 
7.13 Policy 10 of the ACS requires all new development to reflect the need to reduce the 

dominance of motor vehicles. The proposed development would provide cycle 
storage within all rear gardens which is particularly important in this location given 
that the site fronts onto an existing off road cycle track . The site will also eventually 
front onto the Eastern Cycle Corridor; works will commence on this at the 
beginning of the next financial year. 

 
7.14 The provision of a shared surface and a dropped kerb crossing into the site would 

prioritise pedestrian and cycle movements. Strategically placed pedestrian access 
points have been incorporated within the front boundary enclosure on Daleside 
Road.  

 
7.15 Concerns were raised by local residents of the Colwick Park estate prior to the 

submission of the current application in relation to the amount of traffic that would 
be generated by the proposed development and the impact that this would have 
upon the Colwick Park estate. A petition of 63 signatures was submitted in January 
2015.  

 
7.16 It is acknowledged that Daleside Road carries high volumes of traffic, particularly at 

peak times. However, the site was previously used as a petrol filling station and had 
two points of access off/on to Daleside Road. Highways have confirmed that the 
proposed residential development would result in significantly less traffic than the 
former petrol station, particularly as the development proposes only one point of 
access on/off Daleside Road. Furthermore, each dwelling within the proposed 
development would benefit from at least one off-street parking space. Garages 
within the development have been increased in size to ensure that they would be 
large enough to accommodate a standard car. The Colwick Park estate is on the 
opposite side of Daleside Road, at some distance from the development site and as 
such it is not considered that displacement parking to the streets within this estate 
would be likely. In view of this, it is not considered that the proposed development 
would have any significant impacts upon the residents of the Colwick Park estate in 
terms of its effects upon traffic and parking. 

 
7.17 Daleside Road will eventually form part of the Eastern Cycle Corridor, 

implementation of which is set to commence in 2016. It is not considered that the 
proposed development would prejudice this in any way and as such would comply 
with policy T11 of the Nottingham Local Plan. 

 
7.18 Traffic Regulation Orders/ Speed Orders in the form of junction protection and a 

20mph speed limit would be proposed but would be dealt with under separate 
Highways powers, if deemed appropriate.  

 
7.19 In view of the above and subject to compliance with conditions, it is considered that 

the development complies with policy T3 of the Nottingham Local Plan and Policy 
10 of the Aligned Core Strategy). 

 
 Other Matters (Policy R2 of the NLP and Policy 19 of the ACS) 
 
7.20 The number of dwellings proposed is well below the threshold (25) for the 

requirement of affordable housing. Whilst the overall site area exceeds 1 hectare, 
this the developable area is substantially lower (around 0.5Ha) because the site 

Page 123



 

includes a long strip of undevelopable land alongside Daleside Road. Affordable 
housing is therefore not justifiable in this case. 

 
7.21 Policy R2 of the Nottingham Local Plan requires the provision of Open Space in 

Development of 10 or more dwellings. Where it is not feasible to provide Open 
Space on the development site, financial contributions towards the provision and 
maintenance of Open Space in the Local Area can be made. In accordance with 
the Supplementary Planning Guidance supporting this policy, the proposed 
development requires a financial contribution of £46,401.60 to be sought by way of 
a S.106 Agreement.  However, the developers have presented a viability appraisal 
with the application, which suggests that this contribution would make the scheme 
unviable. They have suggested that in order to make their scheme viable, their 
maximum contribution towards Open Space would be £24,635. Officers are seeking 
independent validation of this, and an update will be given at the meeting. Subject 
to the outcome of this process, the proposal complies with R2 of the Local Plan or 
Policy 19 of the Aligned Core Strategy. 

 
7.22 Parks and Open Spaces have advised that the financial contribution towards Open 

Space will be used to improve play areas and the footpath infrastructure within 
Colwick Country Park. This park has not benefited from any financial contributions 
from S.106 obligations previously and as such, the contributions sought would not 
exceed the permissible number of obligations according to the Regulation 123 (3) 
Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010. 

 
7.23 The developer has offered local employment opportunities through the construction 

phase and to a financial contribution of £3168 towards Employment and Training.  
 
8. SUSTAINABILITY / BIODIVERSITY (Policies NE3 and NE10 of the Nottingham 

Local Plan and Policies 1, 16 (2(c)) and 17 of the Aligned Core Strategy) 
 
8.1  Due to the nature of the site and its previous use, there is a good refuge habitat 

provided. This could be used by amphibians, reptiles, hedgehogs and potentially 
nesting birds. Due to the above, it is recommended that the optimal timing for the 
site clearance would be October when reptiles are still active and birds are no 
longer breeding. A condition requiring the use of hedgehog friendly fencing is 
recommended.  

 
8.2 A section of hedgerow along the eastern site boundary is now to be retained 

following recommendation by the biodiversity Officer. Subject to the recommended 
condition, it is considered that the proposal would comply with policy NE3 of the 
Nottingham Local Plan and Policy 17 of the Aligned Core Strategy. 

 
8.3 Whilst the application site is identified as being within a sub-regional green 

infrastructure corridor, as defined within the Aligned Core Strategy, it is a brownfield 
site that has been identified as suitable for residential development. As such, it is 
not considered that the proposals would have any adverse impact upon the 
established green infrastructure and would therefore comply with policy 16 (2(c)) of 
the Aligned Core Strategy. 

 
8.4 The proposed development would be constructed using a fabric first approach to 

provide highly insulated buildings to reduce energy at source. This would ensure 
that the 10% reduction in carbon emissions target, would be exceeded.  

 
 

Page 124



 

8.5 A Flood Risk assessment has been submitted with the application as parts of the 
site falls within flood zones 2 and 3. Conditions to ensure that the development is 
carried out in accordance with the recommendations of the FRA are recommended. 
Drainage Engineers have also recommended conditions requesting further details 
in relation to the management of the Sustainable Drainage Systems on site. 
Subject to compliance with the conditions, the development would accord with 
policy NE10 of the Nottingham Local Plan and Policy 1 of the Aligned Core 
Strategy. 

 
9 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

None. 
 

10 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The issues raised in this report are primarily ones of planning judgement. Should 
legal considerations arise these will be addressed at the meeting. 
 

11 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
None. 
 

12 RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
None. 
 

13 STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 
 
Neighbourhood Nottingham: requirement to provide a high quality and sustainable 
residential development. 
 
Working Nottingham: opportunity to secure training and employment for local 
citizens through the construction of the development. 
 
Safer Nottingham: designing a development that that contributes to safer and more 
attractive neighbourhoods. 
 

14 CRIME AND DISORDER ACT IMPLICATIONS 
 
None. 
 

15 VALUE FOR MONEY 
 
None. 
 

16 List of background papers other than published works or those disclosing 
confidential or exempt information 
 
1. Application No: 14/03073/PFUL3 - link to online case file: 
http://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=NGVQQ9LYCB000 

2. Petition, 8.1.15 
3. Environment Agency, 26.06.15 
4. Highways, 20.5.15 
5. Highways 3.7.15 

Page 125

http://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=NGVQQ9LYCB000
http://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=NGVQQ9LYCB000


 

6. Pollution Control, 26.5.15 
7. Housing Strategy, 29.5.15 
8. Biodiversity Officer, 15.5.15 
9. Drainage, 3.7.15 
 

17 Published documents referred to in compiling this report 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (2012) 
Nottingham Local Plan (November 2005) 
Aligned Core Strategy (September 2014) 
 
Contact Officer:  
Mrs Zoe Kyle, Case Officer, Development Management.  
Email: zoe.kyle@nottinghamcity.gov.uk.      Telephone: 0115 8764059

Page 126



© Crown Copyright and database right 2014. Ordnance Survey License number 100019317

NPage 127



 
   

   

1 Continued… DRAFT ONLY 
Not for issue 

862168) 

Your Ref:  

2015 

My Ref: 14/03073/PFUL3 (PP-03

 
Contact

Email: development.management@nottinghamcity.gov.uk 

rket Properties Ltd 
iss Rachel Taylor 

 
Lincoln 

Development Management 
City Planning 
Loxley House 
Station Street 
Nottingham 

 3NG 
 
Tel: 0115 8764447 

nghamcity.gov.uk 

Date of decision:  
D  1990 
IO SION 

  

NG2

: Mrs Zoe Kyle 

 
 
Lac  Mae
FAO: M
4A Eastgate

www.notti

 
LN2 1QA 
 

TOWN AN  COUNTRY PLANNING ACT
RMISAPPLICAT N FOR PLANNING PE

 
  
Application No: 14/03073/PFUL3 (PP-03862168) 

gham 
Proposal: 16 new dwellings and associated works. 

 

Application by: Lace Market Properties Ltd 
Location: Site Of Colwick Service Station, Daleside Road East, Nottin

 
 

ING PERMISSION 
for the development described in the above application subject to the following conditions:- 
 

 

Nottingham City Council as Local Planning Authority hereby GRANTS PLANN

 

 1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of t
the date of this permis

hree years from 
sion. 

g Act 1990, as 
004. 

 
Reason: In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Plannin
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2

 
 
 

 

T

P
(T l planning authority 
fo

ime limit 

re-commencement conditions 
he conditions in this section require further matters to be submitted to the loca
r approval before starting work) 

2. No development shall commence on any phase of the approved development until a 
g by the Local 

etails of the type, size and 
frequency of vehicles to/from the site, haul routes (if any), staff parking provision (including 
subcontractors), site security, traffic management plans, wheel cleaning facilities and 
measures to prevent the deposit of debris on the highway and a timetable for its 
implementation. Thereafter the construction plan shall be implemented in accordance with the 
approved details and timetable unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
Reason: To avoid prejudice to traffic conditions within the vicinity of the site in accordance with 
Policy NE9 of the Local Plan and Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy. 

 
construction management plan has been submitted to and approved in writin
Planning Authority. The plan shall as a minimum include d

Page 128



 
   

   

2 Continued… 

Not for issue 
DRAFT ONLY 

3. with the risks 
nd approved in 

ve regard to soil 
WB consulting; Phase 1 and 2 reports (Ref : LMP509SE/01/V3 Date: June 

sment referred to in the 

ediation measures required and how they are to be 
ected contamination not 

 
n order to 

strate that the works set out in the Remediation Strategy are complete. 

f the Local Planning 

isks to the 
 in accordance with 

 No development shall commence until a Remediation Strategy to deal 
associated with ground contamination of the site has been submitted to a
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The Remediation Strategy shall ha
assessments by B
2005) and shall include: 
 
a)      The results of the Site Investigation and the Detailed Risk Asses
Site Investigation Scheme and, based on these, an options appraisal and Remediation 
Strategy giving full details of the rem
undertaken (including a contingency plan for dealing with any unexp
previously identified in the Site Investigation).  

b)      A Verification Plan providing details of the data that will be collected i
demon
 
Any changes to these components require the express written approval o
Authority.  
 
Reason: To ensure that the site can be developed without health or safety r
environment, the users of the development, and/or adjoining occupiers
Policy NE9 of the Nottingham Local Plan. 

4.  the risks 
with ground and groundwater contamination of the site has been submitted to and 

tegy shall have 
 2 reports (Ref : 

Ref 

 have a suitable 
auge gas resistant membrane (all joints and penetrations sealed) and ventilated under 

floor 150mm void. Details of how they are to be included in the building shall be submitted. 

d in order to 
lete 

 
Any changes to these components require the express written approval of the Local Planning 
Authority.  
 
 
Reason: To ensure that the site can be developed without health or safety risks to the 
environment, the users of the development, and/or adjoining occupiers in accordance with 
Policy NE9 of the Nottingham Local Plan. 

 No development shall commence until a Remediation Strategy to deal with
associated 
approved i writing by the Local Planning Authority  The Remediation Stra
regard to contaminated land assessments by BWB consulting; Phase 1 and
LMP509SE/01/V3 Date: June 2005) and; Further gas monitoring results (
IDN/DLJ/LMP509SE with accompanying letters Dated: November and December 2005), and 
shall include: 
 
a)      A Remediation Strategy shall include that all buildings on the site will
2000 g

 
b)      A Verification Plan providing details of the data that will be collecte
demonstrate that the works set out in the Remediation Strategy are comp

Page 129



 
   

   

3 Continued… 

Not for issue 
DRAFT ONLY 

5. ssessment and 
nsulation scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority.    

oad traffic noise 
 likely to have an 

. In addition it shall include predicted noise levels 
for any plant and equipment which will form part of the development, octave band analysis and 

The sound insulation scheme shall include the specification and acoustic data sheets for 
ilation scheme and 

ve the following internal noise levels: 

drooms for any hour 

ii.      Not exceeding 35dB LAeq(1 hour) and not exceeding NR 30 for bedrooms and living 

easured with F time weighting) 

rs of the development do not experience noise 

 Prior to the commencement of the development, an environmental noise a
sound i

 
The environmental noise assessment shall take into account the impact of r
and be carried out whilst any premises and/or activities in the vicinity that are
adverse effect on noise levels are operating

all assumptions made (e.g. glazing and façade areas).  
 

glazed areas of the development and any complementary acoustical vent
be designed to achie
 
i.      Not exceeding 30dB LAeq(1 hour) and not exceeding NR 25 in be
between 23.00 and 07.00,  

rooms for any hour between 07.00 and 23.00, 
iii.     Not more than 45dB LAmax(5 min) in bedrooms (m
between the hours of 23.00 and 07.00. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the residential occupie
nuisance in accordance with Policy NE9 of the Nottingham Local Plan. 

6. nt, details 
of maintenance schedules for the Sustainable Drainage systems on the site shall be submitted 

y; to 
d amenity; and to ensure the future maintenance of the sustainable 

drainage structures in accordance with policy NE10 of the Local Plan.

 Notwithstanding the submitted details, prior to the commencement of the developme

to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding; to improve and protect water qualit
improve habitat an

 

7.  until samples of the external materials of the buildings and 
 been submitted to 
velopment shall be 
ed in writing by the 

Reason: To ensure that the appearance of the development will be satisfactory in accordance 

 No development shall commence
details of the windows, including sections to show the reveal depths, have
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the de
carried out in accordance with the approved details unless otherwise agre
Local Planning Authority. 
 

with Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy. 

8. No development shall commence on any phase of the approved development until details of 
materials and means of construction of all hard surface areas, including the roads, footways, 
riverside walkway, public realm and parking areas, have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the appearance of the development will be satisfactory in accordance 
with Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy. 

Page 130



 
   

   

4 Continued… 

Not for issue 
DRAFT ONLY 

9. nt shall commence 
 writing by the 

height, species (with a 
attract/create 

 proposed trees, hedges and shrubs, the tree pits, and a 

nce with 

 Notwithstanding the details included on the submitted plans, no developme
until a detailed landscaping scheme has been submitted to and approved in
Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include details of the type, 
preference towards the use of native species and suitable species that will 
ecological assets) and location of the
timetable for the implementation of the scheme. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the appearance of the development is satisfactory in accorda
Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy. 

1 ly timber 
fencing to be installed along the side boundaries of private rear gardens, shall be submitted to 

elopment shall be 
 out in accordance with the approved details.  

y NE3 of the Nottingham 
Local Plan.

0. Notwithstanding the details shown on the submitted plans, details of hedgehog friend

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, the dev
carried
 
Reason: To improve habitats for hedgehogs in accordance with polic

 

 
 

 

1 t in accordance with 
pproved Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) report reference CL1412/05/01 prepared by Clear 

ailed within 

(i) The internal finished floor level shall be set no lower than 22.65 mAOD (Above Ordnance 

 and subsequently in 
ing arrangements embodied within the scheme, or within any 

other period as may subsequently be agreed, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. 

ants in 
accordance with Policy NE10 of the Local Plan. 

1. The development permitted by this planning permission shall be carried ou
the a
Environmental Consultants in June 2015 and the following mitigation measures det
the FRA: 
 

Datum). 
 
The mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to occupation
accordance with the timing/phas

 
Reason: To reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and future occup

1 bmitted to and 

rification Plan, to 
Remediation Strategy to deal with ground gas contamination of 

the site has been fully implemented and completed. 
 
ii) A Verification Report, which shall include the data referred to in the Verification Plan, to 
demonstrate that the approved Remediation Strategy to deal with ground and groundwater 
contamination of the site has been fully implemented and completed. 
 
Reason:  To ensure that the site can be developed without health or safety risks to the 
environment, the users of the development, and/or adjoining occupiers in accordance with 
Policy NE9 of the Nottingham Local Plan. 

2. No dwelling shall be occupied until the following information has been su
approved by the Local Planning Authority: 
 
i) A Verification Report, which shall include the data referred to in the Ve
demonstrate that the approved 

P
( occupied) 

re-occupation conditions 
The conditions in this section must be complied with before the development is 

Page 131



 
   

   

5 Continued… 

Not for issue 
DRAFT ONLY 

ound insulation 
and is fully operational shall be submitted to and be approved 

in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

development do not experience noise 

13. Prior to first occupation of the development, verification that the approved s
scheme has been implemented 

 
Reason: To ensure that the residential occupiers of the 
nuisance in accordance with Policy NE9 of the Nottingham Local Plan. 

1 oposed vehicular 
nd cycle parking 

 Road East as shown on Truelove 
tive purposes only 

et parking provision is 
 development leading to on street parking in 

low and controlled 
y in accordance with policy T3 of the 

4. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until the pr
and pedestrian accesses, internal access road, private drives, on site car a
provision and off-site highway works on the A612 Daleside
Property & Construction Ltd drawing number TL-010-21-01 rev M for indica
have been constructed to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To promote sustainable travel, to ensure that adequate off stre
made to reduce the possibilities of the proposed
the area, to enable vehicles to enter and leave the public highway in a s
manner and in the interests of general Highway safet
Local Plan and Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy 

1 l the boundary enclosure associated with that 

ent and in 

5. No individual dwelling shall be occupied unti
dwelling has been completed in accordance with approved details. 
 
Reason: In the interests of the amenity of occupants of the approved developm
accordance with Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy.. 

16. If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present at the 
the local planning 

ut until the developer has submitted a remediation strategy to the 
rity detailing how this unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with and 

diation strategy shall be 
implemented as approved. 

nce with policy 

site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with 
authority) shall be carried o
Local Planning Autho
obtained written approval from the Local Planning Authority. The reme

 
Reason: To reduce the risk of ground and surface water pollution in accorda
NE10 of the Nottingham Local Plan. 

 
 

 

1 l Permitted 

without modification), the integral garage parking spaces within the dwellings hereby permitted 
shall remain permanently available for the parking of motor vehicles and shall not be 
converted or used for any other purpose. The integral garage parking spaces shall be used 
solely for the benefit of the occupants of the dwelling or their visitors and for no other purpose. 
 
Reason: To ensure that adequate off street parking provision is made to reduce the 
possibilities of the proposed development leading to on street parking in the area and in the 
interests of general highway safety in accordance with policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy 

7. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (Genera
Development) (England) Order 2015,(or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or 

R
(Conditions relating to the subsequent use of the development and other regulatory matters) 

egulatory/ongoing conditions 

Page 132



 
   

   

6 Continued… 

Not for issue 
DRAFT ONLY 

Permitted 
England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or 

without modification); 

pth shall be erected 

iii) No landscaping or other operations resulting in excavations deeper than 30cm shall be 

Reason: To ensure that later development does not give rise to health or safety risks to the 
 accordance with 

18. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Development) (

 
i) The dwellings hereby permitted shall not be enlarged; 
ii) No buildings or structures requiring foundations greater than 30cm de
within the curtilage of any dwellings; 

undertaken within the curtilage of any dwellings. 
 

environment, the users of the development, and/or adjoining occupiers in
Policy NE9 of the Nottingham Local Plan. 

1 pment shall be 
asons following the occupation or completion of 

the development of that phase, whichever is the sooner, and any trees or plants which die, are 
ears shall be 

eason with others of similar size and species, unless the Local 
n consent to any variation. 

 
y in accordance with 

9. The approved landscaping scheme for each phase of the approved develo
carried out in the first planting and seeding se

removed or become seriously damaged or diseased within a period of five y
replaced in the next planting s
Planning Authority gives writte

Reason:  To ensure that the appearance of the development is satisfactor
Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy. 

Standard condition- scope of permission 

S1. Except as may be modified by the conditions listed above, the development shall be carried 
 complete accordance with the details described in the following drawings/documents: 

10-21-01 revision Rev L, received 2 July 2015 
out in
Drawing reference TL-0
 
 
Reason: To determine the scope of this permission. 

 
Informatives 
 

try Planning Act 
o obtain any other consents that may be necessary, nor does it 

ther consents will necessarily be forthcoming. It does not override any restrictions 
o the property or the rights of neighbours. You are advised to check what 

ample from the 
roval under the Building 

re 
still active and birds are no longer breeding.  
 
 3. Highways Advise: 
 
Planning consent is not consent to work on the public highway. Therefore prior to any works 
commencing on site you must contact Highways Network Management on 0115 876 5238 to 
ensure all necessary licences and permissions are in place. It is an offence under Section 148 and 
Section 151 of 
the Highways Act 1980 to deposit mud on the public highway and therefore you should take every 
effort to prevent this occurring. 

 1. This permission is valid only for the purposes of Part III of the Town & Coun
1990. It does not remove the need t
imply that such o
contained in the deeds t
other restrictions there are and what other consents may be needed, for ex
landowner, statutory bodies and neighbours.  This permission is not an app
Regulations. 
 
 2. The optimal time for scrub/vegetation/materials clearance would be October when reptiles a

Page 133



 
   

   

7 Continued… 

Not for issue 
DRAFT ONLY 

y highway forming 
ew road/s and any 

pecifications. The 
tion 219 of the Act 
t on which a new 

building is to be erected. The developer should contact the Highway Authority with regard to 

ays Act 1980. A 
ded that the 

 with which compliance 
nd it is essential that design calculations and detailed construction drawings for 

submitted to and approved by the Highway Authority in writing before work 
6 5293 at the 

manent off-site works 
l must first be 

78 Agreement 

e process. It is 
 time for the 

ill not be permitted to work on the Highway before it is complete. 

 sums in respect of 
is required for the safe 
fer to the 6Cs Design 

permanent Traffic Regulation Orders (20mph speed limit on internal access road, 
tection at the new access junction with the A612 Daleside Road East) will be 

te. These have 

lf of the developer by Nottingham City Council at 

raffic Management on 

mmence on this at 
 regular dialogue 

 
 4. The Remediation Strategy (including its component elements) must be undertaken and 
implemented by competent persons and must be conducted in accordance with Defra and the 
Environment Agency's guidance 'Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, 
CLR 11' and other authoritative guidance.  
 
The responsibility and subsequent liability for safe development and secure occupancy of the site 
rests with the developer and/or the landowner.   The developer is required to institute a thorough 
investigation and assessment of the ground conditions, nature and degree of contamination on the 
site to ensure that actual or potential risks to public health and safety can be overcome by 

 
The applicant should note that notwithstanding any planning permission that if an
part of the development is to be adopted by the Highway Authority then the n
highway drainage will be required to comply with our design guidance and s
Advanced Payment Code in the Highways Act 1980 applies and under Sec
payment will be required from the owner of the land fronting a private stree

compliance with the Code, 
 
or alternatively to the issue of a Section 38 Agreement and bond under the Highw
Section 38 agreement can take some time to complete. Therefore it is recommen
developer contact the Highway Authority as early as possible for clarification
will be required a
the proposed works are 
commences on site. Please contact Highways Network Management on 0115 87
earliest opportunity to 
begin the process. 
 
Planning consent is not consent to work on the highway. To carry out the per
associated with the planning consent on the A612 Daleside Road East, approva
obtained from the Local Highway Authority. Approval will take the form of a Section 2
and you 
should contact Highways Network Management on 0115 8765293 to instigate th
strongly recommended that you make contact at the earliest opportunity to allow
process to be completed as you w
All associated 
costs will be borne by the developer. We reserve the right to charge commuted
ongoing maintenance where the item in question is above and beyond what 
and satisfactory functioning of the highway. For further information please re
Guide 
which is available at www.leics.gov.uk/htd. 
 
Temporary and 
and junction pro
proposed during the construction process and for the life of this development si
separate legal 
processes and the Orders can be made on beha
the applicant's expense. It is strongly recommended that you make contact at the earliest 
opportunity to allow time for the processes to be completed; please contact T
0115 876 5245 to 
instigate the process. 
 
The site will also eventually front onto the Eastern Cycle Corridor; works will co
the beginning of the next financial year and thus the developer will need to be in
from our Project Manager - John Carnell on 0115 876 5292. 

Page 134



 
   

   

8 Continued… DRAFT ONLY 
Not for issue 

all provide at his 
ciated with ground 

and groundwater contamination of the site has been addressed satisfactorily. 

ll be undertaken 
d to BS 7445: 2003 Description and Measurement of 

Environmental Noise.  The internal noise levels referred to are derived from BS 8233: 2014 Sound 

sulation scheme must be maintained &, in the case of mechanical 
facturer's 

 authority has had 
. 

 
y further details to be submitted for 

approval, please note that an application fee will be payable at the time such details are submitted 
to the City Council. A form is available from the City Council for this purpose. 
 
Your attention is drawn to the rights of appeal set out on the attached sheet. 
 
 

appropriate remedial, preventive or precautionary measures.  The developer sh
own expense such evidence as is required to indicate clearly that the risks asso

 
 
 5. The environmental noise assessment shall be suitable and sufficient, and sha
by a competent person having regar

Insulation and Noise Reduction for Buildings. 
 
The approved sound in
ventilation, must be maintained, serviced and operated in accordance with manu
recommendations. 
 
 6. The reason for this decision, and a summary of the policies the local planning
regard to are set out in the committee report, enclosed herewith and forming part of this decision

Where a condition specified in this decision notice requires an

Page 135



 
   

 - 9 -  

Not for issue 
DRAFT ONLY 

 
 

Application No: 14/03073/PFUL3 (PP-03862168) 

s on the grant of 
en he or she can appeal to the Secretary of State under 

n obtain an appeal 
Eagle Wing, Temple 
2 6372.  Appeal forms 

p://www.planning-
inspectorate.gov.uk/pins/index.htm.  Alternatively, the Planning Inspectorate have introduced an 

n find the service 
.uk/pcs. 

s area of the 
 and relevant 

er with the 
submit to the Planning Inspectorate.  Please ensure that 

t you are happy will 
elonging to a third party 

please ensure you have their permission to do so.  More detailed information about data protection 

al, but will not normally 
are special circumstances which excuse the delay. 

tate need not consider an appeal if the City Council could not for legal reasons 
posed. 

ecause the City 

OTICES 
 

p land or grants it 
reasonably beneficial 
ficial use by the 

opment which has been or would be permitted. This procedure is set out in 
Part VI of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
COMPENSATION 
 
In certain limited circumstances, a claim may be made against the City Council for compensation 
where permission is refused or granted subject to conditions by the Secretary of State. The 
circumstances in which compensation is payable are set out in Section 114 of the Town & Country 
Planning Act 1990. 
 
 
 

RIGHTS OF APPEAL

 
If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the City Council to impose condition
permission for the proposed development, th
section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
Any appeal must be submitted within six months of the date of this notice.  You ca
form from the Customer Support Unit, The Planning Inspectorate, Room 3/15 
Quay House, 2 The Square, Temple Quay, Bristol, BS1 6PN.  Phone: 0117 37
can also be downloaded from the Planning Inspectorate website at htt

online appeals service which you can use to make your appeal online. You ca
through the Appeals area of the Planning Portal - see www.planningportal.gov
 
The Inspectorate will publish details of your appeal on the internet (on the Appeal
Planning Portal).  This may include a copy of the original planning application form
supporting documents supplied to the local authority by you or your agent, togeth
completed appeal form and information you 
you only provide information, including personal information belonging to you tha
be made available to others in this way.  If you supply personal information b

and privacy matters is available on the Planning Portal. 
 
The Secretary of State can allow a longer period for giving notice of an appe
be prepared to use this power unless there 
 
The Secretary of S
have granted permission or approved the proposals without the conditions it im
 
In practice, the Secretary of State does not refuse to consider appeals solely b
Council based its decision on a direction given by him. 
 
PURCHASE N

If either the City Council or the Secretary of State refuses permission to develo
subject to conditions, the owner may claim that he can neither put the land to a 
use in its existing state nor can he render the land capable of a reasonably bene
carrying out of any devel

Page 136


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	4a Blenheim Gardens Allotments Blenheim Lane
	REPORT OF HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT AND REGENERATION
	1500893PVAR3 Appendix 1 - 1303051PMFUL3 Blenheim June 2014 Report.pdf
	1303051PMFUL3 Blenheim Allotments Energy from Waste etc
	REPORT OF HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT AND REGENERATION

	13.03051A
	BLENHEIM ALLOTMENTS Decision Notice 08.06.14

	1500893PVAR3 Appendix 1 - 1303051PMFUL3 Blenheim June 2014 Report.pdf
	1303051PMFUL3 Blenheim Allotments Energy from Waste etc
	REPORT OF HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT AND REGENERATION

	13.03051A
	BLENHEIM ALLOTMENTS Decision Notice 08.06.14


	4b 95 Talbot Street
	REPORT OF HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT AND REGENERATION

	4c Western Section Of Former Coach Station, Park Lane
	REPORT OF HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT AND REGENERATION

	4d Site Of Colwick Service Station Daleside Road East
	REPORT OF HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT AND REGENERATION




